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Aercan ,National Headqaters
_ American 430 17th StretN.W.- T Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

Marsha Johnson Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer

September 26, 2002

The Honorable Charles Grassley
Ranking Member, Senate Committee on Finance
United States Senate
219 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510-6200

Dear Senator Grassley:

Enclosed please find our response to your letter of August 12, 2002, requesting additional
information about the governance of the American Red Cross and our financial accountability. I
deeply appreciate your offer to extend the deadline for this response, so that we could more fully
report on the initiatives being undertaken to strengthen compliance and financial accountability
throughout the Red Cross.

The lessons learned from our experience in meeting the unprecedented needs following
September 11 have truly changed the way we will approach our disaster response mission in the
future. The Red Cross is more committed than ever to integrate and coordinate our efforts with
government agencies and other charitable organizations at all levels to be as seamless as possible.
Even more, we are committed to build the public trust in our organization, support our
communities and our volunteers, be good stewards of the financial and blood donations entrusted
to us, and help our communities ensure they are prepared for whatever the future might hold.

An area of critical importance is that of compliance with policies designed to ensure stewardship
of donated dollars and financial accountability. Accountability is a top priority. Steps have
already been taken that will lead to meaningful changes in the ways we educate, assess, enforce,
and monitor compliance in all areas, with a special emphasis on financial accountability and the
prevention of compliance problems. We will be implementing-new strategies designed to send
the message to our organization that compliance is a leadership issue.

I look-forward to continuing the dialogue with you and your staff on these important matters.

Sincerely,

cc: The Honorable Max Baucus
Francis E. Reardon, CPA, The Auditor General, Department of The Army
The Honorable David Walker, Comptroller General, U.S. General Accounting Office
The Honorable George J. Mitchell
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American Red Cross Response to
August 12, 2002 Letter from Senator Charles Grassley

Question #1
The August 2001 internal document prepared at Dr. Healy's request entitled
"Emerging Trends in the FY 2001 Operations of Chapters" details findings based
on 80 audits at Red Cross chapters nationwide to reveal serious financial
mi~smanagement Although I request information and documents from the Red
Cross at the end of this letter, here I ask that you explain what steps the Red Cross
has taken or intends to take to remedy each of these problems. If none, explain why
not.

Question #1 Response
The "Emerging Trends in the Qperaions of Chapters" document (published annually by
Audit Services and entitled "Prevalent Audit Findings" prior to 1999) is a widely
disseminated internal management tool used to improve chapter performance and
stewardship. The document reports the consolidated results of all on-site audits by Red
Cross' internal Audit Services for the fiscal year under review. The document identifies
potential issues that if found by a chapter may require modifications of internal control
systems to correct similar problems. In addition, the document provides recommended
solutions and points of contact at national headquarters to assist with resolution. The
Emerging Trends document is used in many settings as an educational and reference tooL
Regional Executive Officers (REOs) use it as part of the training for new and current
managers and new board member orientation. It is posted on the organization's internal
Web site for quick reference.

l regard to the 80 chapter audits referenced in the "Emcrging Trends in the FY 2 00 1
Chapter Operations" document (see Attachment 1), each chapter submitted a corrective
action plan to Audit Services at national headquarters with a copy to the respective REO.
Audit Services reviewed each chapter response for adequacy (iLe., to determine if the
chapter's action plan was responsive to the audit findings and recommendations). Any
inadequate response resulted in the chapter bemig contacted directly by Audit Services.
The REOs were responsible for following up on audit findings and ensuring chapter
resolution.

However, prior to July 1, 2001 (FY 2002) there was no centralized system in place to
ensure consistency of REO follow-up actions. Therefore, starting in Fiscal Year 2002
(July 1, 2001 - June 30, 2002) Red Cross augmented the existing audit review process by
implementing procedures to achieve system-wide, consistent regional review and
resolution of audit findings. The process is as follows:

As inprior years, within 60 days of the on-site review, Audit Services produces a
comprehensive written report of observations, findings and recommendations for each -
chapter and disseminates the report to the chapter executive and board chainnan, and
to Red Cross national headquarters and Regional management personnel.
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* As in prior years, the chapter is required to submit a written response to each of the

audit findin within 45 days of receipt of the report This report is provided to Audit

Services and the REO. The chapter response must document the actions taken by the

chapter to correct the noteciproblem, or plans to resolve the issue, along with the
timeframe for resolution.

In prior years, and with the new process imlemented in Fiscal Year 2002, chapters

that do not implement the necessary corrective actions to findings outlined by Audit

Services can face corporate sanctions from the Regions. These sanctions are imposed

in order to gain full compliance by the chapter. The sanctions vary in severity and
can include:
* termination of employment of the chapter manager, board member or full board

* progressive st'eps toward revocation of the chapter's charter or governance
authority

* withholding of grants or financial support
* Chapter ineligibility for national awards
* individual ineligibility for national positions and recognition.

* New to the audit findings resolution process is an enhanced review by the REO of the

chapter's written response to each finding; validation of the proposed corrective
action; and implementation of the corrective action. The REO advises senior
management When the Audit Review is closed. The REQ's review and follow-up

may include additional on-site education and instruction, submission of additional

documentation or, in the rare case that the chapter is unwilling or unable to correct the

problem, the REO may consider the implementation of sanctions, as noted above.

With the establishment of the -Corporate Policies Education and Training" (CPEI)

program in December 2001, under the direction of the Vice President for Regional

Operations, there is now an office at national headquarters charged with the responsibility
of ensuing organization-wide systems for identification, tracking, monitoring and

resolution of chapter non-compliance issues (including audit findings). The REOs are

directly responsible to the Vice President for ensuring resolution of all audit fidings.

Question #2
Please explain why the Red Cross does not require all chapters to report financial

information to National. Also, identify the approximately 30% of chapter revenue

and assets that National does not review, and state their monetary value. Further,

state whether and how this Red Cross review policy guarantees that chapters
safeguard and account for all funds; minimizes theft or fraud particularly relating
to those assets and revenues that are not reviewed; and guarantees that all
government filings are complete and accurate.

Question #2 Response
Please note that the Red Cross response to Question #27 minthe June 14, 2002 response to

your May 7, 2002 'letter refers to the approval process for chapter budgets. not chapter

financial reporting. which was covered in the response to question #29. The Red Cross
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requires all chapters to report annual financial activity (revenues, expenses, fund

balances, assets and liabilities) to national headquarters

Red Cross policy and practices.regarding financial accountability are reviewed and

modified annually to help ensure greater compliance at the chapter level with effective
oversight from national headquarters. Effective June 30, 2001, the following enhanced
control and accountability measures were implemented

1. The Chair of the chapter board of directors, the Chapter Executive, and the external
auditor are required to sign off on the annual financial statement (previously only the

external auditor was required to sign-off).

2. The Audit Committee of the chapter board must submit minutes of meetings
evidencing review of financial statements to national headquarters Financial
Management for review (minutes have always been required, but were retained
locally).

3. Detailed compensation information for all chapter staff maling more than $150,000
must be submitted annually to national headquarters Financial Management as part of
the Form 990 salary data collection effort (prior requirement was over $200,000).

4. The Chapter Chair and Executive Director are required to sign-off on the IRS Form
990 salary data collection form (previously signed by the preparer, in most cases the
chapter's Director of Human Resources).

5. Chapters are required to submit all OMB Circular A-133 Federal Awards Audits to

national headquarters for review (previous requirement was to retain locally).

6. Copies of external auditor management letters must be sent to the REO as well as

national headquarters Financial Manament (previously only required to be sent to
Financial Management). The findings contained in the external management letters

are reviewed by the Vice President, Regional Operations and Financial Management
to ensure that significant issues cited in the letters are rectified.

These measures were implemented to help ensure greater chapter level accountability to

national headquarters for financial reporting. In combination with the information
outlined for Audit Services and the Chapter Services compliance program (detailed in

response to Question #1), such measures should minimize the potential for fraud or theft

and ensure that government filings are complete and accurate.

We are committed to educating chapter executives and board chairs about these policies,
and ensuring compliance. Training and orientation for chapter executives and board

chairs include:
* Attendance at a day long session on 'Building Chapter Leadership Teams"

* On-site training by state or region staff for new chapter managers within their first
30 days

SFC-ARC-AO01 904
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* Attendance at a three day "Chapter Executive Orientation" session within the first

six months (approximate) of assuming a chapter executive position

* Attendance at a recently piloted "Chapter Chair Academy" to educate new chair

on their unique and critial rle in chapter governance and leadership (a second

session is scheduled for Fall 2002). The Red Cross Chief Executive Officer and

President personally presents infonmation on chapter acountabilit at these

sessions
* Board orientation sessions that are held at each chapter to train new incoming

board members.

Please note that Red Cross requires all of its chapters to have an appropiate level of

external audit review, determined by the level of financial activity. On an annual basis,

chapters with over sroo,ooo in expenses are required to have an external audit performed
of their activities. This requirdnent means hat 97% of all chapter revenues are examined

by an external auditor. Chapters with expenses between $50,000 and $100,000 are

required to have either a formal external audit performed or a review by an independent

CPA (representing 2% of all chapter revenue). Chapters with less than $50,000 in

expenses are required to have an independent review performed of their financial

activities (representing 1% of all chapter revenue). Independent reviews are performed

by a CPA or other person who is independent of the Chapter and has financial

management expertise (e.g., a local banker).

These independent reviews of chapter records and management controls use the

professional auditing standards established by the Amenican Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. In addition, the national headquarters of the Red Cross annually issues

extensive standard guidance to all chapters and their auditors regarding specific items that

need to be reviewed and reported to headquarters,

Question #3
Taken as a whole, these documents reveal a history of serious financial

mismanagement by Red Cross chapters that I find troubling. However, I am more

concerned that Red Cross senior management appears to take an attitude that bad

news from local chapters is all best swept under the rug. The Red Cross'

indifference to these major accountability problems was verbalized by Mr.

Campbell during a CBS EveingNews interview broadcast on July 30, 2002. Please

explain this response in detail (Jack Campbell - "actual we were not troubled by

the results of the audits at all. There was no recognition of any kind of problem'),

particularly Mr. Campbell's apparent lack of concern that hundreds of thousands

of dollars were at risk of not going to the 9-11 victims' fund or worse, of loss or

theft

Also, explain why these infractions occurred despite Red Cross' prior knowledge of

accounting irregularities at the chapter level. Did any ipfraction that KPMG

identified occur at a chapter with a prior financial problem known by Red Cross?

If so, identify that chapter and explain Red Cross' failure to take remedial

measures. Moreover, identify any remedial measure taken in response to KFMG's
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September 27 findings. Firther, please produce all documents relating to these

findings as well as any remedial measure.

Question #3 Response
The Red Cross Board of Govemors and management take very seriously any evidence of

deficient internal controls or financial processes. The four internal docunents

highlighted in your August 12, 2002 letter were each prepared for different purposes and

subsequent actions have been taken on the issues raised.

* The "Emerging Trends" document is a long-standing internal tool that is widely

disseminated with the goal of improving Red Cross chapter performance and

stewardship. it is not used to identify or highlight chapters with troubled finances or

poor accounting practices. The detailed actions that have been taken subsequent to its

publication are outlined in the response to question #M.

* issues outlined in the April-3, 2001 letter from former President and Chief Executive

Officer, Dr. Bernadine Healy, to the Audit Committee Chair and the April 16, 2001

confidential memorandum from Dr. Healy to Red Cross' General Counsel were

initially addressed through new policies implemented on June 30, 2001 (See response

to Question #2 above). The Red Cross continues to examine these issues to

determine necessary actions to ensure appropriate oversight of chapter activity.

* The September 27, 2001 KPMG memo to Red Cross senior management is discussed

below.

CBS Evening News broadcast of July 30, 2002, placed Jack Campbell's expression of

confidence in the financial oversight of contributions following September 11, directly

after reports of four chapters with previously identified and resolved financial problems

(unrelated to September 11). This inaccurate juxtaposition created the false impression

that the Red Cross did not recognize the seriousness of the incidents cited.

Mr. Campbell's comments were in response to questions posed by Ms. Sharyl Atkisson

of CBS concerning the September 27, 2001 memo from our external auditor, KPMG, to

former Red Cross President and CEO Bernadine Healy (see attachment 2). This memo

detailed the results of one-day surprise, spot assessments of a sampling of 27 chapters to

provide Red Cross management with information on how chapters were handling donated

funds immediately after September 11. The basis for choosing these chapters was their

location proximate to the departure and planned arrival locations for-the hijacked planes

(N-1 1) as well as chapters who had been cited previously as having significant audit

findings (N=16).

Conducted on September 18, 2001, exactly one week after the attacks, these reviews were

a proactive stev taken by Red Cross to ensure proper handling of funds. It should be

noted that KPMG's September 27 memo states that most of the issues that were noted in

the assessments had already been identified and addressed by the time KPMG's report

was written. Guidance provided to the chapters prior to and during the time the spot

assessaments were being performed supplied chapters with additional information on the

proper handling of contributions. Additionally, the results of the spot assessments were

SFC-ARC-AO01 906
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used as the basis for management issuing detailed accounting and controls guidance the

following weekL

Mr. Campbell's statement that 9"actually we were not troubled by the results of the audits

at all" was meant to convey that the results of the 27 spot assessments were not indicative

of systemic problems and there was no evidence of fraud or mishandling of funds. We

were aware that there was some confusion by chapters regarding initial coding of

receipts. This can occur whenimail volume after a significant disaster arrives with mail

being returned from solicitations mailed prior to the disaster. Clarification from national

headquarters is typically provided to ensure consistent treatment across the organization.
Supplemental guidance was issued and over 800 chapters were required to have an

independent review by a CPA of contributions handling through October 31, 2001. The

remaining chapters (those with less than $50,000 in annual expenses) were directed by

national headquarters to use a self assessment tool (created by national headquarters) to

assess their proper handling of finds. These measures were intended to mitigate any

significant risk of Liberty Funds being misdirected, lost or stolen at chapters. Please note

that CBS chose to edit Mr. Campbell's remarks withou the benefit of his follow-on
comments which explained, at least in part, the process described above.

Question #4
Importantly, KPMG's findings call into question several Red Cross statements that

all of the funds received in response to the 9-11 attacks were deposited in the

Liberty Fund, and that the Red Cross had and would continue to use the Liberty

Fund for the 9-11 victims. These findings also cast serious doubt that, "The Red

Cross has instituted unprecedented financial procedures and controls to ensure the

highest level of accountability and accuracy in its accounting for contributions to

and disbursements from the Liberty Disaster Relief Fund." (Red Cross response to

Questions #4.) Please explain these apparent inconsistencies.

Question #4 Response
As noted earlier, the 27 surprise reviews were conducted as a proative measure by Red

Cross management to quickly assess chapter contribution processing in order to

detemine what supplemental guidance was necessary to help ensure that these finds

were directed to the Liberty Relief Fund. The Red Cross had never experienced the sheer

volume of charitable donations and the speed with which these fimds were provided to

national headTiarters and our chapters in the hours, days and weeks following the

September 11 attacks. It was our goal to ensure that the best possible guidance was

available to our chapters, and that extraordinary supplemental audit procedures and

special accounting practices were put into place as quickly as possible. A chronology of

the procedures and controls is provided in Attachment 3.

To ensure that all donations intended for September 11 victims were properly accounted

the Red Cross:

Established the separate Iliberty Fund, completely separate from the Disaster Relief
Fund.

6 SrC.ARC.A001907
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Deposited all unsolicited contributions (not specifically designated by a donor, but

payable to "the American Red Cross") in the Liberty Fund from September 11

through September 30, 200Q1. Under normal circunstances, these are considered

unrestricted and available for use in general operations. In addition, all checks

payable to the Disaster Relief Fund from September 11 through October 31, 2001,

: were deposited into the Liberty Fund. Considering the overwhelming response to

September 1 1, we believe this was a prudent policy.

Question #5
To get to the bottom of whether Red Cross has secured all 9-11 donations in the

Liberty Fund for thie exclusive use of the victims and holds its chapters accountable,

please provide detailed responses to the following questions:

Question #5.1
I have received information that at least one chapter has not yet turned over all

donations meant for the Liberty Fund. Identify that chapter and any others that

have not turned over these donations, explain why not, and identify any penalty

imposed against that chapter.

Question #5.1 Response

As organization-wide compliance systems are being improved we continue to review the

handling of Liberty Relief Funds by our chapters. In addition, KPMG is currently

completing a separate audit of the Liberty Relief Fund, as part of the annual audit of

American Red Cross' consolidated financial statements. An update will be provided to

you on or about November 15, 2002. The information garnered through these two steps

will give us an accounting of Liberty Fund receipts-and remittances from the chapters.

With regard to the one chapter mentioned above, in response to an allegation from a

former chapter employee, Audit Services performed an audit of the Fresno-Madera

Counties Chapter processing of donations for the Liberty Relief During the audit it was

discovered that the chapter had failed to remit monies to the Liberty Relief Fund due to

the incorrect coding of donations. The chapter board was informed and the chapter

executive subsequently resigned. Funds were remitted to the Liberty Relief Fund.

Question #5.2
For the past three years, identify any chapter that failed to provide -any required

financial information to any Red Cross governing body (Le. National) in full or on

time.

Question #5.2 Response
We are currently tabulating chapter submissions of fiscal year 2002 financial information

and will forward to you a summary of chapters that are delinquent, if any.
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For fiscal years 2001 and 2000, the chart below summarizes chapter reporting

compliance. The definition of late is greater than 30 days past the due date for chapters

operating on an accrual basis, and 60 days for those operating on a cash basis.

On-time LaNot Received Total

FY 2001 849 81% 183 17% 18 2% 1,050

TW9AAA g95 80% 188 I 16% 1 40 1 4% 1,123 d

In FY 2001, of the 18 chapters not submitting information, all forfeited their charters and

they no longer exist as a chapter. In FY 2000, of the 40 chapters not submitting

information, 39 forfeited their charters and they no longer exist as a chapter. The one

remaining chapter never submitted a report, the chapter manager was replaced and a

report was received for fiscal year 2001. (See Attachment 4 for the list of chapters which

did not submit information in FY 2001 and 2000.)

Question #5.3
Red Cross' answer to Question #29 is unclear as to whether there are guidelines for

uniform record keeping and financial reporting by the regions and chapters ("In

regard to uniform record keeping and reporting, chapters use standard charts of

accounts for accounting purposes.") Please clarify this response including what is

meant by Istandhrd charts of accounts."

Question #5.3
Guidelines for uniform record keeping and financial reporting are included in the

Financial Manual of Policy and Procedures that governs chapter reporting and financial

record-keeping (see attachment 5). As shown in the enclosed table of contents, guidance

is comprehensive. Annual and interim reporting is required on standard forms. The

standard forms are web-based and automated to eliminate math errors and automatically

perform audit cross checks of information from form-to-form. This gives much greater

assurance of uniform reporting throughout the chapter system.

In order to complete the forms and to ensure consistent data collection for our annual

report and Federal Form 990, chapters are provided with the "standard chart of accounts."

The standard chart of accounts is the common coding structure for all transactions, which

helps ensure uniform reporting and enhanced internal controls (e.g. same codes

prescribed to record expenses for travel, salaries, supplies, etc.).

Question #5.4
For the past three years, identify any investigation involving allegations of

mismanagement or fraud by any Red Cross officer, director, employee or volunteer.

Also, state the status of the investigation and whether any settlement or penalty

resulted, and identify the settlement amount or penalty,
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Question #5.5
For the past three years, identify all Red Cross officials who have left their positions
under circumstances involving allegations of mismanagement or fraud. State
whether any internal disciplinary proceeding was conducted or whether any lawsuit
or charges was fied against the individual and the status of that action. Also, state
whether he or she was allowed to retain benefits or transfer to another chapter and,
If so, explain why.

Question #5.4 and 5.5 Combined Response
The Red Cross Misappropriation Policy requires employees and volunteers to report
allegations of mismanagement or fraud. Revised and updated in August 2001, this policy
is posted on the Red Cross intranet site and has been highlighted to paid staff and
volunteers a number 6f times (See Attachment 6). Under the Misappropriation Policy
paid and volunteer staff must ieport all suspected or actual dishonest acts committed
against a Red Cross Unit by an internal or external source. The policy defines "dishonest
acts" as misappropriations, acts of fraud, unethical behavior, Code of Conduct violations
and external criminal activity and outlines reporting requirements.

If one suspects or is aware of a dishonest act committed against a Red Cross unit, the
employee or volunteer must immediately notify the lead person overseeing the Red Cross
unit If a staff member believes that a member of local management is involved in a
dishonest act, the staffmermber can report the act to the Region overseeing the chapter.
Local or regional management, as applicable, must report the act to the Office of General
Counsel (OGC) within 24 hours of receiving the information. The OGC requires the Red
Cross unit or individual to complete a Misappropriation Report (See Attachment 7).
OGC then leads the investigation into the allegation, and works with the appropriate Red
Cross office(s) to ensure resolution, including appropriate legal action. The Red Cross
pursues prosecution with appropriate law enforcement authorities of any individuals
involved in criminal acts against the Red Cross. Further, we seek restitution whether it is
through the criminal or civil court system or other available means.

A Fraud Awareness Task Force ('Task Force") exists to facilitate response to reported
misappropriations. The mission of the Task Force is to ensure that timely, objective and
appropriate actions are taken relative to the occurrence of nfisappropriations within the
Red Cross. Members of the Task Force include representatives from the Office of
General Counsel, Audit Services, Risk Management, Chapter Services, Biomedical
Services, and Communications and Marketing. The Task Force maintains data on those
incidents that are reported under the Misappropriation Policy.

Acts such as theft, misuse of Red Cross funds and assets, and fiaud by an individual
results in termination of the individual's employee or volunteer position. Again, criminal
prosecution is pursued when appropriate. For example, each incident of
misapropriation reported in CBS's Eye on America pieceon July 29,2002 had been
previously reported through the Red Cross's Misappropriation Policy and the appropriate
remedial action had been taken mcluding seeking criminal prosecution and restitution.
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Based on the dam reported to the Fraud Awareness Task Force through the
Misappropriation Policy, there were 34 incidents of misappropiations, acts of fraud, or
unethical behavior in the past three years (See Attachment 8).

Question #5.6
Identify and explain the circumstances for the "five involuntarily decharters"
referenced in your response to Question #24.

Question #5.6 Response
The purpose of rechartering is to certify that chapters have the capacity to deliver the
requisite services to their community and to meet all other chapter requirements in our
corporate regulations. The responsibility for fi]filling the requirements of rechartering
flls on the Chapter Executive and the Chapter Board of Directors. Board of Governors
Policy Manual, Part Two, Section 5.12 outlines 33 recharteing criteria that must be met
for a chapter to maintain its charter. These criteria focus on service delivery, chapter
governance, financial stewardship and resource development When the criteria have
been met, the local chapter board certifies their achievement, the Regional Committee
confi their performance, and the Board of Governors grants a new charter to the
chapter.

When a chapter is unable to meet the rechartering criteria and unwilling to acknowledge
performance deficiencies, the Board of Governors has established a multi-step
involuntary dechartering process to ensure local communities have a full opportunity to
meet the standards and, thereby, maintain a chapter charter. The process includes
certified notification to the chapter by the Region outlining deficiencies, a 30 day
response period, on-site hearing appeals options at both the Regional and Board of
Governors level, repeated review by the Regional Committee, and a comprehensive
review by the Board of Governor's Disaster and Chapter Services Committee. All of
these activities occur prior to the full Board of Governors consideration of the
involuntary dechartering recommendation.

The five chapters that were involuntarily dechartered by action of the Board of Governors
did not meet the rechartering criteria and would not acknowledge deficiencies outlined by
national headquarters. The five chapters were:
1. May, 2000 Sauk County Chapter, Baraboo, WI
2. May, 2001 Westmoreland County Chapter, Montross, VA
3. October, 2001 Mendocino County Chapter, Uldah, CA
4. February, 2002 Buena Vista-Chapter, Buena Vista, VA
5. February, 2002 Unicoi County Chapter, Erwin, TN

Please note that there are other chapters where Regional Committees have initiated the
involuntary dechartering process. However, at some point in the invohmtary
dechartering process, the chapter boards aclmowledged performance problems and
choose voluntary charter forfeiture, rather than involuntary dchartering.
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Question #5.7
It is my understanding that the Red Cross has a strong policy that the chapters

should be financially self-sufficient. The CBS Evening News reported on July 31,

2002, that the Red Cross has allowed chapters to receive money from the National

Disaster Fund more that 3,000 times last year. Please list all income to and

expenditures from the National Disaster Fund from Fiscal Year 2000 to the present.

This list should include but not be limited to all chapter "Form 903" requests as well

as chapter accruals and advances. The list should also disclose the purpose of each

Form 903 request (ie. the precise reason why the chapter requested the funds).

Also, describe the method by which the Red Cross approves or denies each 903

request as well as the procedures in place to ensure, after it approves the request,

that the chapter properly use the "903" fauds.

Question #5.7 Response
The American Red Cross is a single national corporation, with 987 chapters in

communities nationwide. To ensure that the Red Cross meets the needs of disaster

victims without regard to a community's ability to finacially support such relief,

chapters can request reimbursement from the national Red Cross Disaster Relief Fund if

they cannot meet disaster costs on their own. The Disaster Relief Fmd provides the

financial assurance that the Red Cross can respond to more than 67,000 disasters each

year, including floods, fires, hurricanes and more. The Fund enables Red Cross staff and

volunteers to respond immediately to disasters and ensuring that victims receive

comparable assistance regardless of the visibility of the disaster or the ability of the

community to support Red Cross efforts.

InFY 2001 (the period of time cited by CBS) the Red Cross spent $285* million on its

disaster program. During that year, chapters spent $55.3 million of locally raised funds

on disaster assistance in their communities. That same year, chapters received $3.3

million from the national Disaster Relief Fund to cover expenses for recurring local

disaster operations and $1.6 million to cover expenses for non-recurring disaster

operations where the chapter needed financial assistance (total of $4.9 million). When

reimbursements for non-recurring local disasters and larger major disasters that were

administered by local chapters are added, the total Disaster Relief Fund monies received

by chapters rises to $12 million. (See attachment 9 for the Oist of income and expenditures

from the National Disaster Relief Fund from FY 00 to the present)

Chapters are responsible for raising appropriate revenues to cover the costs of operating

their chapter and providing services to their community. In the event of a national

disaster, corporate management can determine that a chapter is unlikely to be able to

flilli its funid-raising obligations and can authorize other fundraising to ensure disaster

relief is provided to all those in need. Therefore, if a chapter does not have sufficient

financial, human or other resources to respond to the victims of a disaster, they can

request assistance from the national Disaster Relief Fund. As such, the Disaster Relief

Fund serves as the financial "safety net" to ensure uninterrupted delivery of services.
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Under the National Disaster Reimbursement Program, each chapter is required to locally

fund an annual disaster relief budget based on its most recent five-year disaster relief

experience. To seek reimbursement from the Program a chapter must provide a 5- year

disaster history detailing the iindividual disaster incidents for each year and related costs.

This information is used to establish a minimum annual disaster relief budget baseline

which the chapter must fund through local donaitions and individual disaster evexit

expense levels where chapters must fund disaster events below this amount. 903 finds

are a reimbursement for specific disaster expenses already incurred and paid for by the

hapters.

Question #5.8
Information that I have received indicates that, contrary to the Red Cross' response
to Questions #26, the organization may receive more that 5% of its funds from
federal, state, and local government sources and that in many chapters this amount

frequently exceeds 30 -40%. Please clarify your response and identify all chapters

at which government funds (federal, state, and /or local) comprise more than 10%
of the chapter budget

Question #5.8 Response
For the past two Red Cross fiscal years (2001 and 2000) government grant and contact

funding did not exceed 4% of total Red Cross revenues. The average for the past five

years has been 4.6%. The data in Attachment 13 of the June 14, 2002 response to your

May 7, 2002 letter (question #26) documents these percentages.

There are 70 chapters where government grants and contracts exceed 10% of revenues

(see attachment 1O for a list of these chapters). Government revenues for all chapters

account for nine percent of chapter total revenues. The four percent figure reported in

our initial response takes into account government grants and contracts to the entire

organization including Biomedical Services and national headquarters.

Question #5.9
Please produce the following documents for the past three-year time frame:

a. Minutes of the Board of Governors and Executive, Audit, and Fance
Committees;

b. Copies of management letters and audit reports ofchapters
performed by the internal or external auditor, and

c. Copies of all reviews or summaries of locally-performed chapter
audits by the internal and external auditor.

Question #5.9 Response
Under separate cover, Larry Moore, Interim General Counsel will deliver to your office

per agreement with Dean Zerbe and Faith Cristol of the Senate Finance Committee staff

the following
Agendas for the Board of Governors and Executive, Audit and Finance
Committees from August 1999 through August 2002
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* Copies of management letters from internal and external audits of chapters
where material weaknesses were identified for FY 2000 and 2001. FY 2002
management letters are still being reviewed and processed and a complete
summary and set of letters is not available at this time.

Question #5.10
Has the Red Cross considered strengthening accountability to the Congress and the
Executive by adding independent compensation and audit committees as wel as
active board members who are independent of chapters?

Question #5.10 Response
As detailed in our June 14, 2002 response, the Congressional Charter mandates the
composition of the Ainerican Red Cross Board of Goverors, including the total number

of members and how they are dhosen. Eight governors are appointed by the President of

the United States, with one designated as the "principal officer of the corporation" (Chair
of the Board of Governors). With the exception of the chair, the remainder of the
presidential appointees "shall be officials of departments and agencies of the Federal
Government", with at least one, but not more than three selected from the Armed Forces.

Thirty members of the Board of Governors are nominated by the chapters and elected by

the voting delegates to the National Convention. These individuals have chapter
volunteer leadership experience, and consideration is given to geographic and
demographic representation. These community leaders provide the entire Board of

Governors and management with a first hand view of service delivery at the community
level, thus enabling the Board and management to enact policies that maximize service

delivery. Further, while serving on the Board of Governors, these representatives are not

permitted to hold any other appointed, elected or voting governance position or volunteer
management position in the Red Cross, unless appointed or elected by the Chair of the
Corporation.

In addition, there are 12 members-at-large chosen to provide a national, or public
perspective. In the Report of the Advisory Committee on Organization ("Harriman
Report", Jume 11, 1946) which led to the 1947 amendment of the Red Cross
Congressional Charter (36 USC §1 et. seq.), the Committee noted that

"The members-at-large would not be selected directly by the chapters, but by the

entire Board of Governors, including the eight appointed members. They were to
be chosen with a view to obtain outstanding individuals with a national outlook
[emphasis added] and also to obtain the affiliation of religious, professional,
scientific and other elements with which the Red Cross should work closely."

A recent change to the Board of Governors committee structure has elevated the
oversight of compensation to the Governance Committee from a subcommittee leveL As
we improve our compliance processes we are working closely with the Audit Committee.

We are taking steps to implement meaningful changes in the way we educate, assess,
enforce, and monitor compliance in all areas, with a special emphasis on financial
accountability. Congressional oversight through the jurisdiction of several congressional
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13

:� tc .,! II., �.'A-" .�-..-,�-,%.Z_.,-�.-:-. ... ... .- _-



committees provides appropriate accountability of the Red Cross to Congress and the
American people. We believe that the current structure of the Governance and Audit
Committees ensures appropriate independence from management and chapter influence.
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American
Red Cross

Together w e am sav a 1EJ

Chairman McLaughlin and

Members of the Board of
Governors

Date:

Subject:

September 20, 2002

Harold Decker

It is with a sense of deep regret that I announce Harold Decker's decision to leave the American

Red Cross. We owe a debt of gratitude for his exceptional service to this organization during a

time of crisis and intense scrutiny.

Harold's talents became evident very quickly after he arrived at the Red Cross in February of

foiiowing a successful career in the pharmaceutical industry. Hired as the Associate

General Counsel, Harold immediately went to work rebuilding the legal staff and restructunng

responsibilities within the office of the General Counsel. Throughout this process, Harold's first

priority was determining how to best serve the needs of the chapters and insuring that the General

Counsel's office added value to the needs and requirements of our field structure.

Within a matter of months, Harold was elevated to Corporate Secretary and General Counsel of

the Red Cross. Very shortly thereafter, the Board of Governors asked Harold to assume the

duties of Interim President and Chief Executive Qfficer (CEO). This request, made after the

unexpected departure of his predecessor, was a clear reflection of the Board's confidence in his

capacity to provide inspiration and leadership in those difficult days. Harold's courage in

accepting this position, and the leadership that followed, guided this organization through the

turmoil of the post September 11 response. Through press conferences, dozens of media

appearances, and outreach to members of Congress and government, Harold worked tirelessly to

regain the public's trust in our organization. He provided stability within the Red Cross when

*tle organization needed it most.

Atra moment like this it is not sufficient to list Harold's significant accomplishments- there is

much more to his tenure. I believe the most significant term we can use is "legacy." If any one

of us can come to an organization and leave a legacy for others to follow, then we will have

served in the most profound way. Harold Decker leaves a significant legacy, one that is deeply

etched in the long history of this proud organization. We will all miss him and are deeply

grateful for his service to the American Red Cross and the nation. Please join me in

congratulating Harold on a job well done and wishing him and his family Godspeed in the years

to come.
I
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National HeadquartwS
Offfce of the President and CEO

Togetli; we can sav a lJe

Chairman Mcdaughlin and

Members of the Board of

Governors

Date:

Subject:Marty Evans

September 20, 2002

Alan McCurry Named COO

Ai: ' -. is thke. announcement of our new Chief Operating Of ricer Alan McCurry and the

:unctional realignment of NHQ designed to fully support our effigt to develop the Disaster

Service Line of Service improvements and to build our Chapter capacity. Many of you had the

,,,,opprttyto meet Alan at our retreatX I know you will find him to be a great asset to the

American Red Cross team.
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Alan McCrry Named COO

The following message is from Marty Evans, President and CEO:

I am pleased to announce that Alan McCurry. Military Legislative Assistant to Senator Pat

Roberts of Kansas, will join national headquarters on October 7,s2002 as our ne Chief

Operating Officer (COO). As COO, Alan will be tasked with integrating resources and support

functions to assist Terry Sicilia, our newly named Execu iVe Vice President for Disaster Services

in his efforts to successfully build disaster preparation and response programs to meet the

requirements of the future while continuing to fully respond to the crises of today. To that end, I

have realigned several functions under the COO. They are Disaster Services, the Chapter

Services Network, International Services, Growth and Integrated Development, He

Resources and Organization Development, and Information Technology. The last three

organizational units will still be providing services to all other parts of the organization. I can

assure you that this reorganization is evidence of my commitment to this premier Line of Service

and will also enable me to spend more time in the field with Red Cross units.

Before joining Senator Roberts' staff as the principle advisor on issues ranging from homeland

security to foreign affairs, Alan enjoyed a distinguished career in the U.S. Navy. As acting

commander of the Navy Recruiting Command, he led a successful organization that recruted

55,OQO men and women into the Navy annually. He also served as the liaison officer for the U.S.

Rq55,0e0ta0 ve to the Military Committee at NATO, commanding officer of the USS Dixon, and

seryd n the staff of the Joint Chiefs of Staff.
!c p. th stf

A graduate of the University of Kansas and the Industrial-College of the Armed Forces, Alan

completed graduate level studies in the areas of national mobilization. industrial preparedness.

joint and combined operations planning and the management of resources for national security.

As COO, Alan will enhance our organization's ability to provide the seamless delivery of Red

Cross services-especially disaster preparedness and response-that the public has come to expect

I hope you will join me in welcoming Alan McCurry to the American Red Cross team.
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AKIN GUMP
STRAUSS HAUER & FELDLLP

Attorneys at Law

STEVEN ROSS
202.887.4343/fax: 202.887.4288
sross@akingump.com

January 31, 2006

VIA MESSENGER

Dean Zerbe
Tax Counsel
Committee on Finance
SD-219 Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510-6200

Dear Dean:

On behalf the American Red Cross, we are providing a second set of documents in
response to Chairman Grassley's letter of December 29, 2005. This document production
includes documents requested in Section A and Section D of the Chairman's letter. For the
Committee's convenience, we have sequentially numbered the documents. This set of
documents are labeled SFC-ARC 000001 to SFC-ARC 002321 and SFC-ARC D000818 to
SFC-ARC D000910.

Steven Ross
Robin Weisman

cc: Mary S. Elcano
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
American Red Cross

Robert S. Strauss Building / 1333 New Hampshire Avenue, N.W. / Washington, D.C. 20036-1564 / 202.887.4000 / fax: 202.887.4288 / www.akingump.com



American
Red Cross

t

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. Mclaughlin
Chairman

December 20, 2002

Mary S. Elcano
5606 Namakagan Road
Bethesda, MD 20816

Dear Mary,

I was delighted to learn from Marty that you had accepted the position
of General Counsel at the American Red Cross. Congratulations to you and
the Red Cross. You will make a great addition to the management team and to
the Board's support system.

With best wishes for an enjoyable holiday and a fulfilling New Year.

Regards,

David T. McLaughlin

bcc: Marty Evans

Together, we can save a life
SFC-ARC-AO01 645
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American
Red Cross

National Headquarters.
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

December 20, 2002

Gregory A. Kozmetsky
P.O. Box 1787
Austin, TX 78767

Dear Greg,

I was delighted to have an opportunity to visit with you and Marty last
week. After reading your CV, I was anxious to meet you to learn how one can
keep as many balls in the air as you do and be a positive contributor to each of
them. You really are remarkable.

We will propose to the Executive Committee your election as a
Governor at large of the American Red Cross at our meeting in mid January
which will be the effective date of your joining the board. Hook forward to
working with you and until then wish you and your family an enjoyable
holiday and a fulfilling New Year.

Warm regards,

David T. McLaughlin

cc: Marty Evans

Together, we can save a life

('
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American Red Cross National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

Norman R.Augustine
Chairman

- MEMORANDUM

Board of Governors
Members

SUBJECT:

DATE:

Board Self Assessments
CEO Evaluation

March 16, 2001

Bernadine Healy, M.D.

Last May we implemented a self-assessment for the Board of Governors and, at Dr.
Healy's request, an annual CEO evaluation. Board self-assessments have become a standard and
important governance practice for boards of directors and I hope that each of you takes the time
to complete and return the evaluations.

The Board self-assessment consists of two parts: the first is an assessment each member
completes regarding the Board as a whole. The second is an assessment each individual
completes regarding his or her own performance on the Board. The purpose of the second
assessment is to ensure that each member has a process by which to evaluate him or herself. In
addition, it can identify weaknesses in Board orientation practices or Board development
procedures.

Please return the completed evaluations to the National Association of Corporate
Directors (NACD) in the appropriate envelopes by March 30. Each envelope is marked with a
code for easier handling by the NACD. Please ensure that the code at the bottom of each page of
the assessment matches the code on the envelope so that envelopes are not misdirected. The
NACD will provide an unattributed compilation of results for our use.

Thank you in advance for your participation in this important process.
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American Red Cross Board of Governors
SELF-ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE

Evaluation Questions

Roles and Responsibilities
Governors understand the organization's values, mission.
and strategic intent.

Governors understand the Board's oversight and policy-making
role (governance) vs. the president & CEO's management

role.

The Board reviews the long-range strategic plan annually and

assesses its achievement.

The Board has effective procedures and standards to minimize
and disclose conflicts of interest.

Board & CEO
There is mutual trust between the Board and the president
& CEO.

The Board supports the president & CEO.

The Board challenges the president & CEO.

The Board evaluates the president & CEO annually and has a
mechanism in place to provide candid feedback.

Risk Issues
The Board reviews significant risk exposures.
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Evaluation Questions

Financial Oversight
The Board reviews and approves annual operating plans
and annual budget.

The Board monitors key financial indicators.

Board Role in Fund Raising
The Board regularly reviews fund raising plans and
assesses performance against the plan.

The Board is regularly informed about the sources of funds
and understands the fund raising strategy for the organization.

Board members, individually, understand the obligation to
obtain financial support for the organization.

The Board has a policy on the individual Board member's
responsibility make a financial contribution.

Board Member Development
Orientation of new Governors is effective and informative.

The Mentor Program provides. information that helps new
<.no/vrnntc ~ -__. -3+Vl"~rfn n 4M.l1 f-0 11.>k;;a
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Board Meetings - Effectiveness
The Board focuses on appropriate governance issues.

The Board receives clear, consise and relevant
read-ahead information in a timely manner.
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Evaluation Questions

Timely resolution of issues occurs at meetings.

Executive sessions are candid and constructive.

Committee Meetings - Effectiveness
The current committee structure is appropriate.

Committee meetings focus on strategic issues.

Committee members contribute to discussion in a meaningful
way.

Committee meetings are conducted with open communication.

Timely resolution of issues occurs at committee meetings.

The number of committee meetings per year is effective.

Adequate time is allowed for committee meetings.

Board Effectiveness
The Board effectively manages its leadership and succession

Pianmllng.

Overall, the Board is effective.
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( AMERICAN RED CROSS
SELF EVALUATION OF INDIVIDUAL
BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEMBERS

Please evaluate your performance as a member of the Board of Governors. Please
indicate your level of performance in each category by placing an "X" under the
appropriate performance heading.

Performance Level:

Excellent = accomplishes goals beyond reasonable expectations
Good = attains goals in a manner reasonably expected
Needs Improvement = shows lack of progress toward goals

Excellent Good

1. Understands the complexity of strategic,
business and policy issues.

2. Participates meaningfully in Board and
committee Meetings.

3. Actively participates in special assignments.

4. Works cooperatively with other Board
members, senior management and staff.

5. Is open to making changes in the
organization.

6. Respects the Board's governance role.

7. Is willing to present a dissenting view or
make unpopular decisions, when necessary.

8. Listens to and considers other ideas and
opinions.

9. Supports majority decisions.

10. Continually expands relevant knowledge.

3101

Needs
Improvement

SFC-ARC-A00I 6 5 3
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Excellent Good Needs
Improvement

12.

12.

Prepares adequately for Board meetings.

Maintains confidentiality.

Provides effective leadership to Board.

Evaluator's signature Date

(.
SFC-ARC-AO01 654
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Questions

Financial Results - -

Establishes appropriate annual and longer term financial objectives and manages ARC to
consistently achieve these goals. Ensures that appropriate systems are maintained
to protect assets and maintain effective control of operations.

Comments:

Succession Planning
Develops, attracts, retains, motivates, and supervises an effective top management
team capable of achieving ARC's objectives. Provides for management succession.
Comnments*

Human Resources/EEO
Ensures the development and communication of effective recruitment, training,
retention and personnel plans and programs to provide and motivate
the necessary human resources to achieve objectives. Establishes and monitors
programs to enhance team-building and provide equal opportunity for minority
employees; encourages a diverse workforce.
Comments:

kmerican Red Cross I
oqr-enuai, Page 2
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Questions

Communications/External
Serves as ARC's chief spokesperson, communicating effectively with all of its
stakeholders. Represents ARC in community and industry affairs.
Comments:

Board
Works closely with the Board of Governors to keep them fully informed on all important
aspects of the status and development of ARC. Facilitates the Board's governance,
composition and committee structure. Implements Board policies and recommends
policies for Board consideration.
Commnents

Style of Management
Motivates personal and company performance with management style. Respected as
a role model for principles, values and behavior. Is building and retaining a strong
management team to face a challenging future.
Comments:
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Memorandun

To: Terry Sicilia

-From: David McLaughlin

Date: 12/03/02

Re: Trained Dogs for Disaster Relief Agencies

I bring this to you as I am not sure where else the inquiry should go. I was
approached by some folks in New Hampshire about an initiative that they are
anxious to pursue that could involve the Red Cross. It involves using dogs and
handlers that are trained to assist disaster relief agencies in dealing with trauma and
stress related situations.

This group of individuals is led by Jeanie Plant who has picked up on the idea from
the use of dogs for search and rescue procedures only in this instance the dogs, or
other animals, would be trained and registered for in trauma or emotional stress to
connect with reality.

They would like to undertake a pilot program with the Concord Chapter and
possibly other disaster relief agencies in the State to prove out the procedures and
the concept. From the ARC standpoint, I assume that we would need to designate
someone in the chapter to work with them and to give them credibility assuming that
Mary Ann Leon and the Chapter were willing to do -so.

Any thoughts that you have on this would be helpful.

Thanks.

cc: Marty Evans
bcc: Jeannie Plant

SFC-ARC.AOO166
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American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

-a . xr U L
Lmavlu 1. im-o'utour

Chairman

January 22, 2002

Mr. Harold Decker
Interim President and CEO
American Red Cross
430 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

Harold:

A point of clarification--

When I was in Geneva, we met with the G-24 Group - the largest national society
funding group of the Federation. At that time they said that the Governing Board had
passed the enclosed resolution.

(
Bill Usher, as the Chair of the Finance Committee - indicated at the meeting that if the
ARC did not remit by February, they. would need to curtail their budget and would
necessarily start proceedings to remove the ARC from the Federation. He said quite
clearly that once the process to remove a member is initiated, it is very difficult to abort
that course of action. It was at that point that I indicated that we understood that we may
be forced to leave the Federation, if they withdrew our recognition, but that our Board
had reaffirmed its policy and that we hoped that a way to admit MDA could be found, as
soon as possible.

While there was not a formal resolution to initiate the divorce proceedings, it was implied
in the enclosed and stated quite clearly at the meeting. This does not change our policy
and time is probably on our side, but it would be nice to get this issue off the Federation's
and our agenda.

David T. Mc Laughlin

Enclosure

Together, we can save a (ife SFC-ARC-A001 662
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American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washingt DC 20006

-Lavlu i. mcmaugnum
Chainrmn

December 17, 2001

Abe Pollin
Chairman of the Board and CEO
Washington Sports & Entertainment
MCI Center
601 F Street N.W.
Washington, DC 20004

Dear Abe:

I enjoyed our visit last week and appreciate your coming over to Red Cross Square. Your
nomination of Terry L. Liernan for the Presidency of the Red Cross looks inspired. He

r has a wonderful background and your endorsement of him is even more important. I
have forwarded this to the Search Committee and will keep you advised of their progress

( after the first of the year.

Enclosed are the materials on the new E Street building of the Red Cross. In January, I
would like to have you meet with one. or two of our staff who are responsible for the
building and its finding to take advantage of your experience with. projects of this
magnitude -and to solicit your ideas- on, how we might attract some significant
contributions through naming opportunities.

Until then, you have my best wishes for an enjoyable holiday, and a healthy and fulfilling
New Year.

Regards

David T. McLau

DTM.jk

Bcc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz
Jack Campbell

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-A001 663
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National Headquarters
Americanl 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006(
David T. Mc~aughlin
Chairman

January 17, 2002

Frank Donaghue
Interim Executive, Communications and Marketing
American Red Cross
Washington, DC

Frank,

I spoke with Dede Seymour, former Governor, in SF today- her concerns and counsel
were:

- The Former Governors, led by their Chair, Sarah Schwartz, receive no information on
issues, talking points, etc and yet they are still perceived as representing the RC and
want to help. She wants me to call Sarah, but asks that the former governors be put
on the regular mailing list and given talking points so that they can respond on key

- issues.

- Jim Topping is a very effective spokesperson for ARC but is not being kept informed
and has never heard back from national regarding questions that he has raised. This
needs to be corrected and connected.

- She wants me to get back to her on 1) Armenia - have we abandoned this program,
are we pulling back, what is our status: 2) Turkey - where are we, do we still have
money being held there, what is the status and 3) with hurricane Mitch disaster relief
funds, have we spent the money, and if not, what are our plans and how do we justify
holding money when people are suffering ?? She feels that we have a big
vulnerability here.

Can you help us get on top of these issues as I need to get back to her with "actions
taken" and to call Sarah. Please let me know.

CC: Harold Decker
Gerry Jones

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC.AOO1 6 6 4
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National Headquarters
American . 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. Mclaughlin
Chairman

January 17, 2002

Mr. Juan Manuel Suarez del Toro R.
President
International Federation of Red Cross

And Red Crescent Societies
Post Office Box 372
CH-121 Geneva 19
SWITZERLAND

Dear Mr. Suarez del Toro;

I appreciated receiving your letter of January 8 regarding my potential visit to Geneva.
Unfortunately I will now be unable to travel during the proposed dates and regret that I
will have to postpone our visit. However, I am pleased to learn that Mr. Cherpitel will be
meeting with Harold Decker in New York on January 30th. I am sure it will be a
productive day of dialogue regarding matters of mutual interest.

I would like to extend a warm invitation to you to visit our National Headquarters in
Washington to meet with me and our senior leadership team, to see our facilities and
programs, and to visit with various government leaders. Your schedule permitting, I hope
this trip might be possible in late February or early March. Gerry Jones, Vice President
of International Services, will be in touch with your staff to discuss the possibility and
scheduling for such a visit.

I look forward to building upon the cooperative spirit we discussed at the General
Assembly in last November and would be honored to have you as our guest in
Washington.

David T. McLaughlin

Cc: Didier Cherpitel, Secretary General, International Federation
Harold Decker, Interim CEO and President, American Red Cross

( Gerald Jones, Vice President, International Services

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01666 '
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American Red Cross
| ~~~~~~~~~~~~~Washingon, D-C.

To: Board of Governors Date: January 16, 2002

From: DavidMcLaughlin Subject: Update on Major Issues

Harold Decker

We have tried to assure that the Board of Governors has been kept informed regarding major

initiatives and priorities that have been announced in the past months, including most notably,

the appointment of former Senate Majority Leader George Mitchell who will serve as

independent overseer of the Liberty Fund. We also want to bring you up to date on other efforts

underway throughout the organization. This'is'the first in a series of regular communications to

you; you can expect to hear from us shortly after each meeting of the Executive Committee.

As mentioned above;Senator George Mitchell has agreed to become the independent overseer of

K. ' the Liberty Fund and will help us ensure that the ongoing and long-term needs of those affected

by September 11 are met, including economic assistance, health-care and vocational training.

The American Red Cross has not ceded responsibility; rather, we have further opened the fund to

public scrutiny and to someone who enjoys the firm trust of the American people. An

experienced group of A.merican Red Cross disaster service delivery experts, led by Bob Bender,

CEO of the American Red Cross in Greater New York, has recommended the outline of a plan to

spend the $360 million'in Liberty Fund contributions that has not yet been committed. We will

present an overview of this strategy to'the Executive Committee on January 18 and will hold a

press conference in New York on January 31 when we will share our plans with the public.

Most recently, you received our update on the search for a new President and CEO. Ambassador

Jones and our executive search firrn, Russell Reynolds Associates, will be working on a more

detailed timetable which will be shired with you atthe Board retreat in February.

Separately, you will soon be receiving from Corporate Secretary Andrea Morisi the schedule and.

other details for the February meeting of the Board of Governors. We have made changes to our

traditional timetable, Including adding tmne for areteat, that I hope you will End

accommodating-.

As Harold.said in Dallas on January 4, we will mobilize disaster volunteers and services quicker

by making structured changes in our disaster services operations and the Disaster Serices

Human Resources system To do that, we will conduct an'intemal and external review of our

processes with a greater focus on customers. Front-line workers will be.empowered to administer

programs, make decisions and make sure'people's needs are met

SFC-ARC-AO01 667
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Our efforts to reiterate our long-standing and unchanged position on Magen David Adom

continue to be met with lingering confusion. We remain steadfast and unwavering in our belief

that MDA must be accorded full membership in our Movement as is its right. We will bring a

statement of mutual agreement with theMDA to the Executive Committee for their review and

will share this with you in February. Opw telationship .with MDA must be truly mutual We can

learn much from them in the areas of attracting volunteers and responding to terronsim. Harold

and I had the recent pleasure of meeting with MDA Director General Avi Zohar, and we are

continuing our strategy of targeting media in key markets like New York and Washington to

reestablish our position.

You have urged Harold and me to address the need for us to communicate more effectively from

national headquarters. In that regard, Harold has made several changes in that area, hiring Bob

Chlopak, partner of Chlopak Leonard Schecter and Associates, and Rob Rehg, general manager,

Edelman Public Relations Worldwide, to hone our messaging. We have also engaged Jackson,

Jackson and Wagner to recommend ways to effectively restructure the current Communication

and Marketing Department-you can be assured that field input and focus are part of our strategy.

We will share management's broad recommendations with the Executive Committee on January

18.

As regards one media issue in particular, we are still expectng the 60 Minutes broadcast to focus

on the Red Cross using the recent public relations problems in the San Diego/Imperial County

Chapter as a news hook Each of us has met with the chapter's leadership and expressed our

concerns on how the situation has been handled. We are hopeful that a very targeted plan for

action will show results. Management will continue to monitor the chapter's performance.

One key challenge in the wake of the recent negative press and other issues surrounding the

overwhelming giving for September 11 is to help chapters raise money to pay for the disasters

they face every day. To this end, we plan to conduct research on messaging and have organized a

special committee of the Board, headed by Pat Kennedy, who will work with management to

examine fund raising policies. Harold has also asked Grenzebach, Glier and Associates, Inc. to

conduct a preliminary audit of our Development Department to redefine its focus on chapter

capacity-building. This means that other fund-raising efforts, including the new headquarters

building in D.C., will be temporarily realigned.

To emphasize the importance of fund raising to our success, from February 11-13, we will both

be in Albuquerque for Partners in Proaress 2002, which will explore and discuss Red Cross

fund-raisers' roles, responsibilities and opportunities in this-changing world. At this important

conference, with a theme of "Togelher for Tomorrow," we will be joined by Pat Kennedy, Gloria

White, Pat Powers and, hopefully, other colleagues from the Board.

S9o

SFC-ARC..A00I 6 6 8
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To highlight its lifesaving Measles Initiative Partnership in Africa, the Red Cross will launch its

Thcampaign on Febrry 6 at a major event m Washington. Te American Red Cross is joined in

this effortt by the Uited Nations Foundation, the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF), the

World Health Organization (WHO), PLAN International and the Federation. The Measles

Initiative will vaccinate 220 million children in 36 Sub-Saharan African countries. By 2005, this

action will have prevented an estimated 1.6 million deaths, bringing measles deaths on that

continent to near zero. The strategy of supporting mass imnunization campaigns will require

sustained effort and strong partnershIps among NHQ and chapters, along with the other partners

in this initiative.

Our legal dispute with the Food and Dra Administlation (FDA) continues. We will keep you

informed about this issue as events warrant and want to reiterate our utter conviction in our

stewardip of America's blood supply. We assure you the nation's blood supply has never been

safer. Interestingly, polling research we Amave conducted on the issue with Cdelmah Public

Relations Worldwide reveals that the public confidence in the AmericanRed Cross has held up

very well in spite of harsh public criticism by the FDA, Confidence in the Red Cross ability to

collect and distribute blood safely is at 90 percent, up 2 percent from 1993. People also

intuitively side with our organization over the FDA, and 70 percent agree with our position that

proposed fines are inappropriate and that the money would be better used to invest in Red Cross

blood programs. We remain committed to our central goal of blood safety and availability.

Also on February 5, Harold will be speaking in Salt Lake City to highlight American Red Cross

efforts surrounding the OlvMrnic Games. For the first time at such an event, Red Cross activities

will be completely integrated between our Health and Safety and Disaster Lines of Service. The

Red Cross team will be highly visible, offering high-tech first aid response capability by fielding

teams of AED-trained responders. Behind the scenes in Salt Lake, Red Crossers will be working

closely with the Olympic Committee and the authorities to prepare for any emergency, especially

considering the heightened security. Our colleague Jon Huntsman has kindly offered his Salt

Lake restaurant as the locale for a special recognition event

Finally, David has just returned from India, where he met with the secretary general of the Indian

Red Cross Society, Dr. Vimala Ramalingamn Discussions covered American Red Cross-Indian

Red Cross projects, including a nationi4l ,IV/IpS prevention education program, community

health and water/sanitation efforts and psychosocial earthquake recovery projects in Gujarat

State. David also visited an Indian Red Cross State Chapter and saw some of their programs.

Again, we pledge to keep you informed on these arid other major developments. As our

volunteer governors, your knowledge is essential to providing effective oversight. In the

meantime, if you receive any press inquiries, please call Frank Donaghue, interim executive,

Communication and Marketing, at (215) 919-0077.

SFC-ARC-AO01 669
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American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

January 16, 2002

Mr. Sumner Redstone
Chairman and CEO
Viacom
1515 Broadway
New York NY 10036

Mr. Mel Karmazin
President and COO
Viacom
1515 Broadway
New York, NY 10036

Dear Sumner and Mel:

I am most grateful to you and to Viacom for Viacom's matching gift to our associate's
donations to the Red Cross. It is a wonderful contribution and is very helpful in
addressing the needs of those affected by the 11 September 2001 disaster.

I wish you well in the New Year and look forward to seeing you at the board meeting in
several weeks.

R'egar~c

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

DTM: in

bcc: Harold Decker
Skitp Seitz

Together, we can save a
SFC-ARC-AO01 670
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American National Headquarters
9i _ American. 430 17th Street, N.W.Q.: E i Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin

January 3, 2002 Chairman

Dr. Bernadine Healy
710 County Line Road
Gates Mlls,
Ohio 44040

Dear Bernadine,

I wanted to respond to your letter of 20 December 2001 recommending that the Red
Cross consider making a $150,000 cash grant to each of the victims of the 11 September
disasters, before the end of the year. While there is certain attractiveness to the simplicity
and clarity of the idea, the team in New York has expanded and extended the grant levels
through the case workers with the result that we will have expended $320 million by the
end of 2001. The end objective is the same, as that which you suggested, but is a bit
more rationalized as to individual need.

I know of no one who will not be happy to see 2001 come to a close. The first year of the
third millennium has brought great tragedy to so many families. It has also been a0 .2 difficult period for the Red Cross. When we. agreed to an extended severance for you it
was in the spirit that you would retire from the Red Cross immediately, return to
Cleveland, and as you said, "remove myself from involvement with- the Red Cross and in
commenting on the Red Cross unless asked to do so". Clearly, based on the interviews in
the New Yorker, the New York Times, the talk shows, and in other publications,, you have
not found it possible to adhere to the spirit or the intent of the agreement.that we had.

Your need to justify your record is unfortunate, as it has made it difficult for the
management of the Red Cross to, get its message across and has sown seeds of public
distrust in the organization that is based on the spirit of volunteerism. While this issue has
been brought to your attention earlier, the problem continues and will necessarily be the
cause of a review of our prior agreements and understandings.

As we begin a new year, I wish you and your family a-healthy and fulfilling 2002.

Regards,

David T. McLaughlin

.. > ,CC Harold Decker
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American
. Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

January 2, 2002

Mr. James H. West, C.PA.
West and Associates
2550 5't Avenue, Suite 103
SanDiego, CA 92103

Dear Jim:

I appreciated receiving your letter of 10 December 2001 and am grateful for your candid
comments and the spirit in which they were made: The San Diego situation clearly got
out of hand for some of the reasons that you have identified. There was enough blame to
go around between the Chapter and National - neither one handled it as well as they
might have.

We are both interested in looking forward and to getting this problem behind us so that
the Chapter can continue to serve its constituency as well as it has in the past. I would be
interested in what course of action you think should now be taken by National and the
Chapter. Any thoughts that you have as to how we can be helpful in this situation, please
let me know.

I wish you a very fulfilling and successful New Year.. . X .~~

Regardq-

DTM: In

CC: Harold Decker (w/attachments)

SFC-ARC Ao1672Together, we can save a life
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c~1tiicd Public Accduntants an1 Con..utIjhn

December 10, 2001

David McLaughlin
Orion Safety Products
*The Gallery, Suite 205
'46 Newport
New London, NH 03257

Re: Red Cross - San Diego Chapter

Dear Mr. McLaughlin:

'This is not a complaint, but rather an pbjective~informati.6n suminary which may be

helpful. .

When I was on the Board of .Gov ernors, Jim Krueger was my staff counterpart for

part of the time I was ChairmiAn of Public Support. Jim and. I worked well together

and we have always had a good relationship.

In August, after Dr. Healy had inappropriately involved'herself in the controversy

started by a local politician, I called Jim and asked him to come to San Diego. I felt

he was the best person at NHQ to both clarify the'issues and help with solutions.

He did not come until November..

As you are probably aware, NHQ does not have any policy for chapters on what

costs are Phargeable to local disasters. The chapter sought advice in this instance I

,am informed, both from Jim' Krueger and others at -NHQ and other chapters

2550 because this 'was a unique situation. The chapter followed the advice given. When

5Th AvEwuE NHO sent auditors to review the matter, they did not have any conclusion at the exit

SurE 103 conference, since they didn't have any guidelines to measure against. They did
SAN Diew . identify in roblems in the accounting and service delivery, but generally were

CALIFURNix
92103O;NA very positive. The Chapters charges to the disaster included an appropriate

allocation of direct and Indirict costs. .' ,

619.61g.5380
F.AX619.&16.6359 When Jim Krueger finally came here on November 8, he did not apologize for the

delay in meeting with the press or the fact the NHQ did not have any. policy on local

( disaster costs. The report which was. provided to the press was dated September

James H. Vest, C.P.A. CListopher M. Roberte, C.P.A. Caeryl M. Rhoee, CP.A. Laura J. MaLancy, M.A.
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David McLaughlin
Orion Safety Products
December 10, 2001
Page 2

12, 2001 and on November 8 stated that 'Guidance for accumulating and allocating

costs for a. locally funded disaster relief operation is not available to chapters".

Likely none of the press read the report since the press conference focused on the

negatives, both by Jim Krueger and the local politician. The chapter chairman

made apologies for any shortcomings of the service delivery and any

miscommunications.

Bear in mind that the local politician believed that all funds raised should be paid to

the victims, and the press had continued to carry this message from the start. The

press conference did not clarify the mission of the Red Cross or explain that we do

not make such distributions.

As a result, the matter continues to fester, The too little - too late NHQ response

did not support the chapter. NHQ should have the same prompt response for

chapter issues as is expected for disasters. Now the editorial board of the

newspaper is reporting that the NHQ audit revealed a "misuse of funds raised for

the victirts." This is false as Jack Campbell or other staff will verify.

(. In summary, the matter expanded into a big Issue because of Dr. Healy's

interference and the delay in providing a proper response from NHQ. Chapters as

well as NHQ make decisions that don't please everyone, but the San Diego

Chaptees decisions in this matter were guided by National. Jim Krueger's conduct

did not support either NHQ or the Chapter.

Chapter staff and volunteers need support from NHQ. Chapters raise the money

and deliver the services. NHQ should demonstrate leadership, not bureaucracy.

I trust you' will accept this in the spirit it is provided.

Very truly yours,

James H. West

JHW/acm
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National Headquarters.American 430 17th Street, N.W. \ .-

t wRed Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

July 8, 2002

Mr. William B. Walsh
5307 Duvall Road
Bethesda, MD 20816

Dear Mr. Walsh:

Harold Decker forwarded your letter of 24 June 2002 to me as we are in a transition
period before our new President, Marty Evans, comes on board on 5 August 2002.

We are grateful for your interest and as soon as we are in a position to assess our ongoing
management requirements, we will be back in touch with you.

C ~ -Regards,

David T. McLaughlin

bcce Harold Decker
Stan Davis

C~~~~~~~~~~~~--.--d

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01675



American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

L-A . BELT-augnim

Chairman

July 8, 2002

Mr. Bill Van Eman
Chairman, Brazos Valley Chapter
American National Red Cross
4244 FM 158
P.O. Box 4461
Bryan, Texas 77805-4461

Dear Bill,

I appreciated receiving your very thoughtful letter of 18 June 2002. Your observations
regarding the issues relating to the Liberty Fund are correct - if there had been more thought and
consultation in establishing the, fund, we would not have been subject to the barrage of media
criticism that forced us to reverse course and dedicate all of the monies to those affected by the
disaster.

Withholding some funds to cover chapter expenses makes infinitely good sense. With
our new President on board, I suspect that-we will bejundertaking a thoughtful analysis of the
rationale for our current system of assessments and how we fund disaster response and other
programs at the community level. In that regard, I will share your good letter with Marty Evans.

I hope that this finds you well and look forward to working with you.

Regards,

cc: Marty Evans w/incoming letter

CK

Together, we can save a life
SFC.ARC.AOO 6 7 6
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,.....ni uAmerican Brazos Valley Chapter

Red Cross 424FM 158PO Box 4461
www redcrossbrarosvaley.org Bryau, Teias 77805-4464.

(919) 776-8279
(979) 776-9357 FAX

JuneI 18,2002

David T. McLaughlin
American National Red Cross
430 17"' Strcet, N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20006

Dear M. McLaughlin:

As the Chairman of the Board of the Brazos Valley Chapter of-the American

National Red Cross, I have been doing some deep thinking regarding the status of our

( chapter and the relationship that our chapter has with the national organization. I believe
that some of my thoughts deserve to be relayed to you fbr your consideration.

Today is one week past the nine-month anniversary of the terrible tragedies in

New York City and Washington, D. C. Our nation has never faced a crisis of this
magnitude on our own shores. The way we travel, the way we conduct business, and the
way Americans perceive other people will forever more be blurred by the events of
September 11. In many ways, we rediscovered the good qualities that most Americans

possess (and many other nations around the world) as well as the resiliency of one of the

world's greatest cities. Now our servicemen and women across tih globe are in the
process of rooting out the people responsible for the horrific acts of that day. In all of
these situations the Red Cross was there to help.

The cleanup at Ground Zero is over and the citizens of New York are
Contamplating how to properly co orate those who lost tir lives that day. I'm'
sure whatever is decided will rankas one of the top tourist attractions in the world as
individuals return to the site of what was once an engineering marvel to mourn for the
people who died that day. The Red Cross should be included in that memorial for our
efforts as well.

Over the first few weeks after the tragic day, I could not have been prouder of the
Red Cross. We set up fundraising efforts quickly, sent volunteers to the site to aid the
firefighters and cleanup crews, and began to prepare for the near certain military
campaign that was to occur. However, as the days and weeks wore on, the press began to
ask questions as to how the finds that were raised to help the victims were to be
distributed. First, the United Way received some scrutiny. Then the Red Cross was
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questioned. I do not want to rehash all of the details of that situation, as I am sure you are

well aware of what happened, However, I would like to relay some of what our local

chapter went through.

First, we garnered some positive publicity locally for handling the funmdraising for

the victims of September I1. There was a. local blood drive that was very succes4sful As

the Chairman, I was on local television twice to publicize local mdrasmg drives a-nd t-o

remind the local population that the Brazos Valley Chapter needed funds for local

,emergencies in our service area. One thing that I did not count on was the egativ e

publicity that would follow the national articles One local disc jockey spent most ofhis

Morning drivie time show for approximately two weeks criticizing the Red CroS, stating

that all of the money that we received was not going to go to the victims. While this was

essentially true (the Rod Cross was also using those-Amds for dict services), he twisted

the words of the Red Cross to make us out to be less than true to our mnission.

I can certainly understand how the press can take a s etnigly innocent and

accurate statement and print or broadcast a story that sounds much worse than it is. What

i cannot understand is how the Red Cross reacted so poorly to the stones. What could

have been a grand opportunity for the Red Cross to shine und ito a stellar exampleof,

how not to handle a crisis. By the time Dr. Healy was no longer with the organization,

C we were already reeling from several poor reports in tepn and broadcast media. Te.

-*- ' ' departure of Dr. Healy solved only a temporary problem and called into question our

long-term goals. Locally our chapter was able to deflect some of the criticism by

referencing several small disasters that we were able to handle plus our yearly efforts to

combat the hot weather in our part of Texas. Nevettheless, the handling of the post-

September 11 events damaged the overall image of the Red Cross and thust our local

chapter into a poor light. It also negatively affected our f.ndraising locally.

Allowing the local chapters to keep 10% of the funds raised within their

respective jurisdictions for the September l1 victims was a good idea. It allowed us to.

cover our overhead and compensate thle local chapter for at least some ofthe costof.

preparing the paperwork to remit the money to National. It 'also allowed te local chapter

a small of amount of compensation for the funds that we were not going to be ale to

raise in.the coming months. Nearly every charity in the countzy expezniced S1a decline in

giving saier September I l. Allowing us to have a small portion of the funds raised was a.

wise idea It could have bean phrased as a special administrative cost and not a soul

would have said anything. This concept woxrkd well for the iTropical- Storm Allison firnd

in the summer of'2001 and was working'well for the Liberty Fund until our Chapter had

to send to National all of the funds over our regular administrative costs. The request

rom National wvas in response to the criticism that was received over the Libe Fund. '.

In our Chapter, we prevailed upon staff and volunteers to work harder orlittle or no

compensation during that peniod in order to keep the Chapter's administrative coPsts we .

below the 10% cap.. The intent of the 10% cap was to provide a benefit to the ter for

the efforts in aiding the September 11 victims and workers on site. When National

changed the policy and asked for all funds less than the I0% cap and above our actual'

costs, the benefit that we had worked so hard for was lost to our Chapter. Had we hired
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temporary workers, we could have expensed the cost, but our goal was to do the job for

as small a cost as possible in order to maximize our benefit. In addition, the Chapter staff

also had to re-account for the actual expenses. Adding more work to an already busy day

in order to satisfy the now requirements complicated our situation.

This brings me to a question that I have contemplated over the last few days.

What does the chapter get for the assessment it pays to National? I understand that an

overhead component must be bilt in to our operations for the-overall management of the

National office. I have read the assessment portion of my Red Cross Directores

Handbook so I know exactly what we are supposed to get. However, in reality if all we

get as local chapters is bad publicity and additional paperwork I do not feel this is a wise

use of finds on the national level. First, National allows the Red Cross to be put in a,

poor light, then it adds to the work of the local chapters with additional paperwork The

new requirement added work to an already full workday. On top of tha4, the local board

wanted to know what National was going to do to help. the local chapters. There were not

many useful messages from National to help the local chapters deal with the situation.

The local board and volunteers were left to answer questions with little or no direction

from National in regards to information. Again, this is not a wise use of finds in my

Op~iion.

(. I'm sure other local chapters had similar. Wit the large number of deserving

charitable organizations in the U.S., the Red Cross is in tough competition for every

dollar it gets. To maximize our efforts, we should put forth the best possible image.' It is

tough to compete for a donation when the reputation of the chanty suffers for sometling

the local office did not do. The local chapters are the heart of the Red Cross nationwide.

They should be infomned of all events prior to the pross release so that the local :

individuals are prepared to answer questions. With the ease that infonmation can be

disseminated in today's society, I think this is a fairly reasonable request. I was

encouraged by the information put out via the website from the Q & A session at the

National Convention. Perhaps that could be made a consistent feature, perhaps even

includig a quarterly conference call. The chapters could ask questions to clar an,

National could get a feel for what is going on locally.

I believe the Red Cross has a special place inAmerica. All chapters, Including

the National office, should be working toward maintaining that image.

Sinqrely, I

Bill Van Eman
Chairman, Brazos Valley Chapter
American National Red Cross
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Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Governors
The American Red Cross:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of the American Red Cross as of
June 30, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of management of the American Red
Cross. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of certain chapters, which statements reflect total assets constituting 21
percent and total revenues and gains constituting 12 percent, respectively, of the consolidated totals. Those
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to amounts included for such chapters, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The prior year
summarized comparative information has been derived from the American Red Cross' 2001 consolidated financial
statements and, in our report dated October 5, 2001, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presen-
tation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the American Red Cross as of June 30, 2002,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

LVP
McLean, VA
October 4, 2002
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0 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

I June 30, 2002
(with summarized information as of June 30, 2001)
(In thousands)

Temporarily Permanently Totals
Assets Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2002 2001

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 146,247 $439,569 $ 1,386 $ 587,202 $ 177,492
Investments (Notes 8,9, and 14) 309,913 11,050 12,514 333,477 355,090
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

of $19,604 in 2002 and $19,301 in 2001:
Trade 304,543 15,258 - 319,801 317,767
Contributions, current portion (Note 2) 16,411 110,103 56 126,570 133,183
Other (Note 9) - - 15,825 15,825 9,302

Inventories, net of allowance for obsolescence of $7,750
in 2002 and $6,784 in 2001 197,252 6,402 - 203,654 190,272

Other assets 12,547 3.162 183 15.892 23.289

Total current assets 986,913 585,544 29,964 1,602,421 1,206,395

Investments (Notes 8, 9, and 14) 548,633 155,674 325,238 1,029,545 1,120,773
Contributions receivable (Note 2) 4,209 28,374 2,243 34,826 39,339
Prepaid pension costs (Note 11) - - - - 11,858
Land, buildings, and other property, net (Note 3) 823,541 - - 823,541 733,177
Other assets 11.089 1.500 22,704 35.293 26,171

Total assets 2,374,385 771,092 380,149 3.525.626 3.137,713

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 287,209 9,453 - 296,662 293,476
Current portion of debt and capital leases (Notes 4 and 5) 39,894 - - 39,894 89,372
Postretirement benefits (Note 11) 18,924 - - 18,924 16,807
Other current liabilities (Note 9) 20.653 2,840 63 23.556 18,068

Total current liabilities 366,680 12,293 63 379,036 417,723

Debt and capital leases (Notes 4 and 5) 357,453 - - 357,453 360,870
Pension and postretirement benefits (Note 11) 120,042 - - 120,042 108,339
Other liabilities (Note 9) 92,623 1,180 20 93,823 86,644

Total liabilities 936,798 13,473 83 950,354 973,576

Net assets (Notes 6,7,10 and 12) 1,437,587 757,619 380,066 2,575,272 2,164,137

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 5,13 and 14)

Total liabilities and net assets $2,374,385 $771,092 $380,149 $3,525,626 $3,137,713

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2001)
(In thousands)

Temporarily Permanently Totals
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2002 2001

Operating revenues and gains
Public Support:

United Way and other federated
Disaster relief (Note 10)
Liberty disaster relief- Sept 11 response (Note 12)
Legacies and bequests (Notes 7 and 9)
Services and materials (Note 12)
Grants (Note 12)
Other contributions

Products and services:
Biomedical
Program materials

Contracts
Investment income (Notes 8 and 12)
Other revenues

$ 65,616

67,118
22,034
21,236

213,289

1,924,077
136,582

58,171
81,394
49,089

$122,452
133,376
989,060

6,745
96,222
67,175
36,915

906

1,069
2,008

$ -

22,022

705

$ 188,068
133,376
989,060

95,885
118,256
88,411

250,909

1,924,077
137,488
58,171
82,463
51,097

$ 205,549
84,601

115,594
49,728
76,351

230,845

1,686,090
121,724
50,175
81,405
40,844

Net assets released from restrictions 1,035,410 (1,035,410) - - -

Total operating revenues and gains 3,674,016 420,518 22,727 4,117,261 2,742,906

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Armed Forces Emergency Services 61,513 - - 61,513 65,756
Disaster services 308,156 - - 308,156 284,822
Liberty disaster relief - Sept 11 response (Note 12) 617,960 - - 617,960 -
Biomedical services (Note 13) 1,872,967 - - 1,872,967 1,699,978
Health and safety services 213,614 - - 213,614 203,058
Community services 152,902 - - 152,902 150,108
Intemational services 32,736 - - 32,736 45,238

Total program services 3,259,848 - - 3,259,848 2,448,960

Supporting services:
Fund raising (Note 12) 136,901 - - 136,901 108,616
Management and general 174,182 - - 174,182 154,726

Total supporting services 311,083 - - 311,083 263,342

Total operating expenses 3,570,931 - - 3,570,931 2,712,302

Change in net assets from operations 103,085 420,518 22,727 546,330 30,604
Nonoperating gainsloosses) (Notes 4 and 8) (131,900) (548) (2,747) (135,195) (63,876)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (Note 4) - - - 2,201

Change in net assets (28,815) 419,970 19,980 411,135 (31,071)

Net assets, beginning of year 1,466,402 337,649 360,086 2,164,137 2,195,208

Net assets, end of year $1,437,587 $757,619 $380,066 $2,575,272 $2,164,137

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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V Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2001)
(In thousands)

Proaram Services

Liberty Disaster
Disaster Relief - Sept I1

Health and
Biomedical Safety

Total
Community International Program

Services Services Response Services Services Services Services Services

Salaries and wages $35,329 $ 76,450 $ 4,966 $ 749,046 $100,866 $ 66,654 $ 8,340 $1,041,651
Employee benefits 6,701 16,758 773 165,697 19,894 13,698 1,706 225,227

Subtotal 42,030 93,208 5,739 914,743 120,760 80,352 10,046 1,266,878

Travel and maintenance 1,673 20,479 32,601 35,515 5,068 4,111 1,826 101,273
Equipment maintenance

and rental 1,173 11,105 11,387 62,322 5,005 5,950 515 97,457
Supplies and materials 3,394 25,095 10,416 417,349 44,001 21,937 849 523,041
Contractual services 8,252 42,887 61,479 379,081 27,643 20,859 1,788 541,989
Financial and material

assistance 2,803 106,406 496,338 14,132 3,528 13,811 17,236 654,254
Depreciation and

amortization 2,188 8,976 - 49,825 7,609 5,882 476 74,956

Total expenses $61,513 $308,156 $617,960 $1,872,967 $213,614 $152,902 $32,736 $3,259,848

Supporting Services

Management Total
Fund and Supporting Total Operating Expenses

Raising General Services 2002 2001

Salaries and wages $ 42,260 $ 81,174 $123,434 $1,165,085 $1,046,171
Employee benefits 8,436 16,145 24,581 249,808 199,204

Subtotal 50,696 97,319 148,015 1,414,893 1,245,375

Travel and maintenance 3,708 6,466 10,174 111,447 78,208
Equipment maintenance and rental 1,902 5,260 7,162 104,619 84,227
Supplies and materials 35,167 6,494 41,661 564,702 477,547
Contractual services 41,147 44,991 86,138 628,127 563,436
Financial and material assistance 1,713 4,285 5,998 660,252 175,994
Depreciation and amortization 2,568 9,367 11,935 86,891 87.515

Total expenses $136,901 $174,182 $311,083 $3,570,931 $2,712,302

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2001)
(In thousands)

2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $411,135 $(31,071)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 86,891 87,515

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable 8,249 10,222

Provision for obsolete inventory 18,959 3,813

Net gain on sales of property (948) (903)

Net investment losses 127,912 43,758

Cumulative effect of accounting change - (2,201)

Permanently restricted contributions and income (22,727) (51,393)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increases in receivables (5,677) (65,330)

Increases in inventories (32,342) (29,439)

Increases in other assets (1,725) (2,491)

Decreases (increases) in prepaid pension costs 11,858 (1,324)

Increases in accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,186 35,895

Increases in other liabilities 28,011 589

Increases in pension and postretirement benefits 2,117 9,215

Net cash provided by operating activities 634,899 6,855

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property (175,421) (101,136)

Proceeds from sales of property 4,653 6,343

Purchases of investments (182,132) (73,468)

Proceeds from sales of investments 170,226 167,687

Net cash used in investing activities (182,674) (574)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Permanently restricted contributions and income 15,921 18,887

Proceeds from borrowings 15,369 31,110

Repayments of debt (73,805) (24,084)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (42,515) 25,913

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 409,710 32,194

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 177,492 145,298

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $587,202 $177,492

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 20,963 $ 22,541

Noncash investing and financing transactions:
Acquisition of equipment under capital lease agreements 5,540 851

Donated stock and beneficial interest in perpetual trust 6,806 36,178

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Basis of Presentation
The American Red Cross (the Organization) was established by an
Act of the United States Congress on January 5, 1905, for the primary
purposes of furnishing volunteer aid to the sick and wounded of the
Armed Forces in time of war and to carry on a system of national and
international relief in time of peace to mitigate the suffering caused by
fire, famine, floods and other great natural calamities. The mission of
the Organization has expanded since that time to help people pre-
vent, prepare for, and respond to emergencies.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the
consolidated financial position and changes in net assets and cash
flows of the Organization. The Organization has national and inter-
national programs that are conducted by its headquarters (National
Sector) operations, biomedical services operations, and chartered
local chapters. Also included in the consolidated financial state-
ments are Special Project Funds invested for the benefit of all Red
Cross operating units, and the net assets and operations of
Boardman Indemnity Ltd., a 100 percent-owned captive insurance
subsidiary. All significant intra-organizational accounts and transac-
tions have been eliminated.

Program activities include armed forces emergency services, health
and safety services, disaster services, community services, inter-
national services, biomedical services and the Organization's
response to September 11. Biomedical services includes activities
associated with the collection, processing, testing, and distribution
of whole blood and components, tissue, and plasma derivative
products at 36 local blood services region operations, nine nation-
al testing laboratories, a biomedical research facility, and related
national support functions.

Revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly,
the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classi-
fied and reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to any
donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-
imposed restrictions on their use that may be met either by
actions of the Organization or the passage of time.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to
donor-imposed or other legal restrictions requiring that the
principal be maintained permanently by the Organization.
Generally, the donors permit the Organization to use all or part
of the income earned for either general or donor-specified pur-
poses.

The consolidated financial statements are presented with certain
prior year summarized comparative information. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly,
such information should be read in conjunction with the
Organization's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2001, from which the summarized information was
derived.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements. Estimates and assump-
tions may also affect disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from manage-
ment's estimates.

Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased
with an average maturity of three months or less to be cash equiv-
alents. Cash equivalents consisted of money market mutual funds
and overnight investments of approximately $429 million and $32
million as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Investments
Investments are reported at fair value. The separately managed
Endowment Fund accumulates realized gains and losses on secu-
rity transactions which are available to meet current expenses to
the extent approved by the Board of Governors (Note 7). Amounts
annually available for expenditure are based on the Board of
Governors' approved spending rate used under the total-return
method.

Investment income classified as operating revenue consists of
interest and dividend income on investments and any gains
approved for use in operations. All other realized and unrealized
gains or losses are classified as nonoperating activity and are avail-
able to support operations in future years and to offset potential
market declines.

The Organization also invests certain operating funds in the Select
Investment Program (Program), a family of commingled funds man-
aged exclusively for the American Red Cross. The Organization
participates in the Program by purchasing units in various funds at
the current market value.

Investments classified as current are available for operations in the
next fiscal year.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Organization makes limited use of derivative financial instru-
ments for the purpose of managing interest rate risk. Derivative
financial instruments are recorded at their fair market value.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Various methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments. Cash and cash equiv-
alents are valued at their carrying amount due to their short maturi-
ties. Investments are valued at quoted market prices. Debt is val-
ued at rates currently available to the Organization for issuances
with similar terms and remaining maturities. Interest rate swap
agreements are valued at the net present value of future cash flows
attributable to the difference between the contractual variable and
fixed rates in those agreements.

The estimated fair values of the Organization's financial instruments
were as follows at June 30, 2002 and 2001:
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On thousands) 2002 2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Assets.
Cash and cash

equivalents $587,202 $587,202 $177,492 $177,492

Investments:
Current 333,477 333,477 355,090 355,090

Noncurrent 1,029,545 1,029,545 1,120,773 1,120,773

Uabilities:
Current debt 39,894 39,894 89,372 89,372

Noncurrent debt 357,453 371,044 360,870 365,538

Interest rate swap
agreements 6,018 6,018 2,376 2,376

Inventories
Inventories of supplies purchased for use in program and support-
ing services are carried at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or mar-
ket. Plasma derivatives, whole blood and its components and tis-
sue products are valued at the lower of average cost or market.

Land, Buildings and Other Property
Purchases of land, buildings and other property having a unit cost
per established guidelines and a useful life of three or more years
are capitalized at cost. Donated assets are capitalized at the esti-
mated fair market value at date of receipt. Interest expense incurred
during a period of construction, less related interest income eamed
on proceeds of tax-exempt borrowings, is capitalized. Property
under capital leases is amortized over the lease term.

Application development costs incurred to develop internal-use
software are capitalized and amortized over the expected useful life
of the software application. Activities that are considered applica-
tion development include design of software configuration and
interfaces, coding, installation to hardware and testing. All other
expenses incurred to develop internal-use software are expensed
as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Class of prooerty Useful life in years
Buildings
Building improvements
Equipment and software

45
10

3-15

Insurance
The Organization is self-insured up to certain limits through its
wholly owned insurance subsidiary, Boardman Indemnity Ltd.
(Boardman). Boardman has reinsurance arrangements in effect to
limit per occurrence exposure. The remaining uninsured liabilities
for outstanding losses and incurred but not reported claims have
been determined based on actuarial studies and are reflected as
other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statement of
financial position.

Revenue Recognition
Products and services revenue, which arises principally from sales
of whole blood and components and plasma derivative products
and health and safety course fees, is generally recognized upon
delivery of the products or services to the customer. Gains and

losses on investments and other assets and liabilities are reported
as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Contributions, which include unconditional promises to give
(pledges), are recognized as revenues in the period received or
promised, whichever is earlier. Conditional contributions are record-
ed when the conditions have been met. Contributions are consid-
ered to be unrestricted unless specifically restricted by the donor.

The Organization reports contributions in the temporarily or perma-
nently restricted net asset class if they are received with donor stip-
ulations as to their use. When a donor restriction expires, that is,
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are released and
reclassified unrestricted net assets in the consolidated statement of
activities. Donor-restricted contributions are initially reported in the
temporarily restricted net asset class, even if it is anticipated such
restrictions will be met in the current reporting period.

Contributed Services and Materials
Contributed services are reported in the financial statements for
voluntary donations of services when those services (1) create or
enhance non-financial assets or (2) require specialized skills provid-
ed by individuals possessing those skills and are services which
would be typically purchased if not provided by donation. The
Organization recorded contributed services revenue, for the years
ended June 30,2002 and 2001, of approximately $24 million and $5
million, respectively, mostly in support of the liberty disaster relief
effort - September 11 response and the disaster services program.

Donated materials are recorded at their fair value at the date of the
gift. The Organization does not imply time restrictions for gifts of
long-lived assets. As a result, in the absence of donor-imposed
restrictions, gifts of long-lived assets are reported as unrestricted
revenue.

Research and Development Costs
Since 1956, the American Red Cross has engaged in blood
research to further enhance the safety of the blood supply.
Research efforts have been directed toward enhancing patient care
by improving knowledge of blood and blood products; investigat-
ing the nature of the transmission and treatment of bloodborne dis-
eases; developing safer blood collection, testing and processing
instruments and procedures; and introducing new or improved pro-
grams and services. For the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001,
approximately $35 million and $34 million, respectively, was
expended on research and development efforts by biomedical
services.

Income Taxes
The American Red Cross is a not-for-profit organization incorporat-
ed by the U.S. Congress through the issuance of a federal charter.
The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, except on net
income derived from unrelated business activities. A tax payment of
$58,023 has been made for estimated taxes on unrelated business
activities for the year ended June 30, 2002. The Organization also
recorded a tax liability of $13,622 for the year ended June 30, 2001,
for unrelated business activity.
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(2) Contributions Receivable

The Organization anticipates collection of outstanding contributions
receivable as follows at June 30, 2002 and 2001:

an thOUsands) 2002 2001

Amount receivable within one year $135,666 $141,944

Amount receivable in 1 to 5 years 34,826 39,338

Total contributions receivable before

allowance for uncollectible amounts 170,492 181,282

Less allowance for uncollectible amounts (9,096) (8,760)

Contributions receivable, net 161,396 172,522

Less current portion (126,570) (133,183)

Contributions receivable, net, noncurrent $ 34,826 $ 39,339

Amounts presented above have been discounted to present value

using rates averaging approximately 3 percent. The American Red

Cross had commitments from donors for conditional contributions

approximating $12 million and $15 million at June 30, 2002 and

2001, respectively. These pledges will be accrued in future periods

as the conditions are met.

(3) Land, Buildings and Other Property

The cost and accumulated depreciation of land, buildings and other

property were as follows at June 30, 2002 and 2001:

On thousands) 2002 2001
Land $ 65,305 $ 68,403

Buildings and improvements 686,193 670,909

Equipment and software 578,732 545,262

Buildings and equipment under
capital lease 24,575 18,885

Total cost of assets placed in service 1,354,805 1,303,459

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (663,368) (612,195)

Construction-in-progress 132,104 41,913

Land, buildings and other property, net $823,541 $733,177

(4) Debt

Debt consists of the following at June 30, 2002 and 2001:

on thousands) 2002 2001

Unes of credit with various banks,
due in 2003, bearing interest
at various rates averaging 2.7%

in 2002 and 6.1% in 2001 $ 20,000 $ 70,000

Various notes, mortgages and bonds
payable, bearing interest at rates
ranging from 1.4% to 7.7% due 2003

through 2030, repayment terms generally
require monthly payments of interest and
annual principal reductions, and are

generally backed only by the full faith
and credit of the American Red Cross 364,809 369,682

Total bonds and notes payable 384,809 439,682

Obligations under capital leases (Note 5) 12,538 10,560

Total debt 397,347 450,242

Less current portion (39,894) (89,372)

Debt, noncurrent portion $357,453 $360,870

Certain bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the

option of the Organization. Additionally, registered owners of these

bonds may demand repurchase of the bonds by the bond agent or

the depository for an amount equal to the principal price plus

accrued interest. Letters of credit or standby credit facilities have

been established with multiple banks in the aggregate amount of

$219 million and $203 million as of June 30, 2002 and 2001,

respectively, to provide liquidity in the event other funding is not

available to repurchase these bonds. The depository and bond

agent have the authority to use standby credit facilities for the

repurchase of certain bonds. The standby credit facilities had not

been used as of June 30, 2002 and 2001.

Scheduled maturities and sinking fund requirements of the debt

and credit agreements as of June 30, 2002, are as follows

on thousands)

Years ending June 30:
2003 $39,894

2004 48,204

2005 16,563

2006 15,845

2007 15,560

Thereafter 261 281

Total $397,347

Interest expense was approximately $22 million and $23 million for

the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001, respectively.

Bank Lines of Credit
As of June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, $20 million and $70

million had been borrowed under lines of credit to support opera-

tions. The Organization maintained numerous uncommitted lines of

credit with various banks for its working capital requirements.
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Interest Rate Swap Agreements
Interest rate swap agreements are used by the Organization to mitigate
the risk of changes in interest rates associated with variable
interest rate indebtedness. Under such arrangements, a portion of
variable rate indebtedness is converted to fixed rates based on a
notional principal amount. At June 30, 2002, the aggregate notion-
al principal amount under the interest rate swap agreements, which
mature at various dates through 2008, totaled $108 million. At June
30, 2002, the estimated fair value of the interest rate swap agree-
ments was a liability of approximately $6 million.

The Organization applies the provisions of FASB Statement No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.
This standard requires certain derivative financial instruments to be
recorded at fair value. The interest rate swap agreements described
above are derivative instruments that are required to be recorded at
fair value. The change in fair value on these interest rate swap
agreements for the year ended June 30, 2002, was approximately
a $4 million loss and is included as a nonoperating loss in the con-
solidated statement of activities.

Letters of Credit
The Organization had unused letters of credit outstanding of
approximately $154 million at June 30, 2002.

(6) Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2002
and 2001:

fin thousands)

Designated by the Board of Governors for
Disaster relief (Note 10)
Biomedical services
Endowment inflation adjustment reserve

(Note 7)
Endowment distribution reserve

(Note 7)
Funds functioning as endowment
Contingencies
Retiree health benefits
Special projects fund
Replacement and improvement

of buildings and equipment
Other purposes

Undesicnated

20W2

$ 29,058
348,929

77,300

100,400
167,449
59,776
97,044
79,007

123,758
27,986

326.880

21ni

$ 28,192
262,983

74,100

119,600
229,941

67,426
109,074

91,296

137,305
37,119

309,366

Total unrestricted net assets $1,437,587 $1,466,402

In October 1988, the Board of Governors approved the establish-
ment of two designated funds to provide future long-term benefits

(5) Leases as described below:

The Organization leases certain buildings and equipment for use in
its operations. The following summarizes minimum future rental
payments under capital and noncancelable operating leases for the
fiscal years ending June 30:

On thousands) Operating Capital
2003 $41,237 $ 4,533
2004 29,446 3,433
2005 19,137 2,381
2006 8,335 1,454
2007 9,177 979
Thereafter 14,922 1,854

Total minimum lease payments $ 122,254 14,634
Less amounts representing interest (2,096)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $12,538

Total rent expense was approximately $69 million and $56 million
for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Special Projects Fund - The Special Projects Fund is controlled by
the Board of Govemors, to be used for the humanitarian work of the
Organization. As stipulated by the Board, approximately $79 million
and $91 million at June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, functioned
in a manner similar to an endowment whereby the principal amount
generates income that is available for expenditures, subject to
action by the Board of Governors. The Board approved approxi-
mately $7 million and $8 million of expenditures from this fund in
fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Retiree Health Benefits Fund - The Retiree Health Benefits Fund
was established by the Board of Governors to fund a portion of pre-
miums for retirees participating in the American Red Cross health
benefits plan on a scale determined by years of service with the
Organization. A total of approximately $5 million and $4 million was
expended in fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively, in the form of
health care premium subsidies. At June 30, 2002 and 2001, a total
of $97 million and $109 million, respectively, remained designated
by the Board of Govemors to support future retiree medical costs.
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Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following
purposes or periods at June 30, 2002 and 2001:

Pn thousands) 2002 2001

Disaster services $ 77,300 $ 32,437
Uberty disaster relief -Sept 11 response 419,641
Biomedical services 8,374 7,387
Health and safety services 4,319 4,052
International services 62,064 94,855
Community services 13,039 18,368
Buildings and equipment 31,426 25,944
Other specific purposes 23,045 20,819
For periods after June 30, 2002 and 2001,

respectively 118,411 133,787

Total temporanly restricted net assets $ 757,619 $ 337,649

Permanently restricted net assets consist primarily of endowed
contributions (Note 7 below), the income from which is available to
fund the following at June 30, 2002 and 2001:

On thousands) 2002 2001
Disaster services $ 7,600 $5,752
Other specific purposes 10,714 4,615
General operations 361,752 349,719

Total permanently restricted net assets $380,066 $ 360,086

(7) Endowment Fund

The Organization has maintained a national Endowment Fund
(Fund) since 1905 and has consistently promoted public gifts for
the Fund with the understanding that the principal would be held
inviolate and only the income used for current purposes.

Since 1910, the Fund has, by Act of Congress (36 U.S. Code Section
300109), been under the control of a separate Board of Trustees,
appointed by the Board of Governors, who are required to keep and
invest the Fund under their management. Since that date, as stated
in the bylaws of the Organization, and because of public declara-
tions as to their intended use, gifts to the American Red Cross
National Sector under wills, trusts and similar instruments that do
not direct some other use of such funds are recorded as perma-
nently restricted to be kept and invested as such in perpetuity.

The Fund includes contributions, some of which were accepted
with specific donor stipulation that the principal be maintained
intact, until the occurrence of a specific event, or for a specific peri-
od. The Fund includes additional contributions not so stipulated,
which resulted from appeals for endowment fund gifts to be man-
aged as provided above. Based upon the manner in which the
Organization has solicited and continues to solicit such gifts, it has
been determined by independent legal counsel that such gifts must
be placed in the Endowment Fund and, accordingly, reported as

4da permanently restricted net assets.

At June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, $178 million and $194 mil-
lion of cumulative net realized gains on endowed investments were
reported as unrestricted net assets. Of these amounts, as of June 30,
2002 and 2001, respectively, approximately $77 million and $74 mil-
lion have been designated by the Board of Governors as an inflation
adjustment reserve to protect donor corpus. This reserve increases
each year at a rate equal to 75 percent of the increase in the
Consumer Price Index applied against the book value of the original
donor corpus. The remaining $100 million and $120 million as of June
30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were designated as a distribution
reserve to provide funds for operations in those years when net inter-
est and dividends are less than the approved distribution rate.

Total-Return Method
The American Red Cross makes distributions from the Fund for cur-
rent operations using the total-retum method. Under the total-return
method, fund distributions consist of net investment income and
may, under certain conditions, include a portion of the cumulative
realized gains. The Fund's Board of Trustees establishes a spending
rate as a percentage of the three-year calendar moving average fair
value of endowed funds at the beginning of each fiscal year.
Distributions are made in an amount equal to the product of the fair
value of endowed funds at the beginning of the year and the spend-
ing rate. To the extent that the distributions exceed net investment
income, they are made from realized gains.

A spending rate of 5.5 percent for both fiscal years 2002 and 2001
resulted in total distributions related to endowment funds of
approximately $25 million each year. Of these amounts, approxi-
mately $16 million represented utilization of realized gains for both
of the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001.

(8) Investments

The following schedule summarizes the composition of investment
income for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001:

2002
Temporarily Permanently

(an thousands) Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Dividends and interest $ 70,396 $1,234 $ - $ 71,630
Net operating

investment gains
Plosses) 10,998 (165) - 10,833

Investment income
available for
operations 81,394 1,069 - 82,463

Less net nonoperating
investment losses (128,245) (548) (2,747) (131.540)

Total return on
investments $(46,851) $ 521 $(2,747) $(49,077)
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2001 (10) Disaster Relief Funds
Temporarily Permanently

an thousands) Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
Dividends and interest $ 67,800 $1,593 $ 72 $69,465
Net operating

Investment gains 11,309 199 432 11,940

Investment Income
available for
operations 79,109 1,792 504 81,405

Less net nonoperating
investment losses (55,915) (1,247) (1,824) (58,986)

Total return on
investments $ 23,194 $ 545 $(1,320) $22,419

The aggregate carrying amount of investments was as follows at
June 30, 2002 and 2001:

an thousands) 2002 2001
U.S. government securities $ 230,765 $ 182,486
Corporate bonds and notes 319,688 237,215
Common and preferred stocks 562,191 677,885
Mortgage and asset backed

securities 59,239 157,746
Marketable and nonmarketable

alternative funds 878 10,050
Money market and other 190,261 210,481

Total investments at fair value 1,363,022 1,475,863
Less current portion (333,477) (355,090)

Investments, noncurrent portion $1,029,545 $1,120,773

Disaster Relief Fund
In accordance with procedures directed by the Board of Governors,
any unspent unrestricted disaster relief funds at the end of a fiscal
year are set aside for future disaster operations in the Disaster
Relief Fund. Additionally, unspent contributions restricted by
donors for disaster relief are also available for expenditure in future
years.

The following is a summary of Disaster Relief Fund balances for the
last 10 fiscal years:

an thousands) Balance at June 30
Unrestricted Donor

Fiscal years: Board designated restricted Total
1993 $21,473 $42,731 $64,204
1994 39,345 67,114 106,459
1995 52,671 41,601 94,272
1996 60,858 11,679 72,537
1997- 58,510 8,316 66,826
1998 81,424 11,835 93,259
1999 65,203 9,210 74,413
2000 55,084 6,196 61,280
2001 28,192 13,576 41,768
2002 29,058 53,972 83,030

The summary above does not include donor restricted funds asso-
ciated with the Liberty Disaster Relief Fund - September 11
Response. As of June 30, 2002, donor restricted funds of approxi-
mately $420 million were held by the Organization for future expen-
ditures for September 11 relief and response (Notes 6 and 12).

(9) Split Interest Agreements

The Organization maintains split interest agreements in the form of
charitable gift annuities, perpetual trusts held by third parties, chari-
table remainder trusts, and pooled income funds. Assets of split
interest agreements of $117 million and $88 million are included in
investments and other receivables on the consolidated statement of
financial position at June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The value
of split interest agreements is measured as the Organization's fair
value share of the assets. Liabilities associated with these agree-
ments are $21 million, of which $4 million is included with other cur-
rent liabilities and $17 million is included with other noncurrent liabil-
ities on the consolidated statement of financial position.

28

(11) Benefit Plans

Pension and Postretirement Plans
Employees of the American Red Cross, including participating local
chapters, are covered by the Organization's pension plan (the
Retirement System) after one year of employment.

For funding purposes under the plan, normal pension costs are
determined by the projected unit credit method and are funded cur-
rently. The plan provides a pension funded entirely by the employ-
er. Voluntary contributions may be made by active members to fund
an additional, optional annuity benefit. Defined benefits are based
on years of service and the employee's final average compensation,
which is calculated using the highest consecutive 48 months of the
last 120 months of service before retirement.

Red Cross funding policy is to set the employer contribution rate at
a percentage of covered payroll that is intended to fund toward a
target range of not less than 105 percent and no more than 115 per-
cent of the projected unit credit accrued liability. To the extent that
the current funding is more or less than the target's upper bound of
115 percent, the difference is amortized over ten years in calculat-
ing the contribution rate. During fiscal years 2002 and 2001, the
Organization contributed 1 percent in each year of covered payroll
to the Retirement System.
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The Organization also provides medical and dental benefits to eligi-
ble retirees and their eligible dependents. Generally, retirees and the
Organization each pay a portion of the premium costs. The medical
and dental plans pay a stated percentage of expenses reduced by
deductibles and other coverages. The Organization has the right to
modify cost-sharing provisions at any time. In addition, life insur-
ance benefits of $5,000 are provided with no contributions required
from the retirees.

The American Red Cross postretirement benefit plans are unfund-
ed. However, as discussed in Note 6, the Board of Governors has
designated $97 million of unrestricted net assets to fund a portion
of premiums for retirees' postretirement medical benefits.

The following table presents the changes in benefit obligations,
changes in plan assets and the composition of prepaid (accrued)
benefit costs in the consolidated statements of financial position for
the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
oIn thousands) 2002 2001 2002 2001
Changes in benefit obligations
Benefit obligations at

beginning of year $ 937,545 $ 777,749 $147,393 $ 126,432
Service cost 56,240 46,478 6,324 5,031
Interest cost 71,580 64,205 10,910 10,086
Plan participants

contributions 6,109 5,821 - -

Actuarial loss (gain) 14,393 67,935 (51,273) 13,436
Benefits paid (27,178) (24,643) (8,5281 (7,592)

Benefit obligations at
end of year $1,058,689 $ 937,545 $104,826 $ 147,393

Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan

assets at
beginningof year $1,116,871 $1,179,775 $ - $ -

Actual return on
plan assets (105,311) (52,352)

Employer contributions 8,706 8,270

Plan participants'
contributions 6,109 5,821

Benefits paid (27,178) (24,643)

Fair value of plan
assets at end
of year $ 999,197 $1,116,871 $ - $

Prepaid (accrued) benefit costs
Funded status $(59,492) $179,327 $(104,826) $(147,393)
Unrecognized net

actuarial (gain) loss 36,521 (190,931) (46,184) 5,089
Unrecognized prior

service cost 19,547 23,462 15,468 17,158

Prepaid (accrued)
benefit costs $ (3,424) $ 11,858 $(135,542) $(125,146)

Significant assumptions used in accounting for the plans as of June
30, 2002 and 2001, were:

Pension benefits
2002 2001

Postretirement benefits
2002 2001

Discount rate 7.30% 7.90% 7.30% 7.30%

Expected return on
plan assets 8.50% 8.50% - . -

Rate of compensation
increase 6.00% 6.00% - -

For measurement purposes, an 8.0 percent annual rate of increase
in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed
for fiscal year 2003. The rate was assumed to decrease to 5.5 per-
cent for 2004 and remain at that level thereafter.

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended
June 30, 2002 and 2001, were:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
On thousands) 2002 2001 2002 2X01
Service cost $56,240 $46,478 $ 6,324 $ 5,031

Interest cost 71,580 64,205 10,910 10,086
Expected return

on plan assets (97,478) (88,253) - -

Amortization of
unrecognized
transition asset - (3,733) - -

Amortization of prior
service cost 3,915 3,915 1,690 1,690

Recognition of
actuarial gain (10,269) (15,666) - -

Net periodic
benefit cost $23,988 $ 6,946 $18,924 $16,807

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on
the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage
point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have
the following effects:

On thousands) Point increase Point decrease
Effect on total of service

and interest cost components $3,147 $(2,447)

Effect on postrelirement
benefit obligation 14,213 (11,427)
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American Red Cross Savings Plan - 401(k) Plan
The Organization participates in the American Red Cross Savings
Plan, (the Savings Plan), a defined contribution plan. Employees of
the American Red Cross, including participating chapters, are eligi-
ble to participate upon hire and are vested 100 percent in all contri-
butions to the Savings Plan. The American Red Cross matches 50
cents for every dollar up to the first 4 percent of annual compensa-
tion contributed by the participant. For the 2002 calendar year, con-
tribution limits were based on a maximum annual compensation of
$170,000. There are eleven investment options that an employee
can choose from as well as a self-managed brokerage account. The
Organization contributed approximately $12 million and $8 million to
the Savings Plan for fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively.

(12) Liberty Disaster Relief Fund - September 11
Response

The Liberty Disaster Relief Fund (the Fund) was approved by the
Executive Committee of the Board of Governors of the Red Cross
on October 3, 2001, and was subsequently ratified by the Board of
Governors on October 27, 2001. On November 10, 2001, the
Executive Committee took actions to further define the scope and
purpose of the Fund. The financial statement presentation reflects
the impact of those decisions retroactive to September 11, 2001.

As a result of the decisions made by the Board of Governors, the
Fund is used exclusively to meet the immediate and long-term
recovery needs of people directly affected by the terrorist attacks
on the United States on September 11, 2001. Donor-expressed
designations that are more specific than the overall Fund purpose
(for example, contributions designated to those affected in New
York City), are strictly honored and such contributions are used only
in accordance with those designations.

The revenues and expenses of the Liberty Disaster Relief Fund for
the period ending June 30, 2002, are as follows:

Temporarily
(In thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenues and gains:

Contributions:
Uberty disaster relief -

Sept 11 response $ - $989,060 $989,060
Services and materials - 59,669 59,669
Grants - 7,696 7,696

Investment income *6,546 - 6,546
Net assets released from

restrictions 636,784 (636,784) -

Total revenues and gains 643,330 419,641 1,062,971

Expenses:
Uberty disaster relief -

Sept 11 response 617,960 - 617,960
Fund raising 25,370 - 25,370

Total expenses 643,330 643,330

Change in net assets - 419,641 419,641
Net assets, beginning of period - - -

Net assets, end of year $ - $419,641 $419,641

(13) Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
The Organization is a defendant in a number of lawsuits incidental
to its operations. In the opinion of management, the outcome of
such lawsuits will not have a materially adverse effect on the
Organization's financial position or its activities.

Consent Decree
In May 1993, the Organization signed a consent decree (the Decree)
with the United States Food and Drug Administration affecting
Biomedical Services and its Blood Services regional operations.
The Organization committed to establish, implement, and/or main-
tain certain improvements in systems and controls in Blood
Services within specified time frames to enhance and ensure com-
pliance with applicable laws and regulations, internal standard
operating procedures, and the provisions of the Decree. Based on
discussions with the FDA, it is probable that the Decree will be
amended to include additional compliance requirements, which
would likely result in additional expenses. The level of potential
additional costs is not known at this time.

On April 13, 2001, in order to help ensure ongoing regulatory com-
pliance, the Board of Governors authorized access to $100 million
of discretionary funds for Biomedical Services initiatives. These
funds are only available to the extent that internally generated
sources of funds and fund-raising proceeds are inadequate to
cover incremental compliance activities. At June 30, 2002, none of
these funds had been accessed.

(14) Risks and Uncertainties

The Organization's invested assets consist of common stocks,
fixed income securities and other investment securities. Investment
securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, mar-
ket and credit. Due to the level of uncertainty related to changes in
interest rates, market volatility and credit risks, it is at least reason-
ably possible that changes in these risks could materially affect the
fair value of investments reported in the statement of financial posi-
tion as of June 30, 2002. However, the diversification of the
Organization's invested assets among these various asset classes
should mitigate the impact of any dramatic change on any one
asset class.
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American ~Naional Headquaters
American 430 17th Street, N.W.
Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

July 1, 2002

Princess Margriet
Chairman
Standing Commission

of the Red Cross and Red Crescent
9-11, La Vy-des-Champs
CH 1202 Geneve (Suisse)

Dear'Princess Margriet:

I wanted to acknowledge with appreciation your gracious letter of 12 June 2002,
concerning our contribution to the Standing Commission. The work of your Commission is of

,I --. vital importance to the effectiveness' of the Federation and we are anxious to support your efforts
is_; and those of the Federation as it pursues its humanitarian mission throughout the world.

Gerry.Jones and I tried to reach you this week-to introduce you to our new President,
Marsha Johnson Evans, but unfortunately we were unsuccessful. Enclosed is a brief biography
on Ms. Evans. She is the right person to. lead-the American Red Cross at this time, and I am
anxious to introduce you to her at an early convenient time.

With continued best wishes.

Sincerely,

David T. McLaughlin

Enclosure

bcc: Marsha Johnson Evans
Gerry Jones

(. S

SFCGARC-A001 680
Together, we can save a life
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Biography
Marsha Johnson Evans

President and CEO
American Red Cross

Marsha Johnson Evans will become the 19& president and chief executive officer of the'

American Red Cross,. effective August 5, 2002.

As executive director of the Girl Scouts since 1998, Evans brings an impressive array of
experience to the her new position at the Red. Cross-not the'least of which is a 29-year

career with the U.S. Navy. Retiring in 1997 as a Rear Admiral, Evans was the second
woman in history to have achieved that rank

As a Navy officer, Evans held a variety of command positions overseeing multi-million

z dollar budgets and hundreds or thousands of employees. Between 1993 and 1995, for
example, she led the Navy Recruiting Command. With more than 6,000 employees in

1,200 locations, she was responsible for recruiting some 70,000 officers and enlisted
V.- personnel annually. She served as chief executive of the Naval Postgraduate School in

'Monterey, California, where she led an effort to restructure and adapt educational
programs to better-meet demands on incoming officers, and was chief of staff at the U.S.

Naval Academy in Aninapolis, Maryland. She also served as commanding officer.of the-

. 'I'asure Island Naval'Statin, where she directed Navy personnel and -civilianswho

support Navy families in the San Francisco Bay Area.

Assuming the top staff position at the Girl Scouts four yearsago, Evans said the job was

a natural continuation of her efforts to expand professional roles of women in the Navy,

-where she lecd the Naval Academy's first-ever program to ensure opportuities for male

and female midshipmen,. among other such efforts. Similarly with the Girl Scouts, Evans

has labored to offer young women meaningfu1 programs, both personally and
professionally.

Under her leadership, the Girl Scouts' Manhattan-based headquarters and more than 300

local councils nationwide'have created or expanded cutting-edge programs to enhance
girls' experiences in science, technology, sports, money.management and community

-service. And spearheading efforts to update Girl Scouts' image and change recruiting

practices,.Evans presided over a substantial increase in the number of adult volunteers. At

a time when many charities report an all-time low in their volunteer ranks, Girl Scouts

has increased theirs to nearly 1 million adults, the highest number in the organization's

C history, with corresponding increases in young members.

SFC-ARC-AO01 681

.............. -1 _... - .1 -I..... I.- I. � �.- -1. I.. ...... ?-.. - . . ..., , ... v., - " %.; , .1., ... 1. .. I' ... _ m- .. - %. ., '... ... . % - t... . : v. -- . . . ..... -1 - - - - : , " . ...:. , � ... ."



From her years at Girl Scouts, Evans is no stranger to issues facing the Red Cross and

scores of other non-profit organizations. Among them: the need to recruit volunteers and

employees from diverse backgrounds. Evans has led the push at Girl Scouts, as she has

said, "to reach more girls from racial, ethnic and minority groups... .that's our goal, to
make Girl Scouting available to every girl" To that end, she has championed programs
among minority populations.

Evans has also grappled with decreased fund-raising returns in the wake of a filtering
economy, seeking to develop new sources of revenue, such as gifts from donors'
retirement and pension funds, at Girl Scouts. Under her tenure, contributions grew by
more than 20 per cent between 1998 and 2001.

'Marty" Evans, as she is known, grew up in Springfield, Illinois, the daughter of a Navy

chief petty officer. She entered the Navy immediately after graduating from Occidental
College in Los Angeles with a:B.A. in Law and Diplomacy. Some years later, the Navy
provided her with the opportunity to earn a master's, and she completed a degree in
International Security at Tuft University's Fletcher School of Law and Diplomacy.
This degree was supplemented by additional studies at Tufts, the National War College in

Washington, D.C. and the Naval War College in Newport, RI. Evans, who counts skiing
and kayaking among her hobbies, has traveled the world, residing in cities such as Tokyo
and London. She lives with her husband Jerry Evans, a retired Navy fighter pilot.

Cf
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STANDING COM OSSION
ftha Red Cron and Red Cresce',

CDhvUSSION PEROANE
dc LL Craix-Rojp o det C.Cm-Riuv

COmS6NPBRMANE
de la Cuz Roja y de la MWdi a ROLS

Mr. David T. Mclahlin
Chairman
Americaa Red Cross

431 18h Steet N.W., 2ud Floor
20006 Washington D.C.
USA

June le" 2002

Dear Mfr. Mclanghlin

It is with heartfelt gratitude that I extend my sincere thank yea to the American Rcd Cross for

the generous contributioa of I 15.750.00 CHF, (70.088.12 USD) to thc S g

Comnumasion's budget forour costs jn 20aooi 2001.

As you kmow, the Standing CammIssion is closely aswsixtng the National' Socictk* in its

decisiion-n~iaking proCeSs throu6g e~siutitions. in V8IiOilS Wor)[in G~raops and through. other

means of comrxmnicatioxL We are a eciative of yorSociys participation in one of our

groups. As a question of pncipl$ w ar se ig advice on isscs that are of importance to.

all components of the Movemet Your iititon helps enormously i. th ing of tiese

woridng groups, which presently involve representatie from morc th 25 difrtRNational

Societies and arz vey active i ourwork on the Emblem, the im mf St

and of counse in thc.preparaions for the nxt Couicil and the Intero al Conferhce.:

The Commission also seeks to be presnt at regional conferences ard important sub-regional

meetngs-to pote Movement ters and to her the w ews of Natirial Socees.
Connibutions om National Societies hindalso th5esectivit+ies ands ensure ihat th

Commission hag a consiiltaton mechanism fio the work it es out in the mtorest of thc

Movement.

Once again, allow me to thnk the American Red Cross for this.valuable conlibution and

wish your Society every success in itsiwork

9-11, La Vyeae-Cbas - CH 1202 Genive (Sumse)
T&1 (4441 22) 730 20.32 Fax (44 41 22) 730 20 27

E-mail: strndcom@bluewinach
SFC-ARC..AoO16 83
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A merican National Headquarters
AmeriCan 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

-David T. McLaughliax
Chairman

June 25, 2002

Dr. Moshe M. Melloul
President
Magen David Adom in Israel
60 Yigal Allon Street
Tel-Aviv 67062
Israel

Dear Dr. Melloul:

We enjoyed having you visit the Red Cross last week, and I hope that
your trip to the U.S. was productive. Your description of the situation in the
Middle East was disturbing. The tension and violence is well reported but the
lack of cooperation between the Palestine Red Crescent and MDA, and the
politicalization of the humanitarian effort is worse than we understood it to be.

(I I look forward to setting a date for the signing of the memorandum of
understanding between our organizations, and in the interim, encourage you
and your associates to take advantage of every opportunity to participate in
regional and other meetings of the Federation.

Regards,

David T. McLaughlin

cc: Gerry Jones

bcc: Ha ro 1d Dec-ker -
Ca ro 1 Ann Ha a ke

w.
Togethei we can save a life
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To: David McLaughlin, Chairman
From: Geny Jones

Date: 06/20/02.
Re: Meeting with Dr. Moshe Melloul, President of Magen David Adorn

Background

Dr. Moshe Melloul will be visiting Washington on June 21 and then Baltimore from
June 22-25, including the Baltimore Chapter. -You are scheduled to meet with Dr.
Melloul at 11am on Friday in your office, followed by a lunch at Noon in the Central
Committee Room. This is primarily a courtesy visit, though Dr. Melloul may wish to
share ideas on our efforts to get MDA admitted to the Movement.

Dr. Melloul was appointed President of MDA in early 2000 by the Israeli Health
Minister. In this position, Dr. Melloul performs a largely representational role -
neither clearly defined as governance (Chairman Gur of the MDA Executive
Committee) or management (Avi Zohar, Director General of MDA.) He is considered
a moderate and quite diplomatic, though not always representative of hard line views
of MDA's other top leaders (both retired Army Generals.) Dr. Melloul is the most
consistent MDA representative to attend international meetings of the Movement
over the past two years and has established good working relationships with the
ICRC and Federation.

Trained in Nuclear Medicine, Dr. Melloul is still an active, practicing physician. He
spent 1980-1982 training and working at Johns Hopkins University in Baltimore, MD.
He is currently a member of the Israeli Ministry of Health, Director of the Institute for
Nuclear Medicine at the Rabin Medical Center, and senior physician at the "Assuta
Hospital" in Tel Aviv. He has been a guest lecturer in the United States, South Africa,
Morocco, Greece, Cyprus, Japan and Singapore.

MDA Fundraising in the US

During his visit to the United States, Dr. Melloul will be visiting the independent (vs.
Federated) MDA Friend's groups in the United States in LA, Chicago, Washington
and Baltimore. These independent groups have emerged within the past decade in
part due to concerns among MDA supporters in the US about financial management
and funding policies of the Federated MDA friend's group known as ARMDI,
headquartered in New York.

ARMDI, which stands for American Red Magen David for Israel, collects
approximately $8 million per year in the United States. Due to very stagnant

SFC-ARC-AO01 686
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leadership and strict interpretation of IRS rules, ARMDI refuses to fund many of
MDA's operating costs and will only use the funds they raise to purchase
ambulances in the United States for shipment to Israel. The independent friend's
groups are more flexible and lenient and frequently raise cash based on MDA
appeals for specific funding, most recently through intemet and e-mail solicitations.

Under pressure from ARMDI, Chairman Gur has recently signed an exclusive
agreement with ARMDI stating they are the sole recognized friend's group in the US.
Dr. Melloul's visit is apparently designed to reassure the emerging independent
groups, possibly contrary to Chairman Gur's wishes.

MDA fundraising in the US is an issue we have yet to address as an organization.
Some chapters have raised concerns that MDA is fundraising in their jurisdictions,
though most concerns are alleviated once they understand the total amount raised.
Previous ARC leaders have decided not to take issue with MDA's fundraising while
they are still excluded from membership in the Movement. Technically once part of
the Movement MDA would not be allowed to raise funds in other countries, without
the express approval of the National Society of the country in question. This leaves
us with a number of options to consider, each with potential downsides, including

a) facilitate their fundraising efforts, merged with our chapters and subject to
our procedures and corporate overhead fees (abnormal for ARC to
fundraise for wealthy countries)

( - b) ask them to stop fundraising in the US while helping them build fundraising
capacity within Israel (risks a backlash among US bas6d MDA supporters)

c) allowing them to continue fundraising with no direct ARC involvement
(could frustrate our chapters and set a precedent for other societies that
wish to fundraise in the US.)

Memorandum of Understanding

We have completed a final round of internal consultations and revisions to the MOU
between our two societies, which is attached for your review. We recommend
sending this version of the MOU to MDA's Chairman, Yochanan Gur with your
signature on it as a way to signal the end of negotiations and minor chances to the
text. If you agree, we will immediately Fed-Ex the agreement with the attached cover
letter from Brian Maiewski to Chairman Gur noting the last few modifications. Once
we do this, we can proceed to discussing options for a signing ceremony and
promotion of the agreement.

Dr. Melloul is not involved in the more recent discussions about the MOU and Avi
Zohar and Chairman Gur have asked that we only negotiate with them on its
contents. While we do not recommend giving Dr. Melloul the signed version to carry
back to Israel, it would be fine to discuss the agreement in vague terms. Dr. Melloul
is aware of the general areas of collaboration outlined in the agreement and may

( raise them as a positive and welcomed advancement of our relationship.

SFC-ARC-A0o1687* Page 2



C MDA Membership

More than any other MDA leader, Dr. Melloul is patient and has consistently
supported achieving MDA membership through diplomatic negotiations. He is well
aware of our positions and is well versed in the arguments made by the ICRC and
Federation for a slow and cautious approach. Though moderate, he is appreciative
of our stance and leadership on this issue and frequently expresses his belief that
very little would have moved forward in 2000 without our decision to withhold dues.

Tenure as President

Dr. Melloul's tenure as President of MDA is set to expire in February 2003. While in
Geneva last week, Brian Majewski learned that Dr. Melloul hopes to extend hisiterm
for at least one year, based on the argument that continuity would be important for
MDA's membership bid. He believes that his experience negotiating on the
Emblem/Membership issue would be valuable through the end of the Intemational
Conference of the Red Cross and Red Crescent in December 2003. He suggested
to Brian that he would like American Red Cross support for extending his term and
could bring this up in your meetings. It could be difficult for us to take a position or
get involved in this issue, especially if the Israeli Govemment is prone to appoint
someone new and we have gone on record supporting an extension of Dr. Melloul's

-- term.

SFC-ARC-AO01 688* Page 3
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National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W
Washington, DC 20006

Office of the
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Richard Roberts has been slow to rule since joining
the federal bench. But now he's turning it around.

BY JONATHAN GRONER

In May 2000, a jury awarded
Russian immigrant Boris Reznikov
$150,000 after concluding that he had
been unlawfully fired by the Kennedy
Center Opera House Orchestra
because he is Jewish.

But Reznikov hasn't seen a dime,
and he hasn't been restored to his job
as principal second violinist. /

The reason: U.S. District Judge
Richard Roberts, who presided over
the eight-day trial, still hasn't ruled on
a series of routine post-trial motions.
Until the judge acts, Reznikov

Courts statistics show that Roberts
has consistently been the slowest of
the 14 active federal trial judges in
the District of Columbia in dealing
with motions.

Roberts, a former Justice Department
official appointed to the bench in 1998,
acknowledges that delay has. been a
problem for him. But he says he is get-
ting a better handle on his docket, and
the latest statistics bear him out.

"It's important to me that we decide
cases fairly and correctly, as well as effi-
ciently and quickly,' says Roberts. "I -

hope I vw4 4 see all these goals achieved. I
have been a public servant most of my
career and T take seriously the obligation

1 -

after
them
relea
Sept. 11 hijackers; another wno squarely
rejected the government's right to. control
an alleged terrorist's access to his
lawyers; and a defendant who used an
open courtroom as a soapbox to spout
anti-American invective.

The administration, it seems, has had
enough.

The government's decision last week to
shunt suspected al Qaeda operative and
U.S. citizen Jose Padilla into the custody of
the Department of Defense and out of the
criminal justice system is seen by many as
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American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

Tnhvd T. MPTnaohlin

Chairman

June 6, 2002

Honorable George J. Mitchell
Vemer, Liipfert, Bernhard,
- McPherson and Hand
901 l5'h Street, N.W.
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20005

.Dear Senator,

You honored the Red Cross by your making the extraordinary effort to

join us in Phoenix to keynote our Annual Convention. All of us are grateful to

you.

You inspired the delegates and helped to renew their sense of mission

during a period of unprecedented challenges.

I am indebted to you for this and for so much more.

Regards,

David T. McLaughlin

cc: Harold Decker

Together, we can save a life
SFC-ARC-AOO1 6 9 1



A erican _National HeadquartersAmtwgeric all 430 17th Street, N.W.
I Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. Mclaughln
Chairman

June 6,2002

Mrs. Sarah P. Kops
2375 Woodward Street, #515
Philadelphia, PA 19115-5123

Dear Ms. Kops:

I appreciated receiving your recent letter concerning the American Red Cross position on
admitting Megan David Adorn to the Federation of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies. Our
intent has not been to compromise the capability of the Federation to deliver humanitarian
services - in fact, our funding of these programs has increased in recent years.

We do feel strongly that the Federation is a universal movement and that no nation's
society should be excluded for political reasons. It is on this principle that we have elected to
withhold our administrative dues.

Again, my thanks for your expression of support.

Regards,

David T. McLaughlin

bcc: Carole Ann Haake
Ambassador Jones
Harold Decker

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-Ao01692
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American Red Cross National Headquarters
Office of the Chairman

Board of Governors

David T. McLaughlin

Harold J. Decker

Date: June 6, 2002

Subject: Removal of the Board of Directors-
San'Diego/Imperial Counties
Chapter

Today, the Executive Committee considered a presentation by management reviewing
certain matters involving the San Diego/Imperial Counties Chapter, including recent
actions by its board of directors, and accepted all four recommendations proposed by
management. The actions taken by the Executive Committee address the serious
concerns and issues that have arisen regarding the current status and condition of the
chapter, which have been the subject of prior reports to members of the Board of
Governors.

Management's first recommendation was that the Executive Committee remove,
effective immediately, the members of the chapter's board of directors. The chairman
of the chapter has been advised of this action and other local board members are in
the process of being notified. The second recommendation was to suspend, effective
immediately, the bylaws of the chapter. The third recommendation was to approve
and ratify management's proposed action to transfer to and place under the authority
of the Mountain Pacific Regional Management Team all activities of the chapter, all
funds and property in the custody and control. of the chapter, and the books and
records of the chapter. Finally, management reco'mmended that the Executive
Committee approve and ratify management's proposed action to form an advisory.
connmuttee, which will be comprised of at least three but not more than five
community leaders identified by the Mountain Pacific Regional Management Team to
assist and advise them and other. appropriate members of corporate management on
matters concering the chapter, including a review of all systems. It is expected that
the Mountain Pacific Regional Management Team will report monthly to the
President and CEO and executive vice president, Chapter Services Network, and that
such reports will be provided to the Executive Conmmittee.
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The adoption and implementation of management's recommendations are designed to
facilitate the extensive rebuilding - internally, in the community, in management and
in governance - of the chapter~. As you are aware, Ms. Dodie Rotherham's tenure as
chief executive officer of the chapter ended last week.

When it is deemed appropriate, the Regional Management Team, advisory committee
and other members of corporate management shall recommend to the Executive
Committee the reinstatement of the chapter's bylaws. Management contemplates that
a board development committee will then be formed for the purpose of identifying
candidates for the chapter's board of directors and holding a membership meeting to
elect the new board.

A tremendous amount of work lies ahead for this chapter. The Executive Committee
has placed its trust in management to begin the task of returning this chapter to a
status of respect in the community and Red Cross family.

C'
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C.'
Felix Weihs de Weldon, (1907-)

Felix de Weldon's contribution to official inaugural medals is his design for the 1965 Johnson medal.
De Weldon already had an international reputation "as the artist to presidents and kings" by the time
he executed the Johnson medal Born in Austria, he first achieved public recognition as a sculptor
there in 1924, when at the age of seventeen, when he won a national sculptor contest He studied
and honed his craft throughout Europe before settling in London where he became the official
court artist. Felix de Weldon sculpted members of the Royal Family and many other prominent
people in the British society, including Kings George V, George VI and Edward VIII. He was
knighted in both England and Italy earning the titled Sir Felix. His first visit to the United States
came after traveling to Canada to sculpt Prime Minister Mackenzie. He as so impressed he decided
to. emigrate. He joined the United States Marines during World War H during which time in 1945 he
began work on his most recognizable work when he transformed the Pulitzer prize winning
photograph of the flag raising on Iwo Jima into the bronze statue in Arlington National Cemetery.
The statue took nine years and was completed in 1954. There are over 30 examples of his work in
and around Washington, D.C. and although none are numismatic in nature he did sculpt busts from
live sittings of Presidents Truman, Eisenhower,, and Kennedy.

SFC-ARC-AOOI 697
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American
Red Cross

David T. McLaughlin,
Chairman
Members, Board of Governors

Marsha J. Evans

Date: November 27, 2002

Subject: Advance Copies, 2002 Annual
Report

Previously, I committed that the Board of Governors would receive their copies of the fiscal 2002

American Red Cross annual report in November. I am very pleased to enclose your copy today.

This special mailing to the Board of Governors precedes a wider distribution that will occur in

December. As in years past, we will post the full report on our public Web site,

www.redcross.org, and mail it to field units, donors, Fortune 1000 corporations, government

leaders and other constituents. We are also exploring the option of sending a scaled-down version

of the report to additional key audiences.

I hope you enjoy perusing this important document and sharing the information it contains with

others in your community. As it shows, we have accomplished so much during a very

challenging time for the Red Cross. This year's report covers the fiscal period of the September

11, 2001, terrorist attacks, and we've dedicated pages 10 and 11 to our subsequent, unparalleled

relief operation. The theme, "People Like You," brings home the message that it is individuals

like you, as well as thousands of other volunteers, who make the lifesaving work of this great

organization possible. Along with the entire Red Cross family, I am deeply appreciative of your

service.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have comments or questions.

SFC-ARC-AO01 700

Together, we can save a life

National Headquarters
Office of the President and CEO

To:

From:



-- tL American
Red Cross

Together, we can save a life

SFC-ARC-AO01 701

�,, J- - .n5 .. . .. z "

.. I ,
m-e L

F tI� " I j& ,
I

��:q

I - ."'

I �, ��

. -1
z- A

-1

or -� , .
.,e '. -.�
Ol

R{F -

I

�- -.. �-"t
�;,Q, "



0 A Joint Message From the Chairman and the President and CEO

The work of the American Red Cross is to prevent, prepare for
and respond to emergencies. People like you make it possible.

When you volunteer, make a financial contribution or donate blood
through the Red Cross, you save lives. You help others cope with
disaster, whether it's a medical emergency, home fire, earthquake
or terrorist act. You teach millions of people first aid, CPR and
other lifesaving skills every year. You provide meals and other
services to the needy, support for families of military members
stationed far from home and international aid for vulnerable
populations.

In turn, when disaster strikes close to home, people like you can
rely on the Red Cross. During emergencies and when lifesaving
preventive and preparedness skills are needed, we have always
responded and will continue to do so.

However, in a world where terrorism can strike, the very definition
of the word 'emergency' changes, and being prepared takes on a
new urgency. As you read this, the Red Cross is working to make
America less vulnerable to such crises. A big part of that is ensur-
ing that the Red Cross has the necessary infrastructure and other

t resources to respond to disasters that-in their enormity and the
suffering they cause-seemed impossible before the September
11 terrorist attacks 15 months ago.

These events taught us valuable lessons about responding to
such brutal tragedies. We learned to work closely with other
emergency-response groups to eliminate confusion and redun-
dancy. We learned to pair national and local Red Cross workers,
ensuring that resources are adequate and local -know-how is
preserved. Catastrophic tragedies may also require us to assign
Red Cross caseworkers to specific families for longer periods to
guarantee that our services are consistent and needs are met.

Of course, we will continue to leam, but make no mistake: The
Red Cross is proud of what we have achieved after September 11
and the number of families we have assisted-with your help.

Now, as we begin a new era with new leadership,* the Red Cross
is working to apply the right resources in the most effective ways
possible. For example, we've begun a nationwide assessment of
Red Cross disaster response capabilities to pinpoint existing
human resources, material resources and relationships with other
organizations-chapter by chapter, community by community and
nationwide. The goal of this assessment, to be completed in early
2003, is to identify strengths and weaknesses and apply these
findings to further improve our disaster relief services.

In our line of work, we know that preparing to the very best of
one's ability-as an individual or an organization-is an empower-
ing exercise. That's why we've begun a planning process to chart
the course of the Red Cross over the next three to five years.
Along with terrorist acts, we have seen a sizeable increase in other
major disasters, the migration of more Americans to disaster-prone
regions of the country and substantial growth in the increasingly

older and diverse populations we serve. A strategy that takes these
and other realities into account will guide us in maintaining our
unbroken record of service to the American people.

This plan, to be released next spring, will involve individuals from
every part of the Red Cross, including volunteers, our most valu-
able resource. Because the Red Cross must be representative of
the increasingly varied communities we serve nationwide, our plan-
ning process involves reaching out to individuals and organizations
that have been underrepresented in the past.

Finally, to address pressing regulatory and financial issues and
ensure the long-term health of our blood-banking operations, we
recently adopted a 1 0-year, multidimensional plan to improve the
procedures and facilities of our Biomedical Services division.
Gaining and maintaining the confidence of key constituents-
blood donors, recipients of blood and blood products and the
Food and Drug Administration-is our top priority.

For all that we have done-and all that we will do-we thank our
generous donors and volunteers, people like you. Please continue
supporting our efforts to create a stronger Red Cross, a safer
America and a better world. By volunteering, making a financial
contribution or giving blood, you participate in a worthwhile array
of humanitarian programs: teaching CPR, helping a cancer patient
survive, preventing fatal childhood diseases overseas-and so
much more. Together, we can save lives.

David McLaughlin
Chairman

Marsha Johnson Evans
President and CEO
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' Marty Evans, former national executive director of Girl Scouts of the USA
and a refired U.S. Navy rear admiral, became President and CEO of the
American Red Cross on August 5, 2002.
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People Like You
Since its founding in 1881 by visionary leader Clara Barton, the
American Red Cross has been the nation's premier emergency-
response organization. As part of a worldwide movement that offers
neutral humanitarian care to the victims of war, the American Red Cross
distinguished itself by also aiding victims of devastating natural disas-
ters. Over the years, the organization has expanded its services, always
with the aim of preventing and relieving suffering.

Today, in addition to domestic disaster relief, the American Red Cross
offers compassionate services in five other areas: community services
that help the needy; support and comfort for military members and their
families; the collection, processing and distribution of lifesaving blood
and blood products; educational programs that promote health and
safety; and international relief and development programs.

All of these programs are heavily dependent on volunteers-people like
you-who make up more than 90 percent of the Red Cross workforce.
The following pages introduce some of these extraordinary individuals
and summarize our service to the American people and other
populations in 2002.

SFC-ARC-AO01 703
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To be prepared for emergencies, the Red Cross
advises families to create a family disaster plan.

promoting homeland security. In March
2002, when the federal government created
the Homeland Security Advisory System,
a color-coded ranking system to alert the
public about the likelihood of terrorist
attacks, the Red Cross developed comple-
mentary recommendations for each threat
level. The Office of Homeland Security
Web site (www.redcross.org/services/
disasterdbeprepared/hsas.html now links
to the Red Cross recommendations for
individuals and organizations.

Also last year, the Clara Barton Center for
Domestic Preparedness-a Red Cross
facility in Pine Bluff, Ark.-started a resi-
dency leadership program for Red Cross
personnel from all over the country. In
courses at the center, Red Cross chapter
personnel learn how to respond to events
involving weapons of mass destruction or
terrorism in their communities.

In addition, the Red Cross
enhanced services to vic-
tims of disasters, great
and small, by improving
our use of technology.
For example, a Client
Assistance Card, which
operates like a debit
card, is now being used
in several locations.
During a relief operation,
a Red Cross chapter
can load a specific
dollar amount onto the

Holly Mullins

Flash floods and mudslides tore through
southern West Virginia last spring, killing
nine people and destroying hundreds of
homes, schools and businesses. In the
small town of Welch, the destruction was
particularly severe. Walking through the
streets after the rains finally ended, 14-
vrear-nod Hnllu

Mullins saw
many neigh-
bors' homes
in ruins. "My
family was
really lucky,"
she says. "Our
house was
okay."

Mullins and her
two friends,
Rebecca Holly Mullins became a
Damron and Red Cross volunteer to
Jina McKinney, help her neighbors.
wanted to
help their town recover. They had the
time because their school, damaged by
the storms, was closed indefinitely.
So the three girls walked to the nearby
American Red Cross shelter for flood
victims and volunteered to work. They
ended up spending nearly a month as
volunteers, dividing their time between
the shelter and a Red Cross service center
where area families applied for assistance.

Her experience with the Red Cross
inspired Mullins to put her feelings into
a poem (see page 36). "After looking
at all the terrible damage in our town,

seeing how the Red Cross helps
;he explains, "I wanted to say
u.

But if anyone deserves a
thank-you, it's Mullins and her
two friends. "They were quick
studies and very hard workers,"
says Gloria Bobb, a longtime
Red Cross volunteer who super-
vised the girls. "I tried to get
them to take time off, but they
refused."

SFC-ARC-AO01 704
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Dr. Michael DeBaun

In 1999, Dr. Michael DeBaun of St. Louis
approached his local Red Cross with an idea.
Years of treating children with sickle cell
disease had inspired him to do more
for young patients who suffered debilitating
strokes and were in dire need of blood
transfusions. Because sickle cell disease
commonly affects African Americans,
DeBaun asked the Red Cross to help him
recruit African American blood donors,
who are more likely to have the type of
blood required by his patients.

The Red Cross Missouri-Illinois Blood
Services Region embraced the project,
teaming up with DeBaun and St. Louis
Children's Hospital to create a community-
wide campaign. In full force today, the proj-
ect recruits African Americans to participate
in blood drives throughout the Greater
St. Louis area. Because sickle cell stroke
patients need transfusions every three to
four weeks, the drives are held regularly,
with many repeat donors. More than 20,000
units of blood have been collected so far,
and the campaign is expanding throughout
Missouri.

"We've been able to improve the quality
of medical care for all children with sickle
cell disease in the state," DeBaun says.
'Ahis forever changes the quality of medical
care for these children."

DeBaun's packed schedule doesn't leave
much room to spare, but for the past two
years he's found time to serve as vice-chair
of the board at the Red Cross Missouri-
Illinnis Rlnnd SrPviesrz Recinn What

q

One of many Red Cross services is providing meals for families whose homes are destroyed or damaged
by natural disasters.

card through the Internet; the family being
assisted can then use it to purchase items
at any store that accepts MasterCard. The
card gives families immediate access to
needed goods and services, helps restore
their sense of self-determination and is
much more flexible than other methods of
assistance.

To provide this and other disaster services,
the Red Cross relies on contributions from
the American people, who respond very

-A A . l.. * I _ _ - I|
g emer-
relief

operations exceed the need for donations,
the Red Cross retains the excess money in
its Disaster Relief Fund. The fund is used
to help victims of future disasters, particu-
larly those that generate little publicity and
few or no contributions.

Last year, the Red Cross took additional
steps to clarify its disaster fund-raising
policy, after learning that many donors
did not completely understand the policy.
Now solicitations are more explicit, stating
that gifts help victims of a specific emer-
gency and thousands of others nationwide.
Thank-you messages acknowledging
donors reiterate this fact, and the public is
immediately informed when contributions
to any relief operation exceed the need.

4
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Working with the Red Cross, Dr. Michael
DeBaun has improved medical care for young
patients with sickle cell disease.
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Making Communities Safer
and Stronger

In communities across the country, the
Red Cross offers a broad spectrum of
services for people of all ages, including
home-delivered meals, transportation for
those who can't drive, shelters for the

homeless, temporary housing, fuel assis-
tance, visits to hospital patients, transla-
tors for people who can't speak English
and many, many more. Last year, Red
Cross chapters provided 22 million such
services.

Many of these services were aimed at
youth. The School Safety Initiative, a
program that promotes safe environments
where children can learn and grow, was
launched in several locations last year and
will continue to expand. It helps students

prevent, prepare for and respond to violent
incidents and all types of emergencies
through age-appropriate lessons on disas-

ter readiness, international humanitarian law,

9 first aid, CPR, leadership skills and toler-
ince. Available for students in elementary
grades through high school, the curricula
and training fit into existing coursework
and can be supplemented by complemen-
tary programs and services from other
organizations.

To further support young people, the

Red Cross continued expanding its Youth
Affirmation Program, which provides
meaningful opportunities for young people

to become leaders by getting involved in

disaster relief efforts, blood drives, senior
assistance programs and services such as

delivering meals to the homeless. The pro-
gram also recruits older youth who mentor

younger children by teaching them swim-
ming and other skills. Nationwide and
overseas, the program has served nearly
500,000 children and young adults.

Last year, the Red Cross expanded
services for another important demographic
group: people aged 65 and older, whose
numbers are climbing dramatically.
Thousands of additional seniors were
reached last year after the Red Cross
invited nearly 1,000 chapters nationwide-

many of which already offer services to
this age group-to develop new programs
for the elderly. Chapters responded by
creating shopping and errand services,
safety courses for older persons who live
alone, adult daycare, programs that link
bilingual volunteers with seniors who do
not speak English and more.

To further contribute to seniors' well-being,
the Red Cross also actively participated in

national coalitions that recruit nurses and
promote nursing as a career. At a time
when there is already an acute shortage of

nurses, more and more seniors will need
access to professional home-care
providers and well-staffed medical and
retirement facilities.

In communities nationwide, the Red Cross
provides rides for people who cannot drive or
take public transportation.

Nat & Jeannette Alvarez

For Jeannette Alvarez, the smiles are the
reward she says. 'When I see the look on
a senior's face after I bring food, or when
I give that extra hug, I can't help but go
home with a full heart." For her husband
Nat, a retired firefighter, it's a lifelong
desire to help others that keeps him vol-
unteering year after year. And, he says,
'I believe in the work of the Red Cross."

Longtime Red Cross volunteers Jeannette and
Nat Alvarez provide groceries and other services
to the needy.

The husband and wife from southern
California have volunteered for the Red
Cross for 47 and 22 years, respectively.
One of their most successful projects has
been the Supplemental Food Program,
still active in western San Bernardino
County. Each month, volunteers deliver
nutritious food to some two dozen low-
income seniors or disabled residents-
usually three or four bags of groceries
per person. Nat and Jeannette helped
launch the program 20 years ago, organ-
izing regular fund-raising events to keep
it alive.

They have.also been leaders in the Inland
Valley Chapter's annual holiday programs,
gathering donated toys, clothing and
other gifts and delivering them to needy
people and hospitals in December.

A bilingual speaker, Nat has taught
hundreds of Red Cross CPR, first aid and
disaster preparedness courses in both
Spanish and English, even traveling to
Mexico and Spain to teach. Like his wife,
he has no plans to retire from Red Cross
work. "We all need help at one time or
another," Jeannette says. "Well continue
to volunteer as long as we're able."

SFC-ARC-A001706 5



Johnnie Means

Johnnie Means loves swimming-he has
since he was 12 years old. He also has a
knack for helping young people succeed.
These two character traits united 43
years ago, when Means became a Red
Cross volunteer Since then, he's
imnroved the
lives of thou-
sands of inner-
city youth.

After graduat-
ing from col-
lege in 1959,
Means moved
back to his
hometown of
Houston and
uecame a Kea Johnnie Means has taught
Cross-certified thousands of inner-city
water safety youth to share his love of
instructorL Over swimming.
the next few
decades, he helped dramatically advance
swimming opportunities for Houston's
minority families. "At one time, there
were very few resources for low-income
kids who wanted to team to swim," Means
explains. 'There was a high drowning
rate among inner-city kids, and parents
were afraid to let their children near
pools." The only swimming programs
available, he adds, were expensive.

Means helped develop Houston's first free
leam-to-swim program. Working with his
Red Cross chapter, he organized swim
courses at downtown pools that became
hugely popular, especially among African
American and Hispanic families. Before
long, Means had transfonmed the courses
into a highly competitive swimming pro-
gram. The Harris County Precinct One
Aquatics Program, with Means as director
and head coach, thrives today. Hundreds
of children enroll each year.

Recently retired from his full-time job
as aquatics director of Texas Southern
University, Means plans to continue
working with the Red Cross and the
aquatics program. 'If we didn't give
these kids the opportunity to swim,
it's unlikely they would," he says.
'That's my motivation."

Aiding Military Members
and Their Families

Dominating the headlines in 2002, U.S.
military activities affected countless families
when Operation Enduring Freedom began
deploying thousands of U.S. troops to
installations throughout the Middle East
and other remote areas around the globe.
The Red Cross immediately offered support
to these service members through the
Armed Forces Emergency Services (AFES)
network.

The AFES network allows military members
all over the world to communicate with
their loved ones at home in the event of
an emergency or other important event,
such as the birth or death of a family
member. AFES also provides access to
emergency financial aid and last year
administered a new assistance program
that National Guard and Reserve troops
could tap when no other resources were
available. Additionally, Red Cross volun-
teers touched the lives of hundreds of
patients in military hospitals and clinics.

As U.S. troops headed overseas last year,
the Red Cross deployed teams of trained
workers to support them. While continuing
to support U.S. soldiers in Bosnia, Kosovo,
Hungary and Macedonia, AFES staff trav-
eled to new military sites in Uzbekistan
and Afghanistan and installations in Saudi
Arabia, Kuwait, Diego Garcia, Guam and
Cuba. They set up field offices in military
camps, providing emergency communica-
tion services as well as books, movies,

snacks, supplies and what many service
members need most: a friendly ear.

At home, hundreds of Red Cross chapters
and AFES stations briefed departing serv-
ice members and their families on how
the Red Cross could help them during
their separation. Comfort kits containing
toiletries and brochures about Red Cross
services were distributed to nearly 120,000
National Guard and Reserve members,
who are often unaware of these services
for military families.

All told, 523,660 military families received
direct assistance from the Red Cross in
2002, up from 475,690 the previous year.

Providing Safe and
Available Blood

More than 4 million volunteer donors made
7.2 million lifesaving blood donations
through the Red Cross in 2002, contribut-
ing about half of the nation's blood supply.
These blood donations were used in
transfusions for accident victims, cancer
treatments, routine surgeries and a grow-
ing number of complex operations like liver
transplants and knee replacements.

Nationwide, the need for safe and avail-
able blood is rising. Baby boomers are
approaching their 60s, a time when surger-
ies requiring the most blood, such as heart
operations, are more common. At the
same time, medical advances mean that
once-rare procedures are now routine.
Organ transplants and certain cancer regi-

Red Cross workers visit military
hospitals and dinics and
provide a range of services to
military members and their
families.
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Like this man, many people are elated when they
donate blood. Each donation has the potential to
save three lives.

mens involving large amounts of blood are
now more accessible. Meanwhile, emerg-
ing illnesses such as mad cow disease
have presented challenges to maintaining
adequate blood supplies, as new safety
policies exclude some groups of donors
from giving.

Last year, the Red Cross responded to the
increasing need for donated blood, upping
the amount collected by 6.5 percent.
While much of the increase was due to
Americans' overwhelming desire to give
following the September 11 attacks,
another strong factor involved Red Cross
efforts to make giving blood easier and
more convenient. Donors, for example,
can now schedule blood-donation
appointments by calling a toll-free number,
1-800-GIVE LIFE, or visiting a Red Cross
Intemet site, www'givelife.org. Through a
national outreach campaign, 1.8 million

previous blood donors were contacted and
asked to schedule another appointment to
give blood during the summer months,
when shortages are often severe.

Challenges remain: Ensuring compliance
with federal rules governing blood bank-
ing, a highly regulated enterprise, is one
example. Committed to meeting and
exceeding these federal regulations, the
Red Cross recently developed a compre-
hensive plan to improve, among other
things, computer systems, the manage-
ment of its biomedical facilities and train-
ing for employees who handle blood and
blood products.

Looking even further ahead, the Red Cross
last year began a decade-long effort to
modernize its blood collection and process-
ing facilities to streamline and standardize
operations. The goal: ensuring that the
Red Cross uses state-of-the-art practices
in blood banking for years to come.

In fiscal year 2002, the Red Cross also
enhanced its services to the 3,000 hospi-
tals and medical centers that depend on it
for safe blood and blood products such as
red blood cells and plasma. To ensure that
the right blood product is available for
every patient at the right time, the Red
Cross worked with medical facilities to
help them forecast their needs, based on
scheduled surgeries and other factors.

Actress Jane Seymour visited Kenya
to help eliminate measles, which kills
nearly 500.000 African children annualty.
She is part of a project being led by the -- ': t

Jane Seymour

When actress Jane Seymour recently trav-
eled to Kenya with an American Red Cross
team, she learned about the often fatal
effects of measles on African children by
talking with teachers, schoolchildren and
mothers whose children had died. 'One
mother,' Seymour recalls, 'told me that
sometimes they won't name their children
until they have had measles." The reason:
So many children die from it.

Measles kills nearly 500,000 children in
Africa each year. Seymour, a member of
the Red Cross National Celebrity Cabinet-
a volunteer group of actors, musicians,
authors and sports figures who support
Red Cross causes-wants to change that.
She has joined an effort to eliminate
measles in Africa by vaccinating 200
million children at a cost of less than
$1 per child. The five-year project, called
the Measles Initiative, is being led by the
American Red Cross with partners includ-
ing the United Nations Foundation,
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
UNICEF and the World Health Organization.

In just one week in June, Seymour and
her companions-American Red Cross
workers, health experts, Kenyan Red
Cross volunteers and students from a
Los Angeles middle school-helped vacci-
nate 13.3 million children. Eight other
countries are due for similar campaigns

this year. 'As a mother of six, it
saddens me greatly that

,,, >~-; so many vulnerable
children are dying,'

`, , - ! Seymour says.
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Shannon Smith
and Debbie Michelte

In the days after the September 11 terrorist
attacks, next-door neighbors Shannon Smith
and Debbie Michelle struggled to comfort
their frightened children. "They were con-
fused and afraid," Smith recalls. 'We could
only tell them that our military would do its
best to keep us safe." But the two Arlington,
Tex., women wanted to do more.

"I remembered stories both my grandfa-
thers told about World War H and how
excited soldiers were when mail was deliv-
ered," Michelle says. She and Smith
thought it would help their children to
write letters of support to U.S. troops
overseas, thanking them for protecting
the country. The idea spread into the
children's classrooms and then to other
schools-many of them. That's when the
women contacted their local Red Cross
chapter for help, and Operation Enduring
Response was born.

Now, on the 11th of each month, students
across the country write letters addressed
to 'Any Service Member." They are gath-
ered by Red Cross chapters, sent to 40
military installations and then delivered
to service members overseas. The Armed
Forces Emergency Services network of
the Red Cross, which has workers at each
installation, actually delivers the letters.

Smith and Michelle have spent countless
hours working on Operation Enduring
Response. It's hard work, they say, but
worth it. Children benefit from
,,writ-inn the letters. ant hen
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Ichaya Danapong (right) teaches
a younger child to swim in a
Red Cross program that involves
kids in helping others.

Improving Access to
Lifesaving Skills

For almost a century, one of the most
important activities of the Red Cross has
been teaching Americans lifesaving skills
such as first aid, CPR, disease prevention,
babysitting and many other caregiving and
emergency-response abilities. Last year,
the Red Cross trained 12 million people in
the skills they need to be safe at home,
work, school and play.

Since 1914, the Red Cross has been a
leader in providing the best available
courses in swimming, water safety and life-
guarding. That tradition continued last year
with new courses designed to make leam-
ing easier and help people benefit from the
latest medical science translated into prac-
tical, easy-to-understand information.

lurses were shortened without
ing content to make them more
sible to busy professionals.
(ample, Red Cross chapters
in offering an accelerated
iergency response course to
nurses and nursing students
who teach those skills to others
and who already know certain
fundamentals such as first aid.

After the September 11 terrorist attack
Shannon Smith (left) and Debbie MichE
created a nationwide program in which
children write to service members.

The Red Cross trained 635,000 people last
year in how to use the automated external
defibrillator (AED) to save victims of sud-
den cardiac arrest. The AED is a portable
device that delivers a potentially lifesaving
electric shock to the heart, which can
restore its normal rhythm. Because imme-
diate use of an AED in conjunction with
CPR could save up to 50,000 lives each
year, the Red Cross has set a goal of pro-
viding CPR, first aid and AED training to
at least one member of every household
in America.

The Red Cross also strengthened its
HIV/AIDS prevention and education
program in 2002, with funding from the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.
Under this cooperative agreement, culturally
specific courses for African Americans and
Hispanics were revised to focus more train-
ing and activities on teaching people how
to prevent HIV infection. Last year, more
than 500 Red Cross chapters reached one
million people with such courses.

Preventing and Relieving
Suffering Around the Globe

Disease prevention is a serious concern
among American Red Cross international
workers who respond to disasters around

SFC-ARC-AO01 7098



the world. One of the most ambitious and
successful projects initiated last year is the
Measles Initiative. This project, led by the
Red Cross, has four partners: the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention, the
United Nations Foundation, UNICEF and
the World Health Organization.

Measles, a preventable disease barely
remembered by most Americans, kills
nearly one million children worldwide each
year; half of these deaths occur in Africa.
The goal of the initiative is to eliminate
measles on that continent in five years by
providing critically needed vaccinations,
region by region. At the end of its first year,
the Measles Initiative had vaccinated more
than 21 million African children, saving an
estimated 47,776 young lives.

In Latin America and the Caribbean,
Red Cross workers continued another
program to reduce deaths among children,
aged five or younger, from measles, diar-
rheal disease, acute respiratory infections,
malaria and malnutrition. Together, these
diseases kill 11 million children worldwide
each year. Partnering with the Pan
American Health Organization and others,
the Red Cross is providing immunizations
and teaching simple health practices
involving sanitation, breast feeding and
prevention of water-borne diseases.

Last year alone, the program prevented
25,000 deaths.

The Red Cross worked in Guatemala,
Honduras, El Salvador and Nicaragua,
continuing long-term projects to improve
water and sanitation after devastating
natural disasters in those countries. With
partners such as the U.S. Agency for
International Development, nonprofit
organizations and governments of the
host countries, the Red Cross provided
potable water, helped build sanitation
systems and offered hygiene education
to at-risk populations.

Of special note last year One month
after the September 11 terrorist attacks,
President George W. Bush initiated
America's Fund for Afghan Children and
asked that the Red Cross administer it.
American children were urged to give one
dollar each, and the Red Cross used these
donations to deliver warm clothing, clean
water, medical equipment, school supplies
and other necessities to youth in the belea-
guered country. By the first anniversary of
the fund, more than $10 million had been
raised and the Red Cross had undertaken
four relief shipments and other projects
benefiting more than 700,000 Afghan
children and their families.

Afghan children benefit from shipments of relief supplies made possible by America's Fund for Afghan

Children, a fund created by President Bush and administered by the Red Cross.

Weiss-Parker Family

The Weiss-Parker family of Portland,
Ore., may have saved 3,000 lives so far-
possibly more. Each year, on the first
Saturday in January, the relatives gather
at their local Red Cross donor center
to give blood, continuing a family tradi-
tion that has lasted 26 years. Together,
they have donated 1,036 units of blood;
each donation has the potential to save
three lives.

The late Morris and Shirley Weiss started
the tradition in 1976, during the nation's
bicentennial. Morris, who had worked with
Red Cross bloodmobiles in World War II,

and his wife

launched Giving blood is a holiday traditioi
their in the Weiss-Parker family.
'Living New
Year's Resolution" and requested that Sam
and their daughter, Elaine, keep the tradi-
tion going.

When members of Sam Weiss's and Elaine
Parker's families reach the age of 17, the
minimum age for blood donation, they
join the group at the donor center each
January. By 2002, four generations had
participated. 'No one has been scared off
by the needle," Sam says. 'It's one of the
most painless ways to give a gift."

Morris and Shirley Weiss chose early
January because they knew the holiday
period is often characterized by blood
shortages. For their descendants, donating
blood has become part of the family's
annual celebrations and, as Sam says,
'truly a bonding experience."
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The Red Cross September 11 Relief Operation

The terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001 -unlike any other emer-
gency-called upon every service offered by the Red Cross, weaving
them into the most comprehensive relief operation in history, which
continues to this day. Those services, largely provided by dedicated
volunteers, have included:

Disaster Relief
More than 3,300 families who lost loved ones and seriously
injured persons have already received up to a year of living
expenses, as well as supplemental estate gifts. Economic assis-
tance was given to more than 50,000 others who lost their homes,
jobs or livelihoods. In addition, the Red Cross served 14 million
meals and snacks to rescue workers and victims, while trained
workers provided 236,000 mental health counseling sessions
and 133,000 health services visits. The relief operation is now
providing longer-term aid, including educational assistance, health
care, counseling and other support services, for a three- to five-
year period.

International Aid
The American Red Cross reached across the globe to help
1,500 overseas family members and other dependents of people
who perished or were severely injured in the attacks. They
received financial aid as needed for up to one year; travel to and
from the United States to settle their loved ones' affairs; and
reihimbusm ent. frsr f- - -------- --5nPl In -__.

Red Cross respite centers provided meals and other services
who labored around the dock after the terrorist attacks.

at AP is~ES diU (idosts sucn as snippingfor rescue workers the deceased person's belongings home.

Collection of Donated Blood
In the uncertain weeks following the attacks, the Red Cross
collected 925,000 units of blood from individuals, many of whom
stood in line for hours to donate. By October 1, nearly 275,000
first-time donors had given blood. Although there was more
donated blood than was needed by survivors, the Red Cross
used all but 5 percent of it. Because blood is a potentially
lifesaving gift with a shelf life of 42 days, this small percentage of
donations could not be used.

Services to the Military
As U.S. troops were called to active duty, Red Cross services to
military families expanded, providing emergency communications
and other services between military members and their loved
ones at home. Teams of Red Cross workers were dispatched to
new U.S. installations in Uzbekistan and then Afghanistan, lifting
the spirits of troops with comforts such as books, movies, snacks
and simple companionship.
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New Health and Safety Resources
0 Within weeks after the attacks, the Red Cross produced a variety

of educational tools to help individuals, schools, businesses and
communities create viable emergency plans, including evacuation
nrr-vpduirA5q wrininn systems and

other precautions. To help children
cope, a new curriculum called Facing
Fear Helping Young People Deal with
Terrorism and Tragic Events provided
age-appropriate lessons for children
in kindergarten through 12th grade.

The financial response from the
public in the aftermath of the horrific
attacks was immediate and pro-
found, as donations poured in from
both individuals and organizations.
All of these contributions were put in a special fund called the
Liberty Disaster Relief Fund and reserved solely for the direct serv-
ices described in the first two paragraphs on the opposite page.
Senator George Mitchell, the former Senate Majority Leader, is the
fund's independent overseer.

By June 30, 2002, the end of the fiscal year covered in this report,
the Liberty Fund had received more than $1 billion in monetary
and in-kind donations, and had spent $643.3 million. By November
1, 2002, as this report was going to press, another $112 million
had been disbursed, primarily in the form of direct assistance to
families of the deceased. Having recently begun the operation's
focus on long-term aid, the Red Cross expects to spend the
remainder of the fund on meeting extended mental and physical
health needs of the victims' families, providing services to
displaced residents and rescue workers and responding to other
special needs.

You can read more about the September 11 relief operation and
the Liberty Disaster Relief Fund, including quarterly financial
statements, by visiting wwwredcross.org. A one-year report about
the relief operation can be found at www.redcross.org/press/
disaster/ds-pr/pdfs/arcwhitepaper.pdf.

SiL X ,- -

The Red Cross helped businesses create emergency proce-
dures to use in the event of further terrorist attacks.

This enormous, unparalleled effort could not have been accom-
plished without the 54,748 volunteers from all over the country
who accounted for 95 percent of Red Cross workers. Many
worked for weeks on end at disaster sites in and around New
York, nearby communities in New Jersey and Connecticut,
Washington, D.C., and Shanksville, Penn. Volunteers also served
at the origin and destination points of the planes that never made
it home and at other airports where passengers were stranded.
Volunteers accompanied victims' family members to Ground Zero
and spent hours speaking with grieving individuals at several
Family Assistance Centers, the Red Cross Compassion Center
and through a national hotline staffed by trained workers.

A letter dated October 14, 2001, from a New York couple-one of
thousands received by the Red Cross-speaks for many:

On September 1 1, our beloved son was

killed .. Throughout this ordeal, the people who have

helped us are the workers of the American Red Cross.

They helped us at Pier 94, where we went to file the

missing persons report, from the time we arrved.

On September 27, we again went to the pier to file for a

death certificate. The volunteers were all compassionate

and helped us from the time we arrived until the time we

left, which was approximately six and a half hours. When

we went to have something to eat, they sat with us and

consoled us. They were kind and understanding as they

helped us fill out forms and to address our needs...

We thank you from the bottom of our hearts.

Remembering those who perished and the anguish that followed,
the Red Cross salutes our compassionate volunteers-people like
you-and every individual who took action to help others after the
September 11 attacks. The Red Cross joins the American people
in deep appreciation for your unwavering service.
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Financial Overview FY 2002*

Fiscal year 2002 was a year accented by many challenges. No one
could have predicted the significance of the public response to the
September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks and, in turn, the ability of the
American Red Cross to react with flexibility and compassion to the
needs of thousands of victims of that national tragedy. On that day,
Red Cross chapters in and around New York City, Washington, D.C.
and Pennsylvania responded immediately to help victims, their fam-
ilies and rescue workers. Concurrently, the public and corporate
community responded with an outpouring of monetary and in-kind
giving unprecedented in the history of Red Cross. When the fiscal
year ended on June 30, 2002, the Red Cross had received over $1
billion in monetary and in-kind donations and had incurred expens-
es of $643 million of which 91 percent represented direct assis-
tance and services to victims and disaster responders. A total of
$419.6 million remained unspent at June 30, 2002, but all of the
funds were committed to programs of financial assistance to people
directly impacted by the disaster, as well as long-term mental
health, health and other programs that will provide assistance for
years to come. Additional information regarding the Red Cross
response to September 11 can be found in footnote 12 to the audit-
ed financial statements that follow this overview. Also, Red Cross
fiscal accountability measures are highlighted on page 15.

Red Cross Structure
The Red Cross is a humanitarian organization, led by volunteers,
whose mission is to provide relief to victims of disasters and help
people prevent, prepare for and respond to emergencies. It accom-
plishes this mission through Chapter Services, Biomedical Services
and national headquarters operations. Chapter Services consists of
approximately 1,000 chapters located in communities throughout
the United States. The chapters are primarily supported by charita-
ble contributions, investment income and fees for health and safe-
ty and other courses. The chapters, with support from and in col-
laboration with national headquarters, provide services in response
to disasters such as floods, single family and multi-dwelling fires,
tornadoes, hurricanes and the like. The chapters also provide com-
munity education in CPR, water safety, automated external defibril-
lation and first aid. Much of the work of Chapter Services is accom-
plished by volunteers who work in partnership with paid profes-
sional staff.

Biomedical Services is an activity that is fiscally and operationally
separate from Chapter Services and consists primarily of 36 Blood
Services regions located across the United States. The regions' pri-
mary purpose is to collect, process and distribute blood and blood
products to hospitals and medical centers. Virtually all of the
expenses of Biomedical Services are covered by revenues from the
sale of products and services. National headquarters provides man-
agement oversight to the chapters and Biomedical Services, as well
as providing corporate services in areas such as insurance, finance,
audit, legal, human resources, communication and marketing, infor-
mation technology and fund raising. National headquarters also
coordinates the international activities of the organization.

* Juy 1, 2001-June 30, 2002.

12

The Red Cross Board of Governors formulates policy and dele-
gates governance authority to local chapter boards of directors,
consistent with corporate policy and external regulatory bodies.
This decentralized responsibility for service delivery, combined with
centralized policy and guidance, enables the Red Cross to give
immediate, effective and efficient assistance.

Sources of Financial Support
Red Cross operating funds come from three main funding sources:
contributions, revenues from products and services and other
sources. Total Red Cross operating revenues and gains for fiscal
year 2002 were $4.117 billion.

Operating Revenues and Gains

6J Contributions ($1,864,000,000) 45%
(includes United Way, domestic and international
disaster relief, September 11 relief, legacies, grants
and all other monetary and in-kind contributions)

Investment Income and Other ($192,000,000) 5%

(includes investment income, exchange contracts
and other revenues) 4

Q Products and Services ($2,061,000,000) 50%

(cost recovery, including course fees and materials,
whole blood and components and tissue services)

Contributions
Contributions of $1
support.

Contributions

.864 billion comprise 45 percent of Red Cross

Donated Materials and Services ($59,000,000) 3%

0 Contributions for Domestic and International
Relief, Generat Operations and Endowment Gifts
($561,000,000) 30%

Q United Way and Combined Federal Campaign
($188,000,000) 10%

* Liberty Disaster Relief-September 11 Monetary
and In-Kind Response ($1,056,000,000) 57%
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The sources of contributions in any one year can fluctuate dramat-
ically, depending upon the scope of disaster relief activities and the
public's response to requests for support. This was never more evi-
dent than during the public and corporate response to the
September 11 terrorist attacks, which produced over $1 billion in
financial and in-kind contributions. Monetary contributions for dis-
aster relief, general operations and permanently restricted endow-
ments totaled $561 million, or 30 percent of total contributions.
Federated fund-raising efforts by United Way and the Combined
Federal Campaign, which also support general operations,
amounted to $188 million, or 10 percent of all contributions. The
remaining 3 percent, or $59 million, represents the value of con-
tributed services and materials, a critical component of Red Cross
service delivery efforts.

Products and Services
Traditional Red Cross emergency services are provided at no cost
to the recipient. However, Red Cross programs have fee-based
structures in which fees pay for the costs of materials, facilities and
staff that are required to produce reliable and available products
and services. Products and services revenues of $2.061 billion are
50 percent of Red Cross support and include fees charged for
products, materials and courses, primarily through Biomedical
Services and Health and Safety Services programs. Biomedical
Services collects, tests and distributes nearly half of the nation's
blood and blood components. Whole blood and components such
as red cells, platelets and plasma, as well as plasma derivatives
such as serum albumin and anti-hemophilic factor, are some of the
critical life-sustaining blood products provided by the Red Cross.
When donated blood is collected, it undergoes a battery of com-
plex tests to screen for the HIV antibody and a number of other
infectious diseases, including different strains of hepatitis. The Red
Cross also provides life-sustaining bone and tissue products
through its network of tissue units. Last year, Biomedical Services
received $1.924 billion in fees, primarily from health care providers
for collecting, testing and distributing blood and tissue products.

Investment Income and Other
Other revenue of $192 million, or 5 percent of Red Cross support,
consists of contracts for delivering various program services and
investment income from endowment and Board-designated
reserve funds.

Operating Expenses

0 Biomedical 52%

International 1%

* Disaster Services and Relief 9%

O Health, Safety and Community Services 10%

Fund Raising 4%

Ur management ana tenerat 5n-V

(0 Armed Forces Emergency Services 2%

0 Liberty Disaster Relief
September 11 Response 17%

Expenses
Total Red Cross operating expenses for the year were $3.571
billion. Expenses incurred for Biomedical Services ($1.873 billion),
Liberty Disaster Relief-September 11 Response ($618 million) and
Disaster Services ($308 million) made up 78 percent of total Red
Cross expenses for fiscal year 2002.

Biomedical Services
Red Cross Biomedical Services provides a variety of life-sustaining
blood, plasma and tissue products to those in need. Significant
investments are made annually for ongoing working capital require-
ments, facility maintenance and renovations and improved techni-
cal equipment. When viewed as a separate operation, Biomedical
Services generated an $86.9 million surplus, or 4.4 percent of its
total revenues. This surplus is used to fund critical capital expendi-
tures for facilities and equipment as well as maintaining blood
inventories that are adequate to respond to emergencies.

Liberty Disaster Relief - September 11 Response
As noted earlier, the response to those impacted by the September
11 terrorist attacks was immediate and will enable the Red Cross to
continue to address people's needs for several years. Summarized
below are the types of assistance rendered, with expenses through
June 30, 2002:

(In millions)
Direct financial assistance

Families of the deceased and seriously injured
Displaced residents, economically affected individuals

and disaster responders
Long-term services to those directly affected
Immediate disaster relief
Direct support

$177.4

279.4
.3

129.1
31.7

Total program costs 617.9
Fund raising and donation processing
(includes donated advertising worth $19.7) 25.4

Total expenses $643.3

Disaster Services
Disaster services were provided in all 50 states as well as offshore
U.S. territories and possessions. Disaster costs include assistance
provided to victims of fires, tornadoes, floods, transportation inci-
dents and other natural or man-made disasters, as well as the cost
of assisting victims of international disasters.

Disaster Services Expenses: A 10-Year History
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Financial Overview

Funding Disaster Services
Disaster fund raising is a requirement of all Red Cross chapters. 4
Policy dictates that chapters raise funds to meet the cost of disas-
ter relief operations within their jurisdiction. Corporate policy also
states that each chapter affected by a major disaster is obligated to
initiate immediate fund-raising efforts. Consequently, where disas-
ters are of significant magnitude, or involve many chapters on a
wider geographic basis, the responsibility for fund raising and
administration becomes a partnership between chapters across the
state and national headquarters. In large disaster situations, a toll-
free telephone number is activated as well as a national post office
box address, and appeals are made on a regional or national basis.
In addition, secure donations are solicited online through our
Internet site. Public donations received from major disaster appeals
are, by policy, forwarded for deposit to national headquarters,
which is accountable for their administration. Contributions restrict-
ed by donors for specific disaster operations or for the Disaster
Relief Fund are spent in accordance with donor wishes. In rare
instances where restricted contributions exceed the cost of disas-
ter relief as specified by the donor, such contributions are held by
the Red Cross for ongoing disaster assistance in accordance with
donor wishes in the affected area or region. When disasters occur,
the Red Cross responds to victims' needs immediately and is total-
ly dependent upon the generosity of the public to help pay the cost
of relief. The vast majority of disaster expenses consist of direct
relief to victims in the form of food, shelter and clothing, as well as
basic household furnishings such as bedding. Other costs include
the expenses of staff who deliver and support these critical services.

Debt and Borrowing Capacity
The ability of the Red Cross to meet day-to-day obligations is
reflected primarily in its working capital position and the financial
flexibility to borrow funds for emergency needs and future capital
requirements. As of June 30, 2002, the Red Cross reported $397
million of debt, borrowed primarily to fund investments in equip-
ment, systems and building improvements, which is a decrease of
$53 million from the previous year. The debt-to-net assets ratio as
of June 30, 2002, was 15.4 percent, well within existing creditor
debt covenants.

e
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Fiscal Accountability

American Red Cross management is responsible for all financial statements in this report, which conform to general-

ly accepted accounting principles. The financial statements in this report show the consolidated financial results of the

Red Cross network of service units and the cost of delivering all Red Cross services for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2002. The financial report includes:
* A Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (page 19).

* A Consolidated Statement of Activities (page 20).
* A Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses (page 21).

* A Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (page 22).

The Red Cross is committed to making the most effective and efficient use of all the resources it receives and fully dis-

closes in this annual report financial information pertaining to the broad scope of Red Cross programs and activities.

Federal statutes require that the Red Cross make a report of income and expense to the Department of Defense as

soon as is practical after July 1 each year. The Red Cross provides not only a report of income and expense, but includes

the full array of financial statements and disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles. The Red

Cross has engaged the internationally recognized firm of KPMG LLP, certified public accountants, as the principal audi-

tor. They audit the financial statements and provide their auditors' report, which is presented on page 18.

In addition to KPMG LLP, the Secretary of Defense has directed the U.S. Army Audit Agency to review the work of the

principal auditor to ensure that the audit is performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and

that they can rely on the principal auditors' work. The U.S. Army Audit Agency report is presented on page 17.

Red Cross management ensures that an organization-wide internal control structure is in place to provide reasonable

assurance that financial records are reliable and that assets are protected. Internal auditors monitor compliance with

established policies and procedures, the internal control structure is continually evaluated and accounting standards

are disseminated throughout the organization to assure the integrity of accounting and consistency in reporting.

The events of September 11, 2001, required a heightened level of awareness regarding financial controls throughout

the Red Cross system. Red Cross management, along with Board of Governors oversight, instituted a comprehensive

array of financial directives, audit reviews and reports to ensure to the greatest extent possible that donor contributions

were properly accounted for and that expenditures were in accordance with donor restrictions. Listed below are some

of the key financial reporting and control measures implemented specifically to address the response to September 11:

* Immediately provided on-site finance and audit staff in New York City and issued supplemental accounting and inter-

nal control guidance to all chapters.
* Required comprehensive contribution testing by independent auditors at more than 800 chapter locations prior to

October 31, 2001.
* Provided weekly financial reports on the Red Cross public Web site to ensure accountability for funds spent.

* Received an unqualified opinion from KPMG LLP on the Statement of Revenue Collected and Expenses Paid for

the period September 11, 2001, to October 31, 2001, and posted the audited statement on the Red Cross public

Web site.
* Appointed Senator George Mitchell as independent overseer of the Liberty Disaster Relief Fund and issued quar-

terly reports on January 31, April 30, August 1 and November 1, 2002, regarding the status of funds spent and com-

mitted, which were posted on the Red Cross public Web site.

* Received an unqualified opinion from KPMG LLP on the Statement of Activities and Statement of Functional

Expenses for the period September 11, 2001, to June 30, 2002.

Annually, the Board of Governors appoints an independent Audit Committee. This committee reviews matters affect-

ing Red Cross finances, especially those pertaining to the internal control structure, audits and supplemental reviews

of Red Cross September 11 financial activity. KPMG LLP and U.S. Army Audit Agency auditors have unrestricted

access to the committee to discuss the results of their work and to give their assessments concerning the adequacy

of internal controls and the quality of financial reporting. The Audit Committee Chairman's letter is presented as a part

of this financial report.

John D. Campbell
Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President
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Audit Committee Chairman's Letter

The Audit Committee (the 'Committee") of the Board of Governors is currently composed of seven independent
directors who are not officers or employees of the American Red Cross (the 'Organization"). The Committee over-
sees the financial reporting process of the Organization on behalf of the Board of Governors.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the Committee held four formal meetings. In addition, I interacted
frequently with internal and external auditors regarding reviews and tests of control procedures related to the
Organization's response to September 11 and kept the Committee and the Executive Committee of the Board of
Governors informed of the results of those reviews.

The Committee has a formal written charter, which is annually reviewed. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the
Committee recommends the selection of the Organization's independent certified public accountants to the Board
of Governors and reviews the independence of the selected firm. The Committee discussed with the internal audi-
tors, the independent certified public accountants and the U.S. Army Audit Agency (the "auditors") the overall
scope and specific plans for their respective audits. The Committee also reviewed the Organization's consolidated
financial statements with management and recommended to the Board of Governors that such audited financial
statements be included in the annual report. The Committee met regularly with the Organization's chief financial
officer and auditors to review internal controls, audit results, accounting principles and practices and the overall
quality of the Organization's financial reporting. Meetings without management present were also held and
designed to facilitate any private communications with the Committee desired by the auditors.

Kathryn A. Forbes

Chairman

Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor's Report

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
U.S. ARMY AUDIT AGENCY

Office of the Auditor General
3101 Park Center Drive

Alexandria, VA 22302-1596

A-2003-0032-FFG October 30, 2002

The Act of Congress that incorporated the American Red Cross, as implemented by
Department of Defense Directive 1330.5 and Army Regulation 930-5, requires that the
U.S. Army Audit Agency perform an annual audit of the financial statements of the Amerik
Red Cross. The American Red Cross contracted with the certified public accounting firm c
KPMG LLP as the principal auditor to perform a financial audit of its 2002 financial
statements. To fulfill our audit responsibilities, avoid duplication and unnecessary expent
and make the most efficient use of our available resources, we reviewed the principal
auditor's work and reports.

We reviewed KPMG LLP's audit of the consolidated financial statements of the American R
Cross for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. In the opinion of the principal auditor, bas.
on its audit and the reports of other auditors, the American Red Cross' 2002 consolidated
statement of financial position presents fairly, in all material respects, its financial positioi
as of June 30, 2002 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

We conducted our review in accordance with generally accepted government auditing
standards. Those standards require that we determine the reasonableness of the principal
auditor's work and the extent to which we could rely on it. We reviewed the financial
statements and auditor's report to evaluate compliance with generally accepted accountinf
principles and auditing standards. Our review included the auditors' qualifications,
independence, quality control methods, planning, and evidence. We also tested the audito
work to evaluate the auditor's understanding of the internal control structure, and the
nature, timing, and extent of the audit work performed.

Nothing came to our attention to indicate that KPMG LLP's opinion on the American Red
Cross's 2002 financial statements is inappropriate or cannot be relied on.

We believe that the financial statements, together with KPMG LLP's opinion and our review
that work, furnish Congress a dependable basis for evaluating the financial condition of th
American Red Cross.

4 RNCIS E. REARDON, CPA
The Auditor General
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0 Annual Disaster Giving Program

'o The following corporations were members of the American Red
Cross Annual Disaster Giving Program in the 2002 and/or 2003
fiscal years. The program provides a reliable funding base for
relief services and enables the Red Cross to respond immediately
to the needs of individuals and families impacted by disasters.

American Express Foundation

AT&T

BELFOR-INRECON

Bristol-Myers Squibb Company

Cisco Foundation

Citigroup Foundation

Computer Associates International

ConAgra Foods, Inc.

Delta Air Lines

Federal Express Corporation

Food Lion, Inc.

JCPenney Company, Inc.

Kmart Corporation

Lilly Endowment, Inc.

Lowe's Home Improvement Warehouse

Marriott International

Merck & Co., Inc.

Morgan Stanley

Nationwide

Raytheon Company

Sears, Roebuck and Co.

Sony Corporation of America

State Farm Insurance

Steelcase Foundation

Target Corporation

United Airlines Foundation

Woodmen of the World/Omaha Woodmen Life Insurance Society
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Leadership List

Members of the Board of Governors convene twice annually in Washington, D.C., and again at the national convention.

Board of Governors Board of Governors Members Board of Governors Members

(as of June 30, 2002)

Honorary Chairman'

George W. Bush
The President of the United States

Chairman
David T. McLaughlin
Chairman
Orion Safety Products, and
President Emeritus
Dartmouth College
New London, New Hampshire

Vice Chairmen 2001-02

Eddy M. Quijano
Frederick H. Grein, Jr.
Kathryn A. Forbes

Co-Vice Chairmen 2002-03

Frederick H. Grein, Jr.
Kathryn A. Forbes

Emeritus Officials

Frank Stanton
Chairman Emeritus

Roland H. Lange
Vice Chairman Emeritus

George M. Elsey
President Emeritus
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David T. McLaughlin
Chairman, American Red Cross

Chairman
Orion Safety Products, and
President Emeritus
Dartmouth College
New London, New Hampshire

Joe M. Allbaugh
Director
Federal Emergency Management

Agency

Richard L. Armitage
Deputy Secretary of State

Donald L. Evans
Secretary of Commerce

Gen. Richard B. Myers
Chairman
Joint Chiefs of Staff

Roderick R. Paige, Ph.D.
Secretary of Education

Anthony J. Principi
Secretary of Veterans Affairs

Tommy G. Thompson
Secretary of Health and Human

Services

Chris Allen
President
Family Roadc Care Centers
Detroit, Michigan

Steven J. Bredehoeft, M.D., M.P.H.
Director
Transfusion Services
Duke University Medical Center
Durham, North Carolina

Fred A. Buck
President
Buck and Associates
Bradenton, Florida

Steven E. Carr'
President
Idaho Title and Trust
Idaho Falls, Idaho

Emma C. Chappell
President
Altroy International, LLC
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Douglas H. Dittrick
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Douglas Communications

Corp. If
Midland Park, New Jersey

Kathryn (Kate) A. Forbes
Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer
eTec
Phoenix, Arizona

Bill J. Gagliano
Partner
Ulmer & Berne LLP
Cleveland, Ohio

Lee A. Goldstein, O.D., M.RA.
Optometry
Claremont, California

Karen K. Goodman
Executive Director
Civic Entrepreneurs Organization
St. Louis, Missouri

Frederick H. Grein, Jr.
Partner
Hutchins, Wheeler & Dittmar
Boston, Massachusetts

William (Rick) F Grinnan, Jr.
President
The Republic of Texas

Restaurants, Inc.
San Antonio, Texas

Carol Ann Haake
Community Leader
Springfield, Missouri

Gray W. Harrison, Jr., MG AUS
(Ret.)6

Community Leader
Jackson, Mississippi

Susan B. Hassmiller, Ph.D., R.N.,
FAAN

Senior Program Officer
The Robert Wood Johnson

Foundation
Princeton, New Jersey

Michael W. Hawkins'
Partner
Dinsmore & Shohl, LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio

Edward (Buzz) A. Heidt, Jr.
President and

Chief Executive Officer
The Penrod Company
Virginia Beach, Virginia

Joyce N. Hoffman
Senior Vice President and

Corporate Secretary
The Principal Financial Group
Des Moines, Iowa

Wm W-u I.I ,^

The President of the United States serves as Honorary Chairman of the American Red Cross and appoints eight members of the Board of Governors one of whom he
designates as the Chairman of the American Red Cross.
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Ambassador James R. Jones
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Washington, District of Columbia
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Disaster Services
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Mission, Values, Principles

Mission of the American Red Cross
The American Red Cross, a humanitarian organization led by
volunteers and guided by its Congressional Charter and the
Fundamental Principles of the International Red Cross Movement,
will provide relief to victims of disasters and help people prevent,
prepare for and respond to emergencies.

The American Red Cross Values
Affirming our commitment to the Fundamental Principles of the
International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement, we pledge
ourselves to these values:

HUMANITARIANISM
We exist to serve others in need, independently and without
discrimination, providing relief for victims of disasters and helping
people prevent, prepare for and respond to emergencies.

STEWARDSHIP
We act responsibly, effectively and efficiently with resources
entrusted to us, always seeking to improve.

HELPING OTHERS
We are attentive and responsive to those we serve, always listen-
ing to their needs and looking for ways to serve through existing
or new initiatives.

RESPECT
We acknowledge, respect and support the rights and diversity of
each person in our organization and in the communities we serve.

VOLUNTARY SPIRIT

As a family of donors, volunteers and staff, we search for ways to
provide hope to those we serve while demonstrating compassion,
generosity and appreciation.

CONTINUOUS LEARNING

We seek, collectively and individually, to identify, obtain and main-
tain competencies and the awareness required for exceptional
service.

INTEGRITY

We act with honesty, demonstrate courage and accountability
under pressure and openly share ideas and information with
each other.

Fundamental Principles of the International Red Cross
and Red Crescent Movement
Humanity
Impartiality
Neutrality
Independence
Voluntary Service
Unity
Universality

Learn More About the American Red Cross
If you are interested in learning more about the work of the Red
Cross, contact your local Red Cross or the Public Inquiry Office
at national headquarters:

American Red Cross
ATTN: Public Inquiry Office
431 18th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

Information about the American Red Cross, including local
unit locations, is also available on the World Wide Web:
www.redcross.org.

Support Your Red Cross
The programs of the American Red Cross are made possible
by the voluntary services and financial support of the American
people.

To volunteer your time, contact your local Red Cross chapter.
If you'd like to donate blood, call 1-800-GIVE LIFE. To make a
financial contribution, send donations to your local chapter or to
the following address:

American Red Cross
Dept: (Insert Local Chapter Name)
PO. Box 37243
Washington, DC 20013

Financial donations also can be made by calling 1-800-HELP NOW
or online at www.redcross.org. If you are interested in discussing
gift planning, please contact your local Red Cross for further
information.

O The American Red Cross is a United Way member agency.

© 2002 by The American National Red Cross
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Angels of the -Red Cross
In times of trouble and despair,
when things look hopeless everywhere,
there comes an angel to bear our loss,
who's called the American Red Cross.

Uhrough all the mud an) waterflw,
where grime of unknown places go,
mold and mildew line our streets
making cleanup very slow.

Al the towns are still in shock,
stores that stood proud remain unlocked;
shovels, hoes, and some good luck
is all we need to restrain this muck.

For many years, the cross was here,
in wartime and in peace,
to lend a strong and steady hand,
or a hug and smile at least.

I'm proud to be a part of you,
your serce is wonderful through and through,
I'm glad you came in our time of loss,
but that's why you're the angels
of the American Red Cross.

by Holly Mullins, age 14
rffnon -- A (rp-I pnlune er-p

-~, -- A;.a r. , ; .. .> :-s,, f ,. ;, 5. -,r 'I .J

I

SFC-ARC-AOOI 737

36

A21Wm
IM

I

r,



Volunteer.
Contact one of our nearly 1,000 chapters and get involved in a range
of lifesaving, humanitarian programs. To find the chapter nearest you,

visit www. redcross.org/where/chapts.html.

Give Blood.
Every two seconds, someone in America needs blood. To schedule

a blood-donation appointment, call 1-800-GIVE LIFE
or visit www.givelife.org.

Make a Financial Donation.
There are a variety of ways to contribute to the American Red Cross:
Send a check to your local chapter or to the Red Cross at RO. Box

37243, Washington, DC 20013. You may also call 1-800-HELP NOW
or donate through our secure Internet site:

www.redcross. org/donate/donate.html.
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Together, we can save a life
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National Headquarters
Office of the President and CEO

Together, WE can save a life

David T. McLaughlin,
Chairman
Members, Board of Governors

Marsha J. Evans

Date: November 1, 2002

Subject: Strategic Planning Meetings

f:Our Board of Governors retreat this past September formally launched our effort to develop a

new organization-wide strategic direction for the American Red Cross. A critical step in this

-process is involving all aspects of the organization as the plan is created. To that end, we

have asked chapters, Blood Services regions and state service councils to conduct discussions

with their boards and leadership teams to provide input into the American Red Cross strategic

plan. We have also scheduled two "Strategy Forums" on the East and West Coasts. These

special meetings are by invitation-only due to space constraints. We randomly selected

participants and adjusted the list to ensure size and geographic representation.

If your schedule permits, I would like you to attend one of these sessions to continue your

engagement in our strategic planning process. However, if you are unable to attend, we are

planning to conduct several more sessions across the country in February and March. The

details for the upcoming meetings are as follows:

* East Coast Strategv Forum
Novembter 19, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.

American Red Cross National Headquarters

E Street Ballroom
Washington, DC 20006

West Coast Strateps Forum
Novymber 22, 8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.

San Francisco Airport Marriott

1800 Old Bayshore Highway
Burlingame, CA 94010

If you are interested in attending one of these meetings, please return the appropriate

registration form as indicated on the sheet. I have enclosed the registration forms and meeting

information sheets for both meetings. Please contact Jim Starr, Senior Director, Corporate

Strategy, at (202) 639-3521 if you have any questions regarding these meetings or our strategic

planning efforts.
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East Coast Strategic Planning Meeting
Travel information

(Tuesday, November 19, 2002)

Event Location/Time:
American Red Cross National Headquarters Meeting

E Street Ballroom
1730 E Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006
8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.

*Continental breakfast and lunch will be provided*

Reception Immediately Following:
Boar4 of Governors Hall, 17tb Street Building

430 .17" Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

4:00 p.m- - 5:00 p.m.

Hotel Information:
Hotel Washington - Pennsylvania Avenue at 15th Street

515 15' Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20004-1099
Telephone number: (202) 638-5900

Toll-free number: (800) 424-9540

www.hotelwashin ton com

A block of rooms has been reserved at the Hotel Washington. Please contact the

hotel to reserve your room and to receive your confirmation number. The hotel

room rate is $135 single/double plus 14.5 percent D.C. room sales tax. If you have

any, difficulties, please contact Joan Man (202) 434-4035 or Leola Mason at (202)

434-4054.

.: *. .. :.SFC 
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American Red Cross

EAST COAST STRATEGIC PLANNING MEETING

Tuesday, November 19, 2002

Registration Form

Please e-mail your registration form to Kate Ginman at ginmank®usa.redcross.org or fax

it to (202) 639-3572.

The meeting will be held at:

American Red Cross National Headquarters

Board of Governors Hall

430 17' Street, NW

Washington, DC 20006

SFC-ARC-AO01 742
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West Coast Strategic Planning Meeting

Event Date/Tuies:
Friday, November 22
8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Strategic Planning Meeting (continental breakfast lunch included)

...... ** .............................

Dress/Attire: The dress for the meeting will be business-casual.

Registration Form: Please return the enclosed registration form no later than October 2511. (We will only

contact those individuals who we do not receive a registration form from - so ifwe do not contact you,

we've confirmed your participation). Please note that we are only confirming registration. You will

need to make hotel accommodations directly with the hotel.

Air/Ground Transportation and Weather: Although chapters are not required to utilize BTI World

Travel, they may still be used to purchase airline tickets (877/292-9466). Complimentary shuttle service

can be accessed from the baggage claim area of the airport. For those of you who may be driving to San

Francisco, please check out the hotel website at: vww.marriotthotels.corn/sfob. Weather conditions can

also be found on the website.

Hotel and Meeting Room Accommodations: Meeting space and sleeping rooms are reserved at the San

Francisco Airport Marriott, 1800 Old Bayshore Hwy, Burlingame, CA 94010 (phone: 650-692-9100; fax:

650-692-9861). To make your reservations, please call 800/228-9290. As always when calling, please be

sure to request the rooms reserved for the American Red Cross. The hotel room rate is $99 for single or

double. We request that everyone make their hotel reservations with the Marriott (and not on the

internet). Please check the hotel billboards for meeting room location upon your arrival.
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Registration Form
WEST COAST Strategic Planning Meeting

! 005

Participant: 
Title:

Chapter: State: Phone: . Fax:

o Yes, I plan to attend the Strategic Planning Session on Friday, November /2 2 (8: 00 p.m. - 3:00 p.m.)

o Unfortunately, I will not be able to participate at this meeting.

1' .;;l.ri:g= 
7p m m

at o'clock.~'

I plan to arrive in San Francisco on (date):

0 I would like to request a vegetarian meal.

SFC-ARC-AO01 744
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American Office of the Chairman
Red CROSS aNational Headquarters

Red Cross _wWashington, D.C.

Toget he we can save a tie.

To: Members, Board of Governors. Date: November 1, 2002

From: David T. McLaughlin Subject: Election of New At-Large
Members

cc: Marsha J. Evans

I am pleased to announce the October 25 election of two at-large members to the Board of Governors.

Both are outstanding professionals who have not only agreed to the commitments and governance

obligations of this Board, but also to employ their energy and excitement in assisting the Red Cross.

Gina Adams is Corporate Vice President for Fedfx Corporation's Office of Government Affairs.

Following a nine year career as Attorney-Advisor in the General Counsel's Office at the U.S.

Department of Transportation, Ms. Adams joined the FedEx Corporation in 1992. She has served on

* a number of boards supporting the arts and was appointed in 1993 to a bipartisan National

C Commission to Ensure a Strong Competitive Airline Industry.

William "Bill" Lucy is International Secretary-Treasurer of the American Federation of State, County

and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), AFL-CIO; a position he has been continually reelected to

since 1972. AFSCME represents 1.3 million members. Since 1995, Mr. Lucy has also served on the

AFL-CIO Executive Council and is vice president of the Maritime Trades Department and

Department of Professional Employees. He is also the founder and president of the Coalition of

Black Trade Unionists and president of Public Services International, the world's largest union

federation.

Following the election of Bill Lucy, I accepted the resignation of Kevin Gallagher. I am confident

Kevin will continue to be a tremendous supporter of the American Red Cross and we wish him

Godspeed as he returns to active firefighting.

... .~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~a..
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National Hecadquarters

American Office of the President ana %nv

Red Cross

Toget t We can saw a dft

To: David T. McLaughlin, Date: November 15, 2002

Chairman
Members, Board of Governors

From: Marsha 1. Evans Subject: First Monthly Update

With this message, I am launching a new monthly communication to give you a better idea of

some of the things ARC leadership and I are working on. I'd like to convey a sense of where I

have been traveling, with whom I've been meeting and what my concerns are as we go forward.

I'm also going to be communicating in a similar fashion with our chapter CEOs on a monthly

basis.

I believe that it is vital for you to be fully informed since you are a member of the policymaking

body for our organization. Moreover, your influence can help us tell our Story and I want to give

you every tool I can to help you in that task. With that in mind, we are preparing a notebook for

each Governor that will include key message PowerPoint presentations on timely and

"evergreen" issues, along with a speech suitable for delivery to Rotary clubs and other

organizations. These will be delivered to you later this month, and I hope you will find them

valuable. Your feedback will be most welcome.

You have heard me say that this is a critical time for the American Red Cross, just as it is a

critical time for our nation. rve been trying to meet with some of the key people who can help

us in the challenges ahead, telling them what we do and how we can work together on some

shared problems.

Last month, I had a good discussion with Senator Charles Grassley. He and I share the same goal

of heightened accountability during this time of increased scrutiny, and I very much view him as

a partner in our efforts to show that our management systems in fact are quite sound- Many of

you know from the most recent Audit Committee meeting that our fiscal 2002 consolidated audit

received a clean opinion from KPMG, and we will be sure that this information is shared with the

Senatbr -and made public.

Recently; I flew up to New York to meet with the president of CBS News. It was a good

meeting; I expressed concern over their coverage of the American Red Cross. I explained that

the Red Cross was determined to correct its own problems and that we have -turned the corner"

on the way toward this goal. He listened intently and made no promises, but I know that he

understood our desire to be treated fairly.

SFC-ARC-AO01 746
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Of course, the key to receiving fair media coverage is to provide good service. After Hunricane
LiIi came ashore near New Iberia, Louisiana, on October 3, the Red Cross became a focus of

quite positive media coverage because our Disaster Services workers were well prepared and had
mounted a very effective response. I spoke with Southeast Louisiana Chapter and asked to come

down to meet the staff after the dust had settled and the TV cameras had moved on. When I met
with our relief workers in Houma and in St. Rose, I was impressed with two things: their depth of

ard-core disaster experience and their unswerving dedication to the Red Cross. I have been in
disaster situations before and know the kind of dedication it takes to hang in there with the long

hours and poor living conditions whileimaintainig their focus on those who need our help. I
was touched by the examples I saw in our. employees and volunteers. And I was honored to be

the guest of several chapters in my travels over the past month or so: Westchester (White Plains,
NY); American Red Cross of Central New Jersey (Princeton); National Capital Chapter
(Washington, D.C.); South East Louisiana (New Orleans); American Red Cross Bay Area (San
Francisco); Greater Salt Lake Area Chapter, Mile High Chapter (Denver);
the Cincinnati Area Chapter, and the Nashville Area Chapter.

Visiting field units is a priority activity for me, and I have set an ambitious schedule of travel to
chapters, not only in response to the many generous invitations I receive, but also because I need
to understand how field operations work and the issues they face. While we are all concentrating
on strengthening American Red Cross service delivery and moving forward'in developing an
inclusive Strategic Plan, I am approaching these trips as internal visits. However, where the local
media express interest in my visit, I use this as an opportunity to boost awareness of what the

chapter does for that community and region.

The Red Crossers I met with after Hftricane Lili will be at the vanguard of our effort to refocus
Red Cross Disaster Services, as you apio-oed in September. We're already moving forward with
this plan to use what we learned before and: after September II to make our disaster response
program the best it can possibly be. On October 25, I announced a new Strategic Alliance
Committee to oversee these activities and direct the continuing development of other strategies

and the strategic planning process.

-Related to the new Strategic Plan, we have asked chapters, Blood Services regions and state
service councils to conduct discussions with their boards and leadership teams to obtain input.
We have also scheduled two "Strategy Forums" on the East and West Coasts. We randomly
selected participants and adjusted the list to ensure size and geographic representation. Your
input is vital to this process, and I hope you can attend either the East Coast Strategy Forum on
November 19 or the West Coast Forum on November 22. We are also reviewing external
trends. and talking to our clients and major donors about their opinions. We have a solid
strategy to attract and incorporate quality input from every segment of the'organization to
complete the plan, and I will look to you for guidance as we gather data and begin putting the
pieces together before the 2003 convention. I believe strongly that the inclusive nature of the
s'trategic planning process can help all of qs get beyond the past history of mistrust between

national headquarters and the field.
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Signaling our continued strong ties with our sister society, the Magen David Adom of Israel. I

have just met with its Director General, Avi Zohar, a long time friend of the Amencan Red

C'ross rreaffirmed our steadfast support for MDA inclusion in the Movement, and expressed

itement over finalizing the Memorandum of Understanding (MOg) between our two

societies. The MOU sets a framework for ongoing collaboration and mutual assistance between

us, and we expect that David McLaughlih Will sign it bn his visit to Israel mid month.

One of David's and my most important meetings was with Health and Human Services Secretary

Tommy Thompson and the FDA on November 5. We all share the goal of continuing to make

America's blood supply as safe and as abundant as science and determination permit. To that

end, I am determined to put the consent decree matter behind us-as early as possible-so that we

may rededicate our energies to this essential safety goal. I remain optimistic this issue can be

resolved and will keep you apprised of developments as they occur.

As I sat down to place the finishing touches on this letter, the news arrived that vine states had

been ravaged by tornadoes and that our employees and volunteers were on the scene helping to

provide immediate help to those in need. Disaster relief is at the heart of the Red Cross and I am

proud to-be a part of an organization with such compassionate, skilled and dedicated people. Our

fne work was also showcased to the American public through national media coverage on CNN,

FOX networks, The New York 7lmes and USA Today;'

I also had the opportunity to glimpse the preliminary'results of the November 2002 tracking poll.

This po11 measures public opinion of the Red Cross through a representative sample of the U.S.

population and is conducted three to four times a year. Although, I'll be providing the

organization a more comprehensive report, I wanted to share two exciting, early results. First, the

public continues to trust the Red Cross. We are at a 74 percent approval rating; up from 66

percent in June. This rating is back in a normal range for the Red Cross and is one of the highest

ratings in the nonprofit sector. Second, the public feels overwhelmingly that employees and

volunteers of the American Red Cross should be proud of what they do. That rating is 86

percent At a time that I have heard anecdotally that morale is low due to the intense media

scrutiny we have received and that there is a hesitation on the part of Red Crossers to be

aggressive in their public support activities, this is great news. That is why it is so important that

we continue to reinforce to our family that the Red Cross is still the most trusted symbol with a

valued humanitarian mission. We must wave that flag high and publicly tell the'story of our

geafworks in communites across this nation.

.1

The fast-approaching holidays are an Important time for the Red Cross, and we should remind

people that we need their continued support of tine, money and blood. Our research shows that

when asked, people say they still trust the Red Cross to be effective stewards of these precious

gifts. We must continue to ask for their support.

Again, if events warrant, I will be in contact immediately. Please feel free to contact me at any

time with your thoughts or suggestions.
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National Headquarters

American Office of the President and CEO

Red Cross

Together, we can save a life

To: David T. McLaughlin, Date: November 22,2002

Chairman
Members, Board of Governors

From: Marsha J. Evans Subject: Update on Canadian Red Cross
Blood Situation

Some of you may be aware that the Canadian Red Cross, a former official of its blood service

and Armour Pharmaceutical Company, an American firm, were crininally charged this week in a

scandal over tainted blood.. Although the American Red Cross and the Canadian Red Cross are

two separate organizations, the media often muddles this distinction, leading to public confusion.

I want to take this opportunity to arm all of you with the most accurate and up-to-date

information about the situation in Canada in the event that you are approached by the media or a

member of your community. Attached you will find a news story that provides historical context.

Before the close of the Canadian Red Cross blood program in 1998, the American Red Cross

consulted with them about providing assistance and blood products. However, since the

American Red Cross and Canadian Red Cross programs operated under different regulatory

structures, it was never feasible to provide blood components across national borders. Since

1998, the Canadian Red Cross transferred its blood program, restructured the Society, settled all

civil claims and provided compensation for identified victims of tainted blood products.

The criminal charges announced. yesterday came after a five-year investigation by a Royal

Canadian Mounted Police task force. The charges include criminal negligence causing bodily

harm, which carries a maximum 1 0-year sentence, and common nuisance by endangering the

public, which is punishable by up to two years in prison. Armour, based in Bridgewater, N.J.,

was charged on both counts after it failed to inform the Canadian government that there had been

problems with its blood products. Armou's blood products were distributed in Canada after

being withdrawn in the United States.

The following talking points on this situation have been developed for your use:

* The American Red Cross and the Canadian Red Cross are two distinct organizations that

operate under different regulatory structures and have entirely separate service delivery

systems including blood collection, testing and distribution. Actions by the Canadian Red

Cross have no effect on the American Red Cross blood program.

* The American Red Cross does not import blood or blood products from the Canadian Red

Cross, and vice-versa.

SFC-ARC-AO01 749
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* The nation' s blood supply has never been safer. Technological advancements in blood testing

and the dedication of thousands of professionals have raised its quality to new heights in

reThere yarealast si ayr of overlapping safety that help protect the, blood supply, which

include self-deferrals, pre-check, completo oftebood donation ifrectordnelh itr

screening, confidential unit exclusion, testing and ps oainifrain

* The American Red Cross has provided humanitarian service to our nation since 1 881, and

has been the leading Provider Of America's blood supply for mnore than 50 years.

If you receive media inquiries or have any questions, please contact Phil ZePeda, senior director,

Media Relations, at (202) 639-3308; e-mail eda(uarcosor

Attachment

2

SFC-ARC-AOOI1750
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canada.corn News

Criminal charges laid against doctors, Red Cross in '80s blood

disaster

NANCY CAR t 
AUDO

Canadian Press

Wednesday, November 20, 2002

TORONTO (CP) - Criminal charges against four doctors, an American

pharmaceutical company and the Canadian Red Cross have been laid In

Canada's decades-old tainted-blood disaster, a development that persuaded

some victims Wednesday their troubles weren't just bad luck.

Victims have been validated," said Mike McCarthy, one of thousands of

Canadians who contracted hepatitis C or HIV from tainted blood in the 1980s.

'We can't blame God for what happened here. It was real people that made

hese eprkisions." In announcing the charges Wednesday, Supt. Rod Knecht,

head of the Toronlto-based RCMP Blood Task Force, said Can dfldU , 11- --

right to expect safe blood. 
CREDIT (CP/Fred

Please see below for: Canadian Red Cross

A chronology of the legal ba ttes 
CEO Dr. Pierre
Duplessis delivers a
statement in Ottawa,

Charges laid in tainted-blood scandal 
Wednesday. (CP/Fred
Chartrand)

"The Canadian public needs to have confidence in their public Institutions,'

Knecht told a news conference.

"he Canadian public has the right to expect the safest blood and the safest blood products possible. This

is fundamental to health, safety and lives of everyone living in Canada."

Further charges may follow, Knecht said.

The initial charges, laid Tuesday after a five-year investigation, include criminal negligence causing bodily

harm, which carries a maximum 10-year sentence.

A decade-long jail term would be appropriate, said McCarthy, who contracted hepatitis C In 1984.

'I think the crimes justify that length of time in prison," McCarthy said. SFC-ARC-A001751

'I think of all the suffering that has taken place and all the lives that are lost and if (the doctors) have to

go to jail for 10 years, so be it."

The blood task force has also laid the lesser charges of common nuisance by endangering the public, which

carries a maximum two-year sentence, as well as a charge of failure to notify under the Food and Drug Act

regulations.

The Canadian Red Cross was charged with six counts of common nuisance by endangering the public.

ht2p://www.canada.com/components/pintstory/prntstory.asp?id=7e5bf62d-7fe4-4d6c-adC.. 
11122/2002
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All four doctors and New 3ersey-based Armour Pharmaceutical Company were charged with criminal

negligence and endangering the public for allegedly allowing Armour's blood-dotting product, infected with

HIV, to be given to hemophilia patients, thus putting the public at risk of contracting the deadly virus.

The Red Cross and Dr. Roger Perrault, 66, Its former director of blood transfusion, were also charged with

not screening out blood donors who might have HNV.

As well, Armour was charged with failing to notify the federal Health Ministry of problems or suspected

problems with the blood product It distributed to the Canadian Red Cross Society.

Canadian Red Cross CEO Pierre Duplessis apologized to the victims of tainted blood Wednesday afternoon

but wouldn't comment on the charges.

'We're terribly sorry. We know what It is to suffer," Duplessis said at a news conference in Ottawa.

Police Identified the remaining three doctors charged as:

-Dr. John Furesz, 75, of Ottawa, former director of biologics at Ottawa's health protection branch.

-Dr. Wark Boucher, 62, of Nepean, Ont., an Ottawa suburb. He is a former chief of the blood products at

the health protection branch.

-Dr. Michael Rodell, 70, a former vice-president of Armour who lives In Bala Cynwid, Pennsylvania.

While the charges have not reached the upper-echelon politicians, some victims and their family members

believe they should be implicated.

,Ultimately if the health minister Is not held accountable, the government of the day will simply ignore the

warnings to its senior physicians and scientists and do so with impunity," said Gabe Kempf, whose wife,

Lynne, contracted HIV after receiving blood during emergency surgery in 1981.

'There needs to be enough courage In the country that the senior police force can bring charges against a

senior politician where there is criminal activity."

The tainted-blood affair Is considered one of the worst public health disasters in Canadian history. About

1,100 Canadians became Infected with blood-borne HIV and between 10,000 and 20,000 others contracted

hepatitis C after receiving tainted blood products, the Canadian Hemophilia Society says.

A police investigation was launched in 1997 after RCMP received complaints there had been criminal

wrongdoing. The complaints followed an exhaustive inquiry into the tragedy that directed criticism at every

major player in the blood system.

The inquiry, headed by Justice Horace Krever, failed to lay direct blame for the disaster but recommended

compensation for at least 12,000 Canadians.

The Canadian Hemophilia Society applauded the charges in a news release Wednesday. SFC-ARC-AO0 7 5 2

"Health Canada, the Red Cross and the pharmaceutical industry had been told for years that supervision of

the blood system was inadequate, and yet chose not to act in a timely manner," the Hemophilia Society

said in a release.

Jeremy Beaty, 65, who got hepatitis C from a blood transfusion during heart surgery In the late 1970s,

said Wednesday the criminal charges show "the major Institutions in our country have all been negligent'

In administering the blood supply.

A former president of the Hepatitis C Society of Canada, Beaty said the charges open the door for others -

potentially about 5,000 Canadians - to receive compensation from a $1.2-billion government fund to help

http://www.canada.com/components1pri220tstory/printstory.asp?id=7e~bfiOd-7fe44d6c-ad(... 
11/22/2002
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those who received tainted blood.

The charges suggest that negligence may have occurred outside the 1985 to 1990 compensation period

because all the parties involved were distributing blood outside that window. The police Investigation,

which began In 1980, also spanned a longer time frame than the compensation window.

The Hemophilia society also called on governments Wednesday to compensate people infected by tainted

blood In the early 1980s.

The Canadian Red Cross began screening for HIV in 1985. It did not begin screening for hepatitis C until

1990, four years after the United States began testing for the disease that affects the liver.

As recently as last month, questions were still being raised about the country's blood system.

In a lengthy report Issued In early October, the National Blood Safety Council said provinces need to

assume a greater role In keeping blood safe.

The report cited a lack of political will among health ministries even in the years following the Krever

inquiry.

The Canadian Hemophilia Society was to release its latest report card on Canada's blood supply system

Thursday morning in Montreal.

Many, but not all, of Krever's 50 final recommendations suggesting ways to help prevent a similar debacle

have been Implemented.

The Canadian Blood Services was created to take over the system of blood donations and manage

Canada's blood supply. It has taken pains to restore public confidence with slogans and.ad campaigns.

And since the Inquiry, a new level of scrutiny has been introduced to traditional blood screening methods.

Dr. Graham Sher, of the Canadian Blood Services, said the charges reflect possible inadequacies in

Canada's previous blood supply system.

"The public believes the system is safer today than it was five years ago," Sher said from Ottawa.

Sher said recent polls suggest more than 80 per cent of Canadians now have faith In the blood distribution

system and donations are up 17 per cent since his agency was created in 1998.

Health Protection Branch spokeswoman JirIna Dik refused to speak to the specific charges against the

doctors, but insisted that Canada now has 'one of the safest blood systems in the world."

Representatives from Armour did not return calls Wednesday afternoon.
SFC-ARC-A001 753

A chronology of the legal battles between the Red Cross and the inquiry into the Canadian blood system:

March 1985: Major blood suppliers In the United States begin testing blood products for the AIDS virus.

November 1985: Canadian Red Cross begins testing blood products for the AIDS virus.

Dec. 14, 1989: Federal government announces $150 million in compensation for about 1,250 Canadians

infected with HIV through blood transfusions or blood products.

May 25, 1993: Parliamentary subcommittee on health says there's urgent need to trace people who may

http://www.canada.com/components/printstory/pnntstory.asp?id=7e5bf
6Od-7f414d6c-adC.. 11/22/2002
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become Infected with the AIDS virus through medical treatment before they infect others.

July 19, 1993: A federal health official says the government knew before July 1984 that blood products for

hemophiliacs were contaminated with HIV.

Sept. 15, 1993: Provinces and territories announce a compensation plan for people who contracted the

AIDS virus from contaminated blood and their families

Sept. 16, 1993: Tory Health Minister Mary Collins announces inquiry to recommend how to reform the

blood system to make it safer and more efficient. It begins Nov. 22.

Dec. 21, 1995: The commission sends notices to the Red Cross, the federal and provincial governments,

pharmaceutical companies and individuals, warning that they could be named for misconduct in the tainted

blood tragedy.

January 1996: Virtually all of the parties who received notices launch court challenge, saying the

commission does not have authority to assign blame.

June 1996: The Federal Court orders the commission not to make findings of misconduct against 47

individuals, mainly ministers and senior bureaucrats, but leaves 14 Red Cross officials and three federal

officials open to blame.

July 1996: The Red Cross announces it will appeal the decision.

Jan. 17, 1997: The Federal Court dismisses the Red Cross challenge.

Jan. 30, 1997: The Red Cross announces It will seek permission to appeal to the Supreme Court.

March 27, 1998: Health ministers announce $1.2-billion federal- provincial compensation offer limited to

victims infected by tainted blood from 1986 to -1990.

April 29, 1998: Quebec legislature moves motion to call on Ottawa to compensate all victims. Rock

spokesman calls the move a "cynical, empty gesture.'

April 30. 1998: Ontario and B.C. support Quebec motion.

May 4, 1998: Ontario Premier Mike Harris announces Ontario will compensate those excluded from original

federal-provincial offer. Rock says he will reconsider his position.

May 6, 1998: Red Cross reaches agreement with provincial and territorial governments to transfer blood

services to two new agencies, Canadian Blood Services and Hema-Quebec.

July 20, 1998: Red Cross announces it's broke and can't pay creditors or daimants.

Sept. 17, 1998: Rock reiterates there will be no federal compensation for those infected before 1986 or

after 1990.

Nov. 23, 1998: Ontario begins compensating people excluded from the federal package. SFC-ARC-AO01754

Dec. 11, 1998: Red Cross files statement of claim demanding government coverage of tainted blood

liabilities running Into billions of dollars. Red Cross officials say they still hope for out-of-court settlement.

Dec. 18, 1998: Class-action lawyers leak outlnes of a deal that would compensate victims infected from

1986 to 1990 on a sliding scale, with most money going to the sickest. Reaction from victims Is mixed.

Jan. 28, 1999: More than 1,000 hemophiliacs launch $1-billion lawsuit against Ottawa for using tainted

http://www.canada.comcomponntslprits lntstoYoy.aspid-7ebf60d-7fe6O4d
6c-adL.. 11/22/2002
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blood from U.S. jails.

March 26, 1999: The Red Cross offers a $60-milliOn compensation plan for those people Infected before

1986 and after 1990.

August 18, 1999: Hearings on the hepatitis c compensation plan begin in Ontario, Quebec and B.C.

Aug. 26, 1999: Quebec announces plan to compensate hepatitis C victims who aren't covered by the

federal-provincial settlement.

Sept. 10, 1999: Federal Finance Minister Paul Martin sets up tax changes so that compensated victims

won't pay income tax on their settlement.

Sept. 21, 1999: Quebec courts approve the $1.2-billion federal-provinclal compensation plan.

Sept. 22, 1999: Ontario courts also approve plan.

April 19, 200i; Supreme Court of Canada rules the Red Cross was negligent In managing the blood system

in the early years of the AIDS crisis.

June 26, 2001: Ontario judge Warren Winkler approves $79-million Red Cross-led settlement for people

infected by hepatitis C through tainted blood before 1986 and after July 1, 1990.

Oct. 2002: National Blood Safety Council releases report saying provinces need to assume greater role in

monitoring blood supply and ensuring safety.

Nov. 20, 2002: RCMP lays charges - including criminal negligence causing bodily harm - against four

doctors, the Red Cross and an American pharmaceutical company following a five-year Investigation into

the tainted-blood scandal.

Charges laid in tainted-blood scandal 
SFC-ARC-AO01755

TORONTO (CP) - The RCMP laid charges Wednesday in connection with the tainted-blood scandal of the

1980s. A quick look at the individuals and organizations in question and the charges they face:

-Canadian Red Cross Society: Charged with six counts of common nuisance by endangering the public.

- Dr. Roger Perrault, 66, of Ottawa: Former director of Canadian Red Cross's blood transfusion service.

Charged with three counts of criminal negligence and seven counts of nuisance by endangering the public.

The Red Cross and Perrault were implicated for not screening out blood donors who might have had HIV.

- Dr. John Furesz, 75, of Ottawa: Former director of bureau of blologics at federal government's health

protection branch. Charged with three counts of criminal negligence causing bodily harm and one count of

common nuisance by endangering the public.

- Dr. Wark Boucher, 62, of Nepean, Ont.: Former chief of blood products division of bureau of biologics at

health protection branch. Charged with three counts of criminal negligence causing bodily harm and one

count of common nuisance by endangering the public.

- Armour, a Bridgewater, N.)., pharmaceutical company: Charged with three counts of criminal negligence

causing bodily harm, one count of common nuisance and one count of failure to notify under the Food and

Drug Act. Armour, which developed blood products distributed in Canada by the Red Cross, was implicated

for failing to notify the federal government of problems or suspected problems with the blood products.

http://www.canacla.com/components/printstory/printstory.asp?id-7e~bf60d-7fe4-4d6c-ad.. 
11/2212002
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- Dr. Michael Rodell, 70: Former vice-president of Armour who lives in Pennsylvania. Charged with three

counts of criminal negligence causing bodily harm and one count of common nuisance by endangering the

public.

All four doctors and Armour were also Implicated for allowing Armour's HIN-Infected blood-clotting product

to be given to hemophiliacs, putting the public at risk of contracting the disease.

Q Copyright 2002 The Canadian Press

Copyright Q 2002 Canwest Interactive, a division of canWest Global Communicatons COr . All rights reserved.
Optimized for browser versions 4.0 and higher.
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Fact Sheet

ICRC ACTIVITIES IN ISRAEL, THE OCCUPIED AND
THE AUTONOMOUS TERRITORIES

June - September 2002

The International Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC) has maintained a permanent presence in

Israel and the Occupied and Autonomous Territories (IUOT/AT) since 1967. Monitoring

compliance with International Humanitarian Law (IHL) has been one of its long-standing

priorities, especially with regard to the Fourth Geneva Convention relative to the protection of

civilians in times of war and occupation. The upsurge of violence in 2002 has caused many

casualties and much human suffering. Prolonged closures and curfews, destruction of public

infrastructure and private property have led to the socio-economic collapse of Palestinian

society, resulting in extreme hardship for the population. Hence the ICRC extended the scope

of its activities to respond to the increased needs.

Protection of the Civilian Population
The scope and scale of IHL violations are reflected in the alarming increase of civilian casualties in

IUOTIAT. In line with the ICRC's protection mandate, delegates monitor the situation for civilians living

under occupation. When necessary, confidential and well documented representations are sent to the

concerned authorities to ensure their respect for the Fourth Geneva Convention and for IHL principles.

From June to September, 55 interventions referring to specific or thematic events were sent to the

relevant authorities.

Visits to People Deorived of their Freedom
Detainees falling under the ICRC's mandate are visited regularly in Israeli and Palestinian places of

detention, and their treatment and living conditions monitored. By the end of September, the number

of people visited in Israeli detention places had risen to around 7,200 (including some 250 minors and

40 women), from 4,250 in February. Visits to administrative detainees rose from 35 to some 880

during the same period. The number of detainees held by the Palestinian Authority and visited by the

ICRC on the West Bank and Gaza went down from 800 to around 250 by September, and included

two women and one minor.

Maintaining Family Links
The ICRC's Family Visit programme for persons living in Gaza, the West Bank, East-Jerusalem and

the Golan, to their relatives detained inside Israel, was often suspended by the Israeli authorities.

Visits from the West Bank are still on hold, but have been running in Gaza since August, after a brief

suspension. In June, tne authorities set more stringent conditions. Visits for East-Jerusalemites and

from the Golan were not interrupted. From June to September, 7,813 persons visited loved ones in

various places of detention in Israel, while 1,370 who registered to go and fulfilled the criteria were

refused by the Israeli authorities. During the same period, the ICRC exchanged 2,767 messages

between detainees and their relatives and issued 4,857 certificates of detention. It also facilitated the

passage of 658 students between Syria and the Golan, as well as that of 144 Druze pilgrims from

Israel. Three Syrian brides were united with their fiances on the Golan Heights.

Assistance Proarammes SFC-ARC-AO01758
-.P .j'.;
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The humanitarian situation in OT/AT deteriorated further under the strict closures and curfews. The

ICRC's expanded assistance programme aims to alleviate some of the vulnerable groups' immediate

problems and is of limited duratiatl. The ICRC does not want to sibstitute itself for the Occupying

Power which is responsible for meeting the basic needs of people living under occupation, according

to IHL. -

Relief
In nearly 300 villages on the West Bank, 21,731 families received food parcels; 20,768 received

hygiene parcels and 11,255 families received a first distribution of sugar, rice and wheat flour. Fifty

kilograms of each of the aforementioned three commodities are given to 30,000 families every three

months. School kits were given to 4,505 families for the new school year.
In Hebron, Bethlehem, Jericho, Tulkarem, Qalqilya, Salfit and Ramallah, a total of 14,695 families

received vouchers for redeeming against various basic food and non-food items in a local shop. The

programme aims to benefit 20,000 families in nine cities and towns, but has yet to begin in Nablus and

Jenin. In the Old City of Hebron, 2,000 families continue to receive a monthly food parcel.

Recently, house destruction in the Gaza Strip and on the West Bank has increased significantly.

Families made homeless, or whose houses have been seriously damaged, receive tents, blankets,

hygiene items, household goods and other emergency supplies from the ICRC. From June till

September more than 2,115 persons in the Gaza Strip, and 377 in the West Bank were helped.

Eleven large tents were donated to schools in Mawasi (Gaza Strip) to ease overcrowding.

Medical and surgical assistance
ICRC specialists in vascular surgery, neuro-traumatology, orthopaedics and intensive care spent

nearly 20 weeks in six hospitals cn the West Bank and Gaza to coach and train Palestinian

counterparts. Surgical instruments worth 84,000 US were donated to various hospitals under the

programme. The ICRC also donated 68 oxygen concentrators and 21 pulse oxyrneters to 14 hospitals,

to ensure that emergency surgical and intensive care treatment can be given, even during times of

closure or curfew. ICRC trucks also transported more than 100 MT of medical supplies for the MoH.

Water
: The ICRC is helping vulnerable communities to get enough clean water for their basic needs during

the dry season. Households without piped water in 14 villages in Hebron governorate receive around

5m3 of water per month, brought to them by tanker. The deliveries will continue untilthe winter rains.

Co-operation with the Palestine Red Crescent (PRCS) and Magen David Adom (MDA)

The ICRC currently covers the running costs of some 80 PRCS ambulances, and 240 emergency

medical technicians. It supports the PRCS's dissemination and information departments, and its web

site as well as the new disaster response programme which includes mobile clinics in isolated villages,

and a network of doctors and nurses who respond to emergency calls. The ICRC plays a crucial

intermediary role in facilitating PRCS ambulance mobility in an extremely difficult environment through
direct negotiations with the Israeli authorities.
Sixty ICRC-trained PRCS volunteers raised awareness about the dangers of mines and unexploded

ordnance (UXOs) among 3,500 participants in 22 youth camps on the West Bank and in Gaza this

summer.
The ICRC co-operates with the MVDA on tracing, IHL dissemination, and disaster preparedness.

Recently, it provided MVDA with 6,333 blood bags, and more will be given in the near future.

The ICRC is also coordinating the work of other Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies involved in

support field projects on the West Bank and in Gaza.

Promotion of International Humanitarian Law (IH.
In Gaza, six IHL seminars were conducted for 20 lawyers in partnership with the Palestinian Bar

Association. Inforrnation on IHL and the ICRC's mandate was disseminated to 45 journalists and 20

lawyers on the West Bank and in Gaza. The ICRC trained some 20 Palestinian students to

disseminate IHL, who later made presentations to over 330 adolescents on the West Bank. It also

sent two lecturers in Law from Birzeit University and one from the College of Management in Rishon

Lezion to an IHL seminar in Geneva.

ICRC Staff and Budget
There are currently 224 staff working in IL'OT.AT, 79 of whom are expatriates. The ICRC's budget for

2002 has been extended from USD 21.8 mio to USD 48.7 mio.
SFC-ARC-AO01759
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:Basrah Teaching Hospital The Iraqi health care system, once the most sophisticated of the region,

The Basrah Teaching Hospitalis has suffered considerably from the effects of the economic sanctions

a major hospital with all imposed on the country by the UN Security Council in 1991. While it has

subspecialities, including been possible to import medicines and medical equipment under the oil-for-food

orthopaedics, neurosurgery, chest program since 1996, the state of public infrastructure, particularly hospital buildings and

y surgery and opthalmology It not primary health care centres has steadily declined, due to a lack of investment and

(2 ion)y buteisvaes the mopulatin ain maintenance. As several hospitals faced a total breakdown of their water and sanitation

surgical referral hospital for the systems in 1999, the [CRC decided to launch an emergency rehabilitation program for

entire southern part of the country (4 such hospitals with the aim to keep them functional. Since then, ICRC engineers have

million). Before the ICRCstarted the undertakenmajorrehabilitation works inatotal of9 hospitals all over the country.

hospital's rehabilitation in 1999, it In October 2000, the ICRC concluded an agreement with the Ministry

was in appallingconditions. of Health to support the primary health care sector as a priority. A pilot

project was started in the governorate ofDiyala aiming to improve the services of a total

A d . of 10 exnis"ngprimaryhealth care centres. 'eprogram includes the basic rehabilitation

.,:A.. _'l:"~ qf t-he.buildings, the provision of basic material and furniture, on-the-job training for the

;.ealth centre staff, from the doctors to the cleaners, as well as expert advice on the

management of the centres. Encouraging results in Diyala have led the ICRC and the

MinstryofHealth to extendthe scope ofthe projectto BasrahandMosul in 2001.

.'Thedramatic lack of qualified nurses has been identified as another

- I - --ah- -I rail '- Priors* area. In close collaboration with the Ministry of Health, the ICRC has started

.- ~ K-., ,:W~g..'1 ..... A- *tra8, i .; '- 'to~deveiop aprogram of on-the-job training for nurses in pos t operative care. The Basrah

........ ...''Teaching:Hospital, where the ICRC completed the rehabilitation works of the surgical

--- *'tut, was identified forapilot project in this field.

._ .- if -Il;t9tu _ _ _.

. . ` - " : ~. J. !

Waste water was seeping
through the piping and out in the
open through walls and ceilings,
leakage from toilets even dripped

into the operation theatres. The*
entire basement in which service
outlets, electricity cables, sewage
systems and pumping equipment
were located was completely
inaccessible, inundated under afoot
offlood water

The rehabilitation of Basrah
Teaching Hospital is the largest
engineering project of the ICRC in
Iraq. First, elevators and the
complete roofing were repaired. The
second phase, finished in December
2000, included essential works on
the rehabilitation of the operation
theatres and the cooling system, as

Hospitals rehabilitated by the ICRC:

* Basrah Teaching Hospital (500 beds): July 1999 to the beginning
of 2002

* Karama Teaching Hospital, Baghdad (450 beds):
January 2000 to May 2001

* Ibn Al-Khatib Infectious Diseases Hospital, Baghdad (200 beds):
May 2000 to January 2001

* Al-Batool Gynaecology and Paediatrics Hospital, Mosul
(178 beds): January 2000 to August 2000

* Al-Rashad Psychiatric Hospital, Baghdad (1200 beds):
November 2000 to September 2001 (foreseen)

* Surgical Hospital, Hilla: rehabilitation started in May 2001

I..

* Al Ta'anim General Hospital, Kikruk:
rehabilitation started in May 2001 SFC-ARC-A001760 '
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.Te health centre is the hub
preventive and curative services,
children below the age of five. T
monitoring and the management
diarrhoea. The centre informs and
health, promoting personal hygiei
School children are especially
program, aimed at prevention and

The ICRC helps the Ministil
system by offering material and I
the various different services. For
organised for the school children
told about cleanliness, healthy liN
centre for the well-being of the coi
paper and colouring pencils an
drawings to express the themes td
selection of the best drawings wc

4t.'.., i. ; .:^ .... the health centre and the win.
rewarded with a small prize cons
toothbrush and toothpaste.

AL iRASELA
PSYCHIATRI

~~~ ~HOSPITAL
ae ".:; 1Al Rashad Hospital is the I

psychiatric institution in Iraq wit
1000 chronic patients. The
rehabilitation program for thi!
involves extensive repairs on
and sanitation system, which
broken down, the rehabilitation
and the laundry facilities, as
renovation of the patient wards.

An ICRC expert has trained It
occupational therapy, which h
introduced in November 2000.

the patients include painting, di
carpentry and gardening.

In close cooperation with d
consultant psychiatrist has made

....... ... . : the training of Iraqi doctors and
psychotropic drugs, which will I
program.
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The ICRC has been continuously present in Iraq government to use its oil revenues to purchase humanitarian

since 1981. Its operation was initially mainly supplies abroad under UN supervision, the ICRC. gradually
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WATER AND SANITATION: The provision of clean
drinking water is essential for the civilian population and quite
a challenge in a largely arid country such as Iraq. The oil-for-
food program allows the import of technical material, but does
not provide any funds for maintenance and repair works.
During the year 2000, the ICRC carried out a total of 103
emergency repair and rehabilitation projects on water
treatment stations and sewage evacuation systems.

HOSPITAL REHABILITATION: The ICRC has carried out
emergency repairs on 9 large hospitals, mainly on the water
and sanitation systems, thus preventing a breakdown of the
services provided in these structures. The hospitals are located
in Baghdad (3), Basrah, Hilla, Kirkuk, Mosul and in Iraqi
Kurdistan (Rania and Soran).

supported the production ot prostheses tor amputees in Jraq Dy
providing the necessary material and by training Iraqi
specialists. The orthopaedic workshops are run in co-
operation with the Ministry of Health (in Baghdad, Najaf and

Basrah), the Ministry of

. ANT-

I'
K THE ICRCY IAQI

In addition to its various human tarian
assistance programs, especially in the field of

e INTERNATIONAL
H[UMANITARIAN LAW:
An important part of the
ICRC's mandate is the
promotion of international
humanitarian law. In Iraq the
main target groups are
various government bodies,
specialists of international
law in universities and the
armed forces. The ICRC also
supports a dissemination
program of the Iraqi Red
Crescent Society.

SAUDI ARABIA

8 ICRC Delegpion () ICRC Sub-Delegation

ProsftfircOrthofic CentreAoshaop * ICRC Water
+ ICRC OMcer

,nation Prnaram

ordinate the
numerous activities
of the ICRC in the
South of the country.
In response to the
specific needs in this
part of Iraq, ICRC
delegates, in close
cooperation with the
local authorities,
have started to
develop a Mine
Awareness Program
and a support
program for
internally displaced
persons.

Published by the ICRC Delegation
in Baghdad, Iraq

Hay Al-Nidhal, Section 103,
Street 30, House 27

Phone: +964 1 717 4751,
Fax: 4964 1 717 1865

May, 2001

THE MISSION OF THE ICRC: The ICRC is an impartial, neutral and
independent organisation whose exclusively humanitarian mission is to
protectthelves and thedignity of victims of warand internalviolence and to
provide them with assistance. Established in 1863, the ICRC is the founder
of the International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement. It is

responsible for directing the international relief activities conducted by the
Movement in situations of conflict. It also endeavours to prevent suffering
by strengthening and promoting humanitarian law and universal
humanitarian principles.
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International Committee of the Red Cross

ICRC in Iraq
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The ICRC has been continuously
present in Iraq since 1981. Its
involvement in the water and sanitation
sector started in the aftermath of the 1991
Gulf War, when the ICRC provided
assistance to. repair water treatment
stations. damaged by the war. In a first
emergency phase, the ICRC also
distributed drinking water in large urban
centers.

Before the 1991 Gulf War, Iraq
imported equipment and materials
from the best manufacturers in the
world for its water and sewage
projects along with the expertise
and the manpower needed for
installing and maintaining them.
As a consequence of the economic
sanctions imposed on Iraq, this was no
longer possible. The ICRC therefore
started to supply spare parts for critical
water treatment stations and sewage
evacuation networks and provided
assistance for theirinstallation.

Due to the lack of maintenance
and the absence of new
investments, the state of Iraq's
drinking water supply systems and
sewage evacuation networks has
constantly deteriorated since 1991.
In many parts of the country they have
broken down completely. Since 1996 it
has been possible for the Iraqi
government to import spare parts for the
water and sanitation sector under the oil-
for-food program. The program however
does not provide funds for maintenance
and rehabilitation works on existing
installations or for the construction of
new structures.

Currently, the major part of the
ICRC's operation in the water and
sanitation sector consists in
emergency rehabilitation and

People in search of water

supervision of the ICRC and the local
authorities. Imported spare parts are
provided by the
Iraqi govern-
ment under the
oil-for-food
program.

In some
cases, when
ex i s t ing
structures were
not repairable
any more or
when new needs
were created by
internally
displaced
persons or
population
growth, the

ICRC has six teams of well qualified
Iraqi technitians, who regularly carry out

Based on the morphological and
hydrogeological nature ofthe country which
is flat and with poor ground water resources,
the water and sewage systems require an
enormous amount of energy. Drinking water
is produced by treating the raw water of the
Tigris and Euphrates. The raw water has to
be pumped from the river through all
treatment stages and distribution networks
to the end users. Sewage is also treated and
evacuated back into rivers through a
complex pumping system. Therefore, the
process of water and sewage treatment is a
chain of highly technical operations that
need sophisticated equipment, continuous
power supply and highly qualified staff for
Canan -nA

L

installations. Fourteen such projects
were carried out in 1999 and 2000.

In order to prevent break downs of I
critical water and sewage systems, the ;

Wabda water treatment plant
near Baghdad

maintenance and
small repair
works on water
treatment plants
and sewage
p u m p i n g
stations all over
the country.
More than 150
installations
have been
r e g u I a r I y
supported in that
way during the
past two years.

a

lIWp,
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Water treatment irlet (J-
stations using the (river)
roughing filter
technology are
successfully used in
rural communities in
many parts of the world.
The main advantages
are that almost all the
construction material
needed is locally hydraulcal
available, that no bakash
chemicals are needed
to flocculate small
particles that a pump for the backwash is
not necessary and that the operation and
maintenance ofthe station is very simple.
Roughing filter stations can produce up
to 200 m3/h of clean water, thus serving a
population of up to 16,000 persons.

The ICRC has successfully
introduced this technology in Iraq in
1999, as it is well adapted to the current
situation in the country. At the end of
2000, 3 roughing filter stations were
operating in the Southern governorates,
supplying drinking water to rural
communities, which did not have access
to clean water before. The construction of
3 additional stations is planned for 200 1.

A major problem occured in the main water treatment plant
of the city of Najaf at the end of 1999. The ductile pipes leading
from the water intake in the Euphrates river to the low lift
pumping station (covering a distance of about 150 meters) had
moved in the ground, due to a construction error when the plant
was built This led to major leakages in the system and almost
caused the breakdown of the station, which supplies drinking
water to more than 400,000 persons. In addition, the water intake
structure in the Euphrates had to be adapted to the extremely low

Published by the ICRC Delegation
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Hay Al-Nidhal, Section 103,
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lift pump

1 Al Muzaira roughing filter station;
in Missan governorate

UMP

sand filter

Ad netwo*

EFFCTlS OF TE E.UGIIT
Tbevwhole region was affected by a severe drought from i99to 2000: The-very

low levels of the twvo main rivers in Iraq, the Tigris'and the`uphrate caused serious
*problems for the production of drinking water On one hand, Most wateraiti -
structures of water treatment plants were notodapted to such low levels ofthe rvezn,
and on.the other hand, the increased conceaon. of pollutn n the -aw weam.
presented a major challenge for the purificatio pro0ss. 1I0999 and 2000the ICRC
carried out an emergency program to adapt water tre.atint stationslo the critical
situation Water intake structures wemre modified,:mostly by e.etending them further'-
into the river, and measures were studied to adapt the chemicalprosesses to incriased
levels of pollutants. Atotal of'2O large projects were part ofthis program.

Although rains were normal during the rainy season.2000/2001, the situation.
remains precarious, because water levels in' the dams and in the rivers are still
extremely low. In addition, the permanently low levels in the rivers have led to ai-
increase of the salinity of the water in the southern parts of the country.

levels ofthe river.
The ICRC launched an emergency project, which involved

several hundred workers working in shifts 24 hours a day for 3
months. The pipes were overhauled and fixed on a concrete
bedding and changes in the water intake structure allowed the
station to cope with the low levels of the river. During the
rehabilitation works, the station had to continue to work with at
least half of its capacity as there was no backup possibility
available.

protect the lives and the dignity otvictims otwar and internal violence and lo
provide them with assistance. Established in 1863, the ICRC is the founder
of the International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement. It is
responsible for directing the international relief activities conducted by the
Movement in situations of conflict. It also endeavours to prevent suffering
by strengthening and promoting humanitarian law and universal
humanitarian principles. I
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The ICRC became involved in
the prosthetics service for
amputees in Iraq in 1994 upon a
request from the Iraqi Red
Crescent Society and the Ministry
of Health. As Iraq was unable to import
orthopaedic components because of the
economical embargo imposed on the
country in 1991, the ICRC setup a local
component production, mainly for feet
and knee joints, and provided-necessary
raw material. Expatriate prosthetic
specialists provided training and expert
advice to the staff ofthe Iraqi orthopaedic
centres. The ICRC activities led to a
gradual increase in the production of
nrnqtheres. which had previously almost
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prostheses in the six orthopaedic
centres which are assisted by the
program. The ICRC continues to
provide technical and material support as
well as training for the Iraqi staff working
in the centres. Over the past years, where
necessary, the buildings and equipment
of the orthopasedic centres have been
maintained. Also indoor and outdoor
walking training areas have been
constructed.

Currently, the ICRC is
invnlved with its local partners in

the development of national
treatment guidelines for amputees
and in the establishment of a
quality control system for lower
limb prostheses. Upgrading the level
of training of staff in the fields, of
prosthetics/orthotics and physiotherapy
remains a high priority for the ICRC~and
seminars/meetings on various subjects
are organised on a regular basis by ICRC
experts with the co-operation of the
Ministries of Health and Higher
Education.

Orthopaedic centres supported by the ICRC in Iraq:
- -- ...-- - -1 g.j,.1
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SS OF PROSIESE

Physiotherapy and walking training are es
of the rehabilitation of amputees, because thi
amputees back to daily life activities and pro
balance and a good style of walking. When a
fitted with prostheses (artificial limbs) they ms
walk again. That is why exercises have to start
after the fitting and be built up gradually. It is
improve the patients' capacity to react autoi
disturbances of balance to avoid falling.

In 2000, the ICRC became involved, toge
local counterparts, in developing the physiothi
of six orthopaedic centres in Iraq. The ICRC e
centres with indoor and outdoor walking train
Continuous training programs were dev
implemented for Iraqi physiotherapists in ord(
their theoretical knowledge and practical skills.
includes patient assessment, anatomy, non
patterns, pathological walking patter
strengthening and mobilisation as well as how t4
implement treatment plans and home exercise p

Physiotherapy helps amputees to ha,
physical rehabilitation with their prostheses.

Fanar Zeki Baker is a nine year old
Dallo Gul village 15 kilometres from Erb
Kurdista On 20 April 1998, hewent to cu
his father's sheep in an area where there 1
military camp in thepast A few minutes 1
stepped on an antipersonnel landmii
exploded leaving him seriously injured.

He was taken to, Al-Jumhoria HospitE
and during the next 45 days he was opera
times. In June 1998, he was referred to
Orthopaedic Centre in Erbil where he was
prostheses and taught to walk again. As Fa
growing he returns to the centre each ye
new prostheses fitted.

Thanks to the assistance of the ICRC
able to walk, go to school and play
children. He can never be a shepherd agg
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sential parts The process begins with
ey bring the an evaluation of the
ovide proper amputee by a clinical team.
mputees are After considering the
iust learn to patient's general condition,
immediately needs and functional goals,
important to a suitable prosthesis is
matically on prescribed. Various

measurements of the stump
ther with its and the sound leg are taken,
erapy service as well as a plaster-of-Paris
quipped the cast of the stump.
ing facilities. From this cast a model or
,eloped and plaster replica of the stump
er to improve is produced. The model is
The training then skillfully modified so
mal walldng that load and pressure are
us, muscle distributed in a safe and
o develop and comfortable manner.
rograms. The socket is the

ve optimum interface between the stump
and the prosthesis. A custom
made socket is
manufactured using the

m plaster model as a mould.
l boy from I, The socket is made from
boy prom' plastic and may also
41 in Iraqi for incorporate a soft liner. The
ba grass for socket is assembled with the

ater F arO components required to
ie which produce the prosthesis.

2e Components include a

l in Eirbil prosthetic foot and ankle
Lted on six and if necessary a knee joint
the ICRC and possibly even a hip
fitted with jit

mar issteill The prosthesis is now

ready for fitting on the
patient During the fitting

~, Fanar is S process, the length,
with other alignment, function and
ai, but her comfortofthe prosthesis are

evaluated and adjusted until
an optimal result is
achieved. When the
members of the clinical
team - including the
amputee - are satisfied, the
prosthesis is sent to the
workshop to have a
cosmetic cover added and a
final quality control check
carriedout.

When this process has
been completed the amputee
receives the new prosthesis.

nr T THUnS. Tru it-D or

independent organization whose exclusively humanitarian mission is to
protect the livesand the dignity of victims of war and internalviolenceand to
provide them with assistance. Established in 1863, the ICRC is the founder

of the International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement It is
responsible for directing the international relief activities conducted by the

Movement in situations of conflict. It also endeavours to prevent suffering
by strengthening and promoting humanitarian law and universal

humanitarian principles.

SFC-ARC-AOOI 7

. .

.. .

:, ..

''' ";
., ;. , ,.;t,,-,

- '� _. ! ' i- jr:
'i' :'t ':' i:

:X
,-^.,.-e

. .

: :::.: . .
*:, :......

i:, - rE ": e .,

'v' i' ' - ''i%. .

*. '. 4

..¢ti:.w.t$foX:>.,?

..; ,. ._,. \S.,_

:.' .' . .

> : -i

°iS,

MM

Ur L ELM, &�_. L - ---- .. __ -, -- - - ---- -

167



American National HeadquartersAmerican Office of the President and CEO

Red Cross

Togeter, we can save a e

To: Chairman McLaughlin and Date: October 3, 2002
Members of the Board of
Governors

From: Marty Evans Subject: Resigration of Fresno Chapter CEO

Late last December as a result of a phone call to Audit Services by a disgruntled former employee an
investigation was initiated to determine if the Fresno Chapter had deliberately failed to remit Liberty
Fund donations. After several months of review and reconstruction of the chapter's financial records,
especially related to Liberty Fund donations and transactions, it was determined that, in fact,
approximately $ 199,000 had not been remitted. However, the chapter had remitted in excess of $1.2
million to the Liberty Fund.

On Tuesday, September 17, a Mountain Pacific Regional team and representatives from the Office of the
General Counsel and Audit Services met with paid and volunteer leadership of the Fresno-Madera
Chapter in Fresno, California. The regional team advised the chapter board's Executive Committee that
upon careful review, the chapter had an additional liability to the Liberty Fund of approximately
$199,000, which included allowable expenses estimated at approximately $79,000. At no time has there
been any indication that Liberty Funds were diverted for any personal gain or purposefully diverted to
the chapter. Rather, the audit process revealed that the chapter had not followed guidance from financial
management on designating donations that lacked clear donor intent and on maintaining documentation
to support donor intent. Based upon this and other management issues, the region requested that the
Board remove the executive director of the Chapter. The Fresno-Madera Executive Committee contacted
Regional Operations, Chapter Services Network, and the Office of the President and CEO to ascertain
national headquarters' support of the regional team's position. National headquarters' total support and
endorsement of the region's position was communicated to the Executive Committee members.

Following the meeting with the Executive Committee, the regional team met with the full board of the
chapter to inform them of their Liberty Fund liability and request management action. The chapter board
advised the team that the executive director had, subsequent to dialogue with Executive Committee
members, decided to submit her resignation, effective immediately. The chapter and the region accepted
her resignation and an experienced interim chapter manager, Ed Webb, is now in place to provide
necessary staff leadership and guidance to board and staff. The chapter board offered the executive
director a modest separation package and she executed a separation agreement and release. Pursuant to
the agreement, both parties agreed to keep the terms of the separation agreement confidential. Further,
both parties agreed upon a press release regarding the executive director's resignation and agreed not to
make any statements inconsistent with the contents of the press release to any member of the public or
the press who made inquiries about her resignation.

The chapter remitted the outstanding amount due to the Liberty Fund on September 18, 2002. There was
some initial local media coverage of the situation as it pertained to the resignation of the executive
director and the Liberty Fund audit results.

SFC-ARC-Ao01768
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From the desk of

Jon M. Huntsman

October 7, 2002

David,

Thank you for your kind wishes. I am
really doing quite well now. I am always
grateful for your thoughtful support and the
wonderful opportunity we have to work
together.

With all good wishes,

I/
SFC-ARC-AO01 769



bcc: David McLaughlin
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American Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W
Wnchinatnn De: )Af0nlI

October 7, 2002

Mrs. Marty Evans
President and CEO
American Red Cross
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

Dear Marty:

I feel like I am a new man. Events of the past year and a half in our global
businesses seem to take a heavy toll --- but I have spent the past two weeks recuperating
in Hawaii, and my doctors tell me I have a clean bill of health. I just needed to pace
myself at a little more realistic level. The constant travel and heavy pressures of a
private, global businesses must be moderated.

I am anxious to do everrything possible to be of help to you and the American Red
Cross. Naturally, I am excited to continue our great work with the Biomedical Services
Board. Thank you always for your great leadership. Do let me know when your
schedule calls for a trip to the Western United States. It will be a pleasure to host you
here in Salt Lake City.

With all good wishes,

Most sincerely,

SFC-ARC-AO01 771
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DINSMORE
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Attorneys at Law

CINCINNATI
1900 Chemed Center * 255 East Fifth Street

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Phone (513) 977-8200 * Fax (513) 977-8141
www.dinslaw.com

Admitted in Ohio and Kentucky
Michael W. Hawkins

513-977-8270
hawkinsedinslaw.com

October 9, 2002

Mr. David T. McLaughlin
Chairman, Board of Governors
American Red Cross
430 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

Mrs. Marsha J. Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer
American Red Cross
430 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

Ms. Barbara Henderson
American Red Cross
430 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006
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Re: Visit to Tulsa. Oklahoma Chapter

Dear David, Marty and Barbara:

On October 5, 2002 I visited the Tulsa Chapter in conjunction with my attendance at the

National Diversity Council's new member orientation and its Strategic Planning Retreat. I met

with their Executive Director, Roger Dahl, Director of Diversity Outreach, Danette McInotsh

and Melissa Rambez, their Communication Director. I also received a tour of their facility

which also houses the blood unit.

I was very impressed with their enthusiasm and the overall condition of the Chapter. In

response to questions about what input they would have for me as a Board of Governor, I was

told three things to pass along: (1) Chapters want to work together with National in a win/win

relationship; (2) Roger mentioned that he is very optimistic after hearing Marty recently speak to

Chapter executives about her openness and willingness to listen; and (3) Roger hopes that the

future with Marty's leadership style will spill over to other areas within National and that before

National implements policies, procedures or programs it will get input from the field on how to

make them be successfully implemented and embraced.
SFC-ARC-A001 772
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All and all, it was a great trip!

Best Regards,

Michael W. Hawkins

MWEH/amm

DINSMORE
&SHOHLLLP
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October 9, 2002

American Red Cross Board of Governors

Mrs. Marsha 1. Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer
American Red Cross
430 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

Re: National Diversity Council Retreat October 3-4,2002 - Tulsa. Oklahoma

Dear Board of Governors and Marty:

As the Board of Governors Liaison to the National Diversity Council, I recently attended

its new Council Member Orientation and Retreat where they worked on the Strategic Diversity

Plan for the American Red Cross. Tony Polk and Dee Hayward from National Staff, Jerry

Goodwin, Chair of the National Diversity Council, Margaret Sanchez, Vice Chair of the National

Diversity Council and the entire Council were well prepared, organized, educated and focused on

the need for a renewed and targeted effort to implement a meaningful diversity program within

the American Red Cross. We also had input and participation at the meeting from the Tulsa

Executive Director, Roger Dahl and its Director of Diversity Outreach, Dannette McIntosh.

Consistent with the purpose of the National Diversity Council, a comprehensive diversity

plan will be presented to the American Red Cross Senior Management and the Board of

Governors in order to fulfill the corporate expectations for "achieving greater diversity and

inclusiveness in Red Cross policies and procedures, programs and services, and its governance,

volunteer and employee work force."

The implementation of the final plan developed by Senior Management including

recommended action by the Board of Governors will be essential to the American Red Cross'

future as the charity of choice, the provider of choice and the employer and volunteer

organization of choice. I am attaching an article from the Directors Monthly Magazine entitled

Diversity Management: From Strategy to Implementation. It provides our Board of Governors

with a road map on effectively implementing the Diversity Plan that will be presented to us. We

must embrace it and be the leaders in making it successful. It will also be our responsibility to

SFC-ARC-AO01 774
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hold ourselves and management accountable for making it a success. If anyone has questions, I

will be glad to address them.

Best Regards,

.1

Michael W. Hawkins

MWH/amm
Enclosure
cc: Mr. Tony Polk

Ms. Dee Hayward
Mr. Jerry Goodwin
Ms. Margaret Sanchez
National Diversity Council Members
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Diversity Management:
From Strategy to
Implementation

Directors are increasingly being held
accountable for the ineffective or inap-
propriate behavior of the companies they
direct. From loose accounting practices
to employee discrimination, directors are
expected to knowv what management is
doing and how management intends to
ensure the continued success of the enter-
prise.

Effective diversity oversight is just as
important as other business strategies that
significantly impact the success of the
company. Accordingly, creating a culture
that supports input, consideration, and
respect of others, as well as tolerance of
differences in style. work habits, and
communication is a mandate for busi-
nesses today.

Diversity Management Planning

Diversity management goes beyond
race and gender. It addresses the core dif-
ferences between people. including per-
sonalities, levels of management, and
functional departments. For any diversity
management plan to work, the leaders of
the organization must first be educated
about its importance, purpose, and pay-
off.

It is also essential to understand the
basic culture of the organization. That
means understanding the ,way it does
things (naturally). Organizations, like
people. have a core set of behaviors, val-
ties, and beliefs. These elements of cul-
ture have been with the company from
its early days and are often deeply
embedded in its operations. An in-depth
culture scan helps tell the stoiy of how a
company came to be what it is today.

Consider the culture that allowed
Georgia Power to face employee com-
plaints time and again. The utility giant
has a very strong bias to action, typical
of a utility that has to react quickly in a
crisis. Unfortunately, that strong bias to
action created a blind spot in employee
relations. In the last two decades, the
company was charged with (ltscrimina-
tion at least three times. In each of the
cases, consistent with its previous cul-
ture, Georgia Power quickly fixed the

current problem. put it behind them and
moved on. Company ofticials (and board
members) never stopped to ask why this
pattern of behavior continued to crop up.
They missed a learning opportunity.

"The law suit taught us that we had to
get more strategic." says Frank
McCloskey, vice president of diversity
and workplace ethics for Georcia Power
based in Atlanta, Georoia. "The very first
thing our president did was resist getting
defensive. Secondly, we began work on
a strategic diversity management plan.
We got everyone on the same page with
a common languiage. a shared vision, and
a clear understanding of Our culture."

Probing the Implementation Process

The beoinning of an effective diversity
management plan involves completing
three key steps: educiatimg execttives.
contfimming their commjitment. andfor-

nulatinig a diversitY vision. Once these

Company officials (and

board nzemnbers) never
stopped to ask why this

pattern of behavnior
continued to crop up.

They missed a learniing
opportlitlitv.

steps are implemented and understood.
four additional phases of implementation
should occur. While these steps are not
necessarily sequeatial, each component
is very necessary to achieve the desired
outcome-a working diversity manage-
ment plan.

Phase 1: Research. This phase includes
a culture audit. diversity research, readi-
ness assessment. benchmarking. and an
opportunity analysis. These steps help
organizations identify where they are cur-
rently. This phase pinpoints differences
in the people's experiences, determines
what works well within the oroanizational
culture, and provides a baseline to mea-
sure future progress.

Phase 2: Priority Setting. This step
includes conducting strategic planning
sessions (that tie diversity management

to the other strategies of the company),
workin.g, on culture synthesis and action
planning. establishing a diversity action
council, and developing an implemen-
tation plan. The diversity council should
be made up of employees at all levels
who are credible strategic thinkers, and
who fully represent all the skills, per-
spectives, and motivations of all employ-
ees at the company.

Phase 3: Imnplenmentation. The imple-
mentation phase defines the plan for
achieving the diversity vision. It is not a
one-time, quick-hit process. Instead, it
involves a comprehensive, systematic
series of activities that will move the com-
parny toward success. This phase includes
learning activities, a communications
plan, engagement activities (getting evely-
one involved), systems reviews/revisions,
and best practice emulations. Companies
should strive to create an inclusive work-
place culture and to train effective diver-
sity managers.

Phase 4: Assessment. This phase
includes nionitoring and measuring
results against a diversity scorecard
established in the first phase. A mini-stir-
vev is used to assess how employees are
experiencing the impact of inclusion.
Program evaluation is a way to determine
if the implementation plan was well exe-
cuted.

Realizing the Vision

A diversity-conscious workplace is an
achievable vision. It is a place w here peo-
ple recognize the value of different per-
spectives, demonstrate mutual respect.
communicate comfortably and candidly,

and participate with dignity. If effective
diversity management is going to be the
next step toward creating equity in the
workplace, board of directors must be
part of the process. D

James 0. Rodgers, CNvIC (certified mnan-
agemnent cnsilitanit) is liresident of J. 0.
Rocigers & Associates, Ihc.. a div'ersitl
manllagemsent co71sllltillg oroall .-at. iol

based in Decratm; Georgia. Ml: Rodgers
call be reached through thie coimipan i

ilebsite uivli: is the(dii er-sit a.chd l.co lin.
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National Headquarters
American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

Marsha Johnson Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 10, 2002

Ms. Judith Ostronic
8323 Tumberry Ct.
Potomac, MD 20854

Dear Judith:

It was such a pleasure to be seated with. you on Monday evening at The
Fort. I'm glad we had the opportunity to get to know each other a little
better and learn of people we know in common. I do hope when you are
enjoying the Army-Navy game this year, you'll give my warmest
regards to Admiral Frost. He was an iconic figure to me. I was a very,
very junior officer when he was in BUPERS - he was at least six
echelons above me. And later as CNO, he was very supportive of some
work I did at the Naval Academy.

Judith, I appreciated your comments about the need to make significant
and substantive progress to come into compliance in the Biomed arena.
Understanding and tracking progress is my top priority. There is no
more significant goal for the Red Cross. . .if we fail (again) to achieve
demonstrable progress, it will have organization-wide repercussions.

Thank you for your long-time and continuing work on the Biomed
challenge. I look forward to our continuing work together.

Warm regards,

cc: David McLaughlin
Jon Huntsman
Ramesh Thadani

Together, we can save a life
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a Amerian National HeadquartersAmedean 430 17th Street, NW.T | Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

Marsha Johnson Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 27, 2002

Mr. Cay Frank Rivera
Ministerio Amigos de las Personas Especiales
Urb. Los Angeles W-22 Calle Q
Carolina, Puerto Rico 00979-1155

Dear Mr. Rivera:

Mr. David McLaughlin, Chairman of the American Red Cross Board of Governors shared with
me recent correspondence between you, Angel Jimenez, Carmen Canino, Jim Krueger, and
others. The core issue in the correspondence appears to be a request for "adapted aquatics"
training for 750,000 Puerto Rican-Americans and the requisite that the training should begin no
later than January 2003. When Jim Krueger wrote to you this past August a meeting between
you and the chapter leadership was planned and was hoped to result in productive
communications on mutually understood issues. I am sorry to learn that this meeting did not
sufficiently establish communications or understanding between your organization and the Red
Cross. This letter pursues that goal.

Each of your letters conveys a deep passion and commitment to providing needed life-saving
water safety training to disabled individuals. Indeed as a Red Cross volunteer in the past you
have personally provided this training to countless students. We all know that the training of
750,000 persons in any skill is a substantial undertaking requiring extensive planning, expertise,
human and financial resources, and time to complete successfully.

The Red Cross had an "Adapted Aquatics Program" until 1992. The Adapted Aquatics Program
was then discontinued and replaced by the current Water Safety Instructor course, which
includes instructions on customizing water safety programs for persons with disabilities, as does
the Red Cross Swimming and Diving program. Per Red Cross Health and Safety Services
policies, today no Red Cross chapter may teach the discontinued Adapted Aquatics course;
however, each may provide the Water Safety Instructor course and support instructors in the
Swimming and Diving programs. This may be a viable option for the persons you serve.

Your commitment to the training of the disabled surely warrants further discussion. Mr. Vernon
Reed, Northeast/Mid-Atlantic Regional Executive Officer, will work with Ms. Canino to
reengage open communication between your organization and the Red Cross. If needed, Mr.
Reed will also ensure that the chapter is fully informed regarding national Red Cross water
safety resources and expertise available to assist. These efforts, supported by your open

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-A001779



participation, will hopefully strengthen the relationship and regard between the Ministerio
Amigos de las Personas Especiales and the Puerto Rican Red Cross.

Thank you again for your commitment to persons in need in your community and for your
continued interest in working with the American Red Cross.

Cc: David T. McLaughlin
James W. Krueger
Vernon F. Reed
Carmen Canino
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American
Red Cross

David T. McLaughlin, Chairman
Board of Governors

Marsha J. Evans

Date: October 31, 2002

Subject: Strategic Planning Meetings

Our Board of Governors Retreat this past September formally launched our effort to develop a new
organization-wide strategic direction for the American Red Cross. A critical step in this process is
involving all aspects of the organization as the plan is created. To that end, we have asked chapters,
blood regions and state service councils to conduct discussions with their boards and leadership
teams to provide input into the American Red Cross strategic plan. We have also scheduled two
"Strategy Forums" on the East Coast and West Coast These special meetings are by invitation-only
due to space constraints. We randomly selected participants and adjusted the list to ensure size and
geographic representation.

If your schedule permits, I would like you to attend one of these sessions to continue your
engagement in our strategic planning process. However, if you are unable to attend, we are planning
to conduct several more sessions across the country in February and March. The details for the
upcoming meetings are:

East Coast Strateg Fonrn
November 19, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
American Red Cross National Headquarters
E Street Ballroom
Washington, DC 20006

West Coast Strategy Forum
November 22, 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
San Francisco Airport Marriott
1800 Old Bayshore Highway
Burlingame, CA 94010

If you are interested in attending one of these meetings, please return the appropriate registration
form as indicated on the sheet I have enclosed the registration forms and meeting information
sheets for both meetings. Please contact Jim Starr, Senior Director, Corporate Strategy at (202) 639-
3521 if you have any questions regarding these meetings or our strategic planning efforts.

SFC-ARC-AO01 7 81
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East Coast Strategic Planning Meeting
Travel Information

(Tuesday, November 19, 2002)

Event Location/Time:
American Red Cross National Headquarters
Meeting
E Street Ballroom
1730 E Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006
8:00 am. - 4:00 p.m.
*Continental breakfast and lunch will be provided*

Reception Immediately Following:
Board of Governors Hall-17th Street Building
430 17tb Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006
4:00 p.m. - 5:00 p.m.

Hotel Information:
Hotel Washington - Pennsylvania Avenue at 15th Street
515 15h Street, NW
Washington, DC 20004-1099
Telephone number: (202) 638-5900
Toll Free number: (800) 424-9540
www.hotelwashington.com

Please contact the hotel prior to Monday, October 28, 2002 to reserve your room
and to receive your confirmation number. The American Red Cross will cover one
night's lodging at the Hotel Washington and parking. If you are planning to stay
for more than one night, you are responsible for the second night. The hotel room
rate is $135 single/double plus 14.5% D.C. room sales tax. Individuals are
responsible for any hotel incidentals incurred during their stay.

The Hotel Washington is located approximately 4 blocks from the American Red Cross
and is within walking distance.

SFC-ARC-AO01782



American Red Cross
EAST COAST STRATEGIC PLANNING MEETING

Tuesday, November 19, 2002

Registration Form

First Name Middle Initial Last Name 1

-- -. -- - -- - -- - BOARD OF GOVERNORS

_ Address i

Telephone i E-mail.
NumberumberNumber I Address .

,Do you have any disability requiring special assistance? Yes Ed No [] (Check One)

If yes, please describe:

Z Yes, I plan to attend the Strategic Planning Meeting on Tuesday, November 19, 2002.i

H Unfortunately, I will not be able to participate at this meeting.

Please e-mail your registration form to Kate Ginman at ginmank~usa.redcross.org or fax
it to (202) 639-3572.

The meeting will be held at:

American Red Cross National Headquarters
Board of Governors Hall

430 17'h Street, NW
Washington, DC 20006

+ American
It 0 Red Cross

Together, ie can sae aift
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WEST COAST Strategic Planning Meeting

Date/Times:

Fri Nov. 22' 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Strategic Planning Meeting - Cont. Breakfast, Lunch

Dress /Attire The dress for the meeting will be business casual

Registration Form: Please return the enclosed registration form no later than October 25t. (We will only
contact those individuals who we do not receive a registrationjformfrom - so #we do not contactyou, we 've confirmedjour
participation). Please note that we are only confirmingregistration. You will need to make hotel
accommodations directly with the hotel

Air/Ground Transportation & Weather. Although chapters are not required to utilize BTI/World Travel,
they may still be used to purchase airline tickets (877/292-9466). Complimentary shuttle service can be
accessed from the baggage claim area of the airport. For those of you who may be driving to San Francisco,
please check out the hotel website at ww-w.marriotthotels.com/sfobg. Weather conditions can also be found
on the website.

Hotel and Meeting Room Accommodations: Meeting space and sleeping rooms are reserved at the San
Francisco Airport Marriott, 1800 Old Bayshore Hwy, Burlingame, CA 94010 (phone: 650-692-9100 fax: 650-
692-9861). To make your reservations, please call 800/228-9290. The deadline date for hotel accommodation
is October 25th. Please make your reservations before the deadline date - sleeping rooms will not be held
after that date. As always, when calling, please be sure to request the rooms reserved for the American Red
Cross. The hotel room rate is $99 for single or double. We request that everyone make their hotel
reservations with the Marriott (and not on the internet). Please check the hotel billboards for meeting room
location upon your arrival.
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Registration Form
WEST COAST Strategic Planning Meeting

Participant Title:

Chapter State: Phone: Fax:

o Yes, I plan to attend the Strategic Planning Session on Friday, 11/22 (8:00 p.m. - 3:00 p.m.)

o Unfortunately, I will not be able to participate at this meeting.

I plan to arrive in San Francisco on (date): at o'clock.
0 I would like to request a vegetarian meal

SFC-ARC.AO01785



American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. Mclaughlin

May 23, 2002

Mr. Mannie L. Jackson
Owner and Chairman
Harlem Globetrotters International, Inc.
400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 300
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Dear Mannie,

I wrote you in early April hoping we could meet and discuss your continued involvement

with the Board of Governors. Unfortunately due to our respective schedules, I regret that we

have not been able to do this.

I understand you will also be unable to attend the Board's meeting in Phoenix on the 3 1"

but we greatly appreciate that you will have some of your team's world famous basketball stars

join in our celebrations at the Convention. It should be terrific.

In May 2000, you were elected to fill a term that expires at this annual meeting. Since

your demanding schedule has made it difficult for you to attend a number of Governors'

meetings since joining the Board, it may be advisable for you to not stand for re-election unless

you feel that you will be able to participate more actively in the Board's program in the future,

which I hope would be the case.

I would appreciate your letting me know how you would like me to act on your re-

nomination. In either case I hope that you will remain involved with the Red Cross.

David T. McLaughlin

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-A001786
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National Headquarters
American 430 17th Street, N.W.

_ > Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. Mclaughlin
Chairman

May 23, 2002

Dr. Kenneth Olden, Ph.D.
Director
National Institutes of

Environmental Health Sciences
P.O. Box 12233
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

Dear Kenneth,

Due to scheduling conflicts, I understand you have been unable to attend a Board meeting

since you were elected to the Board last May. This is unfortunate for us, as we had looked
forward to your valuable contributions, particularly during these challenging times.

In order to encourage regular participation, the Board has a policy that recommends
removal from the Board after three absences. In recognition of that policy, I would appreciate
having your guidance as to whether you would like to continue as a Governor.

I look forward to hearing from you on this.

David T. McLaughlin

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AOOi787



Narional neaaquarTrs
American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006
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Chairman

May 16, 2002

Nancylee A. Siebenmann
336 Trailridge Road, S.E.
Cedar Rapids, IA 52403

Dear Nancylee,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.
Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I
discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they
say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,
my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards.

David

cc: Harold Decker/
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life7 SFC-ARC-AO01788



VatioInal HeAdnxaIrterq

American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Ms. Gloria W. White
545 Del Price Court
St. Louis, MO 63124-1912

Dear Gloria,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were

not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this

year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent

participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01789



+ American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McIaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Mr. Chris Allen
President
Family Road®Care Centers
19440 Bretton Drive
Detroit, MI 48223

Dear Chris,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were

not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this

year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent

participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David'

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01 790
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American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. Mclaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Mr. Fred A. Buck
Buck & Associates
625 Foggy Mom Lane
Bradenton, FL 34212

Dear Fred,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were

not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this

year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent

participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

SFC-ARC-AO01 791Together, we can save a life



+ American
M 0 Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Mr. Richard M. Niemiec
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Minnesota
3535 Blue Cross Road - Zip Code-55122
P.O. Box 64560
St. Paul, MN 55164

Dear Dick,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were

not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this

year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent

participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-A0oI 792
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+ American
N M Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Mr. James T. Morris
Chairman and CEO
IWC Resources Corporation
1220 Waterway Boulevard
P.O. Box 1220
Indianapolis, IN 46206

Dear Jim,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were

not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this

year's fund at this time. t

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent

participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

SFC-ARC-AO01 793Together, we can save a life
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American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Ms. Kathryn A. Forbes
Executive Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer
eTec
401 South 2nd Avenue
Suite 100
Phoenix, AZ 85003

Dear Kate,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were

not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this

year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent

participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life
SFC-ARC-AO01794
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American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

n v IAA A. IVTCLIS hl

Chairman

May 16, 2002

Kenneth Olden, Ph.D.
Director
National Institutes of
Environmental Health Sciences

P.O. Box 12233
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

Dear Kenneth,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.

Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I

discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they

say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,

my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

Davi4

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz
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_ National Headquarters
American 430 17th Street, N.W.T Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Ms. Judith Richards Hope
Partner
Paul, Hastings Janofsky & Walker, LLP
1299 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
10 Floor
Washington, D.C. 20004

Dear Judy,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.
Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I
discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they
say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,
my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

SFC-ARC-AO01 796Together, we can save a life
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American ~~~~~~~~~National HeadquartersAmerican 430 17th Street, N.W.
I Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Ms. Joyce Hoffman
Senior Vice President &
Corporate Secretary

The Principal Financial Group
711 High Street
Des Moines, IA 50392-0300

Dear Joyce,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.
Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I
discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they
say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,
my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

SFC-ARC-A0O1 7 9 7Together, we can save a life



American National Headquarters
_ American 430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chainran

May 16, 2002

Dr. Emma C. Chappell
P.O. Box 43581
Philadelphia, PA 19106

Dear Emma,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.
Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I
discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they
say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,
my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01 798



American National Headqrters
430 17th Street, N.W.

Red Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Steven J. Bredehoeft, M.D.
105 Karin Court
Chapel Hill, NC 27514-1951

Dear Steven,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.
Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's fund at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I
discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they
say, '"my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,
my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AoO1799



American
Red Cross

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

May 16, 2002

Mr. Maurice W. Worth
115 Doral Court
Fayetteville, GA 30215

Dear Maurice,

The normal Board solicitation for the Annual Fund is conducted in the fall of the year.
Due to the events of last September, this was a sporatic effort and a number of Governors were
not contacted. You were one of those and I wanted to invite you to make a contribution to this
year's find at this time.

I would like to announce at the Convention that we have one hundred percent
participation on the part of the Board so there is, unfortunately, some urgency to this request. I
discovered the problem when I found that I had not been solicited or had made a gift so, as they
say, "my check is in the mail". I hope that yours will be as well within the next few days.

If you should have any questions on this, please call Skip Seitz at 202-639-3009. Again,
my thanks and apologies for the fact that this was not picked up in development earlier.

Regards,

David

cc: Harold Decker
Skip Seitz

SFC-ARC-AOoI 800Together, we can save a life
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.. merican Red Cross Office or the Chainnan
National Headquarters

_+ A nlerc a n Washington, D.C.

To: Chapter Chairmen/Managers Date: May 6,2002
Blood Services Region
Chairmen/Executive Directors

From: David T. McLaughlin Subject: 2002 Committee on Nominations
Report

The 2002 National Committee on Nominations has completed the process for nominating
candidates to serve as members of the Board of Governors, the Committee on Nominations, the
Committee on Resolutions and the 2002 National Convention Chairman and Vice-Chairman.
Each slate of candidates will be presented to the delegates for their consideration on Sunday,
June 2, 2002, at the closing business session of the American Red Cross National Convention in
Phoenix, Arizona. A list of all nominees and a biographical summary for each Board of
Governors nominee is attached.

Resolution IV adopted at the 2001 Convention requested the Board of Governors to review the
resolutions process and take all steps necessary to raise awareness of and confidence in the
process. A Task Force of the Board of Governors reviewed the resolution and recommended that
the process would be improved by greater Committee continuity. Beginning in 2003, members
on the Committee on Resolutions will serve staggered, two-year terms and the Vice Chair will
rise to the Chair position, serving a third year if necessary.

The Board of Governors Policy Manual, Part One, Section 5.7, sets forth the nomination and
election process for members of the Board of Govemors. Included in this section are the
provisions for presenting substitute nouinations by chapter petition and from the floor at the
closing business session. Delegates conidering thepubs itute nominations process must contact
Andrea Morisi, Corporate Secretary, for further procedural information.

In this year of incredible challenges, the boards and management of our chartered units invested
significant time in soliciting and recommending their finest volunteer leaders. The Committee
on Nominations worked many hours in reviewing candidate materials, conducting interviews and
deliberating. Their work has resulted in this slate from the many excellent candidates
recommended. I deeply appreciate the importanfwork of our local leaders, the Committee, and
the extraordinary leadership of Anna Maria Larsen, who served as chair, and Joseph Pereles, who
served as vice chair.

cc: Board of Governors
Regional Chairmen/Executive Officers
Area Chairmen/Vice Presidents
AFES Station Chairmen/Managers SFc A
Senior Management, NHQ SF RC-Ao018

Al' '! w ., '

Attachment: 2001 Nominees for the American Red Cross Board of Governors
Slate of Nominees to be Proposed to the Voting Delegates at the Convention

001
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2002 NOMINEES FOR THE AMERICAN RED CROSS
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

FIRST-TERM NOMINEES:

STEVEN E. CARR
American Red Cross of Greater Idaho Idaho Falls, Idaho

Mr. Carr is a practicing attorney and the sole proprietor of Idaho Title and Trust He
currently serves as Vice-Chair American Red Cross of Greater Idaho Board of Directors.
He has served as National Chair of Health, Safety and Community Services and as Chair
of the American Red Cross Mountain West Region. Mr. Carr is also active in
International Human Rights Philanthropy and serves as Chair of the Idaho Falls Arts
Council, Board member for the Downtown Development Corporation, Bonneville
Historical Society and others. Mr. Carr received his Bachelor's degree from Utah State
University and his Juris Doctorate from Arizona State University College of Law.

MICHAEL W. HAWKINS
American Red Cross Cincinnati Area Chapter Cincinnati, Ohio

Mr. Hawkins is Chair of Dinsmore & Shohl's Labor and Employment Law Practice
Group, a frequent speaker and writer on Labor & Employment Law issues, as well as a
mediator and arbitrator of employment law disputes. He has served as Chair of the
Greater Cincinnati Area Chapter, and as a member of the National Committee on
Nominations and National Advisory Council for Youth Involvement. Mr. Hawkins has
served as Chair of Cincinnati's Summit on Racism, as President of the Bar Association of
Cincinnati, Board member for the United Way, and as Board member for the National
Conference for Community Justice,,M. Havydus.received both his Bachelor's degree
and Juris Doctorate from the University of Kentucky.

ELAINE M. LYERLY
American Red Cross Greater Carolinas Chapter Charlotte, North Carolina

Mrs. Lyerly is President, CEO, and co-founder of the Lyerly Agency, an advertising,
marketing, and public relations firm. She is a founding member of the First Trust Bank
and has served on its Board of Directors. She has been affiliated with the American Red
Cross for over 25 years, chairing both the Greater Carolinas Blood Services Region and
the Chapter boards. She served as the American Red Cross National Convention Chair
for 2001. Other civic involvement includes service on the Board for the Belmont Abbey
College, Museum of the New South, and Child Care Resources, Inc. Mrs. Lyerly is a
member of the Charlotte Chamber of Commerce and the Public Relations Society of
America. She has also served in variQus leadership capacities with the United Way,
YMCA, Better Business Bureau, and the Charlotte-Drug Education Center.

CHRISTINE K WILKINSON
American Red Cross Grand Canyon Chapter Tempe, Arizona

SFC-ARC-AO01 802
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Ms. Wilkinson is the Vice President for Studrent Affairs and Associate Professor for
Educational Leadership and Policy Studies at Arizona State University. She is active
with the Central Arizona Chapter and Chair of the 2002 National Convention in Phoenix.
She has numerous professional affiliations' with the Phoenix Think Tank and the Council
for Advancement and Support of Education. Her community involvement includes the '
Arizona Voter Outreach Project 2000, Children's Action Alliance, Arizona Women's
Forum, Tempe Salvation Army Advisory Council and the Tempe Community Council.
Ms. Wilkinson received her bachelor's and doctorate from Arizona State University and
her Master's from the University ofCaliformia at Berkeley. She was a recipient of the
Clara Barton Volunteer Leadership Honor Award in 2000.

SECOND-TERM NOMINEES

The following individuals are recommended for a second term:

LEE A. GOLDSTEIN
American Red Cross Pomona Valley Chapter Claremont, California

Dr. Goldstein, O.D., M.P.A., manages a large optometric practice. He currently serves a
vice chair of the Board of Governors Chapter Services Committee. Previous Red Cross
experience includes chair of the California State Service Council and a member of the
Pacific Regional Committee.

CAROL ANN HAAKE
American Red Cross Greater OzarO Chapter Stkingfield, Missouri

Ms. Haake holds a M.B.A. with an emphasis in Finance. She works as a financial
planner for the Legend Group, Inc., a subsidiary of Waddell and Reed Financial Services
Corp. Previous Red Cross experience includes leadership on chapter and Blood Services
Region boards, member of the Missouri State Service Council and service on national
committees.

EDWARD A. (-BUZZ") HEIDT, JR.
American Red Cross Tidewater Chapter Virginia Beach, Virginia

Mr. Heidt has served as Chair of the Chapter Services Committee for two years and, this
past year, as Chair of the Executive Committee's Consent Decree Oversight
Subcommittee. He is President and CEO of the Penrod Company, a diversified
distribution import-export company headquartered in Virginia Beach, Virginia, and
satellite offices around the globe. Previous Red Cross' experience includes membership
on the Virginia/District of Columnia State Service Council and the Mid-Atlantic
Regional Committee.

WILLIAM V. LEWIS, JR.
American Red Cross Wyoming Valley Chapter Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania

Dr. Lewis is a Vice President and Registered Investment Advisor for Merrill Lynch. He
currently serves as vice chair of the Finance Committee and on the American Red Cross

SFC-ARC-AO01 803
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Investment Committee. Previous Red Cross experience includes chapter and Blood
Services Region board leadership and national committee assignments.

PAT M. POWERS
American Red Cross Central Ohio Blood Services Region Delaware, Ohio

Mrs. Powers has served her community as a lifelong volunteer, including service in
diplomatic and military areas. Red Cross experience includes chair of the Central Ohio
Blood Services Region and member of the Midwest Regional Committee.

MAURICE W. WORTH
American Red Cross Metropolitan Atlanta Chapter Fayetteville, Georgia

Mr. Worth has served as the chair of the Public Support Committee for the past two
years. In 1999 he retired from the position of Chief Operating Officer with Delta
Airlines, Inc., the largest private employer in the State of Georgia. His previous Red
Cross experience was with the Metropolitan Atlanta Chapter.

IH ;.
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SLATE OF NOMINEES TO BE PROPOSED TO THE VOTING DELEGATES
AT THE 2002 NATIONAL CONVENTION (Phoenix, Arizona)

2003 and 2004 National Committee'on Nomttinations

Members
Theodore J. Druhot Palmetto Chapter
Lee A. Duffius Santa Cruz County Chapter
Brian L. Hanil Indiana-Ohio Region
Timothy H. Hughes Metropolitan Atlanta Chapter
Randi Knappenberger Grand Canyon Chapter
John W. Ledbetter Central Mississippi Chapter
Virginia P. Merkel American Red Cross of Greater Indianapolis
Michael E. Quine Central Illinois Chapter
Arthur J. Spies* Central Iowa Chapter
*Nominated for a term of one year to fill a vacancy.

2003 and 2004 National Committee on Resolutions .
Chair fol
Linda S. Broyhill Nati&Wial Capital Chapter

Vice Chair
Victor A. Koivumaki

Blufon, SC
Santa Cruz, CA
Fort Wayne, IN
Atlanta, GA
Phoenix, AZ
Jackson, MS
Indianapolis, IN
Peoria, IL
Des Moines, IA

Washington, DC
. - . ;,.

American Red Cross of Massachusetts Boston, MA

Members
Donald J. Contraman
Trudie M. Hall
Kevin "Kip' Harmon
Charlotte A. Leedy
Janice M. Nelson
Steven E. Post
Worth H. Thomas
Craig J. Weyers
Michelle Anne Williams

American Red Cross of Montana
Wyandotte County Chapter
Tanana Valley Chapter
East Georgia Chapter
San Gabriel Valley Chapter
Mile High Chapter
Central Mississippi Chapter
St. Joseph County Chapter
Metropolitan Atlanta Chapter

Great Falls, MT
Kansas City, KS
Fairbanks, AK
Athens, GA
Pasadena, CA
Denver, CO
Jackson, MS
South Bend, IN
Atlanta, GA

2003 National Convention Chair
Randall L. Tobias Am 'can Red Cross of Greater Indianapolis Indianapolis, IN

2003 National Convention Vice Chair
William H. Reisner -St Louis Area Chapter St. Louis, MO

SFC-ARC-AO01 805
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To:

Subject:

cc:

Date:

National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chadiran

Board of Governors

Presidential Proclamation
American Red Cross Month, 2002

Harold Decker

March 19,2002

In the event that you have not seen the enclosed Presidential Proclamation,
I wanted to share it with you.

It is a worthy reminder of why the American Red Cross is the greatest
humanitarian volunteer organization in the world.

With gratitude for your selfless service

Regards,

Together, we can save a life

SFC-ARC-AO01 806
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American Red Cross Month, 2002

By the President of the United States of America

A Proclamation

The American Red Cross is one of our Nation's oldest and most renowned charitable organizations. It provides
help, hope, and healing when disasters or other crises strike countries, communities, or families around the world.

Founded in 1881 by Clara Barton, the American Red Cross was chartered by the Congress in 1905 to provide
aid in times of need. Each year, the Red Cross responds to more than 67,000 disasters nationwide. These include
natural disasters, thousands of home fires, and catastrophic emergencies-such as the brutal terrorist attacks of
September 11, 2001. The Red Cross was among the first to respond to this unprecedented national crisis, providing
4irect assistance to more than 50,000 families, shelter for thousands of displaced persons, millions of meals for
ae hungry, and grief counseling for more than 200,000 individuals affected by the trauma. The Red Cross also

provides assistance during international emergencies. Responding to my request, it helped create and now administers
America's Fund for Afghan Children. American children were asked to donate one dollar to aid Afghani children,
and this effort has already provided $2.4 million in medicine and other supplies to Afghanistan. Last year, the
Red Cross rushed immediate medical aid and other needed items to countries devastated by natural disasters, and
it helped millions of people around the world to battle malnutrition and life-threatening diseases and gain access
to safe drinking water.

Other Red Cross services include recruiting millions of people annually to donate blood and thereby provide hospitals
with half of the Nation's supply of blood and blood products. Red Cross personnel are now with our troops
who are fighting terrorism in Afghanistan. They live alongside our soldiers in harsh conditions and work around
the dock to fulfill an historic role. They help to keep service members and their families in touch with each
other, and offer other small comforts to ease the strain of those who are serving the cause of freedom.

At home, the Red Cross' courses in lifesaving skills, first aid, CPR, and water safety, provide Americans with
information they need to help maintain safe and healthy lives. Our communities also benefit from Red Cross programs
that provide hot meals and transportation for the homebound, as well as housing and job training for the homeless.

Over one million Red Cross volunteers help make our country stronger and more compassionate by relieving suffering
and saving lives every year. The USA Freedom Corps initiative will provide the Red Cross with even more volunteers
to help further its important mission. As we celebrate American Red Cross Month, I call on all our citizens to
recommit to serving others in need. Collective acts of kindness and compassion point the way to a brighter future
for our Nation and the world.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GEORGE W. BUSH, President of the United States of America and Honorary Chairman of
the American Red Cross, by virtue of the authority vested in me by the Constitution and laws of the United
States, do hereby proclaim March 2002 as American Red Cross Month. Especially during this extraordinary time
for our country, I encourage all Americans to support this organization's noble humanitarian mission.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this second day of March, in the year of our Lord two
thousand two, and of the Independence of the United States of America the two hundred and twenty-sixth.

C~l?-~ AI^Aœ -.
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American
Red Cross

National headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

March 15, 2002

Mr. Fred Grein
Hutchins, Wheeler & Dittmar
lOi Federal Street
Boston, MA 02110

Dear Fred:

Please extend my thanks and appreciation to the members of the Resolutions
IV (2001) Task Force for their work in handling this resolution. The
recommendations set forth in the task force report are well thought out and capture
the needs and interests in keeping the Resolutions Process a viable forum for
chartered units to present their opinions and concerns about corporate policy and
make proposals to improve the American Red Cross.

By copy of this letter, I ask that management communicate and implement
these recommendations. Further, I ask that you serve as the Board of Governor's
liaison to the Resolutions Committee as outlined in Recommendation 4 of the task
force report. Thank you for accepting this appointment.

Best wishes

David. T. McLaughlin

cc: Harold J. Decker, President and CEO
Andrea Morisi, Corporate Secretary
William McConnell, Chair, 2002 Committee on Resolutions

.-Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01808
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Chairman

March 4, 2002

The Honorable Tommy G. Thompson
Secretary, Health and Human Services
Hubert Humphrey Building
200 Independence Avenue S.W.
Washington, DC 20201

Dear Mr. Secretary,

I speak for the entire Board of Governors when I express my gratitude to you for taking
the time to participate in the Board's retreat last weekend. Your presence and your
unofficial guidance were most encouraging.

The Red Cross has a major challenge to develop a five to ten year plan that will enable us
to invest in the blood business at a level that will assure an adequate supply of safe blood
while at the same time not compromising the financial ability of the organization to fulfill
its humanitarian mission. Your guidance on this matter was most helpful.

We look forward to keeping you advised as to our progress and I will look forward to
seeing you again in the near term.

StY
David

Cc: Harold Decker

Together, we can save a life
SFC-ARC-AOo18O9
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National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

February 27, 2002

Mrs. N. Jean Schendel, Chair
American Red Cross of Northeast Indiana
1212 E. California Road
P. 0. Box 5508
Fort Wayne,
Indiana 46895

Dear Ms. Schendel,

I wanted to acknowledge your letter of 4 February 2002 concerning the funding of the
extraordinary demands placed on the chapters and yours in particular as a result of the 11
September disaster.

We are sensitive to the issue you have raised and while the results of our analysis of the
impact on the chapters is not complete, it is uneven. I have asked Jack Campell to look at
your situation in particular to see how we might be of assistance.

Again, my thanks for writing.

Re'+

David T. McLaughlin

Cc: Jack Campbell
Jim Krueger
Harold Decker i/

Together, we can save a life SFC-ARC-AO01 810
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American Red Cross-

of Northeast

February 4, 2002

Mr. David McLaughlin, Chairman
American Red Cross
17th and D Streets, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20006

Dear Chairman McLaughlin: SFC-ARC-AO0181 1

Greetings from northeast Indiana. We write to express our chapter board's deep concerns regarding the
impact of the national policies surrounding reimbursement of expenses incurred by chapters in collecting
Liberty Fund and Disaster Relief Fund donations.

As Executive Committee members of our chapter, it is our duty and the duty of our board to ensure that
our local chapter is a strong entity that will help support a strong national response should events of the
magnitude of the September 11 attacks occur. We are proud to report that our staff and volunteers have
given exceptional service to the organization during some very trying circumstances. We have deployed
fourteen volunteers to the relief efforts. Additionally, we have processed over $800,000 in donations and
ensured that each identified donor was thanked properly and in a timely manner. Since we had many
donors who donated cash and some that donated anonymously, we also teamed with our Blood Region to
place a thank you in our local newspaper. A member of our board, along with our Executive Director,
attended the Weapons of Mass Destruction Conference at national headquarters to better understand and
prepare us for the next occurrence of terrorism. We have defended the organization time and again from
the extremely negative press regarding the use of the Liberty Fund dollars and the "dumping of blood".
We have written numerous letters and continue to speak with many donors to restore their confidence in
our organization. We continue to report monies collected to national headquarters and our internal audit
was performed on time with no adverse findings. Our chapter's administrative, accounting and financial
development departments have spent countless hours meeting, thanking, clarifying, defending,
processing, faxing and reporting.

Our board understands that all these activities are necessary and we are very appreciative of how hard
our staff has worked to comply with national's changing and sometimes confusing rules and
requirements. We applauded national's recognition of our efforts through the retention of 10% of the
funds collected. Imagine our dismay when, in November, we were informed of the changes in the Board
of Governor's policy, and received further clarification in December that reversed the 10% retention
policy dnd provided little financial reimbursement to chapters for their efforts.

In order to meet the demands placed upon us since September 11, our chapter has stretched our staff and
infrastructure, sometimes to the breaking point. In November our fax machine failed and could not be
repaired. The cost to the chapter to purchase a similar machine was $1,150. In early December, our
accounting software also failed. We attribute its failure to recording more donations in three months
than we usually process in three years. We hurriedly investigated the national options and purchased a
software package for $13,875. I believe that our chapter's infrastructure is similar to most chapters--frail

1212 East California Road * Fort Wayne, IN 46825 * (219) 484-9336 1-800-513-2599 - (219) 471-1851 FAX * http://www.arcnei.com

704 East Maumee * Angola, IN 46703 * (219) 665-5262 * (219) 665-6437 FAX http://www.arcnei.com/Steuben.htmIT

215 E. Ninth St., Suite 102 * Auburn, IN 46706 * (219) 925-4566 * (219) 925-4577 FAX



to the point that any extraordinary usage has a disastrous effect. While these are some of the direct costs

borne by this chapter, hundreds of staff hours were spent handling the entire donation process. These are

the hours used to write grants, plan for special events, produce and distribute our annual report, bill our

customers and perform other activities that help fund local and national Red Cross services.

The change in Red Cross national policy also comes at a time when local giving is down. We'll never

know if it is because of the economy, the donations that poured into Red Cross and other agencies

because of the September II tragedy, or a combination of these factors. Moreover, we are facing a 2.3%

decline in United Way funding for the remainder of this fiscal year and continuing into FY 03. This

amounts to a reduction of $1 1,000 each year. All of the above added together means our chapter is

facing a serious financial challenge this fiscal year.

It is the responsibility of any Red Cross board to ensure that the expenses of the organization are paid so

that the entire organization remains fiscally sound. We believe the Board of Governors is overlooking a

very important component of the organization for which little reimbursement has been made-that of the

efforts of the local collection and processing agents, the local media spokespersons, and the Red Cross

representatives in local communities, namely chapters.

It goes without saying that our board supports the need to ensure that the wishes of the donor are

maintained and to be honest and open with donors on how their financial gifts are spent. Our chapter

does not believe that reimbursement for chapter expenses should come from the Liberty Fund. However,

we do believe that it is the responsibility of the Board of Governors to explore various options to

reimburse the chapters, at least partially, for their efforts.

This has been an unprecedented disaster requiring of our organization an unprecedented response. Our

board also believes that this disaster requires unprecedented financial recognition and support for

chapters to ensure that there will continue to be a strong local response when the next major disaster

occurs. For without a strong local response there can be no strong national response.

Sincerely,

AMERICAN RED CROSS OF NORTHEAST INDIANA - EXECUTIVE BOARD

Nathan Schdfidel, Chair Gene Smith, Third Vice-Chair Bob M in, Secretary

UJefallby. First Vi-Chk / net Kuehnert, Fourth Vice-Chair

n Menze, Second Vice- air

Cc: Harold Decker
Jim Krueger

SFC-ARC-AO01 812



National Headquarters

- ,_-__ r2.A trrSS

Jon Huntsman, Chair
Eddy Quijano, Vice Chair

Hlon. Joe Allbaugh

Hon. Richard ArXmitage
Emma Chappell
Kevin Gallagher

Rick Grinnan, Jr.
Carol Ann Haake
Rex Linder
Allen Mathies, Jr.
Gen. Richard Myers

Ross Ogden
Hon. Roderick Paige
Pat Powers
Jay Rodriguez

David T. McLaughlin

Subject:

Date:

Correspondence from International

Federation of Red Cross and Red

Crescent Societies Regarding MDA

February 20, 2002

cc: Harold Decker

The enclosed outlines the Federation's new position on Magen David Adom. It looks promising

but the outcome is still uncertain.

bcc: Gerry Jones

SFC-ARC-AOO 1813

To:

From:
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______ International Federation
l C I of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies

Mr. David McLaughlin
Chairman

American Red Cross
43 1 18th Street N.W. 2nd Floor
Washington `DC 20006 - U.S.A.
Fax: +1 202 639 35 95

Geneva, 19 February 2002

Dear David,

I have delayed my letter of thanks to you for the discussion we had in New York on 30 January
because I wanted to be able to update you on the work done on the Emblem and MDA issues by
the Standing Commission and the Federation Governing Board the following week. But allow me
to start by thanldng you and Harold for your hospitality and for your readiness to engage us in a
searching discussion about the best way forward on these issues.

Writing now also presents a good opportunity to show you and your colleagues in the American
Red Cross Board of Governors just bow much we have done, and how committed we are to the
common objective of universality for our Movement and our Federation.

It might also help if I let you know that Steve Davey and Chris Lamb have just had a strategic
planning meeting with their colleagues from the ICRC. They shared the view that the creation by
the Standing Commission of a Working Group will provide an excellent opportunity co build
operational cooperation with and Movement confidence in MDA and the Eritrean Society. We in
the Federation and the ICRC are all delighted that the American Red Cross will be a member of
the Working Group.

At this stage, it looks likely that the first meeting of the Working Group will be in Geneva on 9

April - timing which takes account of the need for us to prepare full briefing for the Group and
also pay a short visit to Israel to assess directly MDA's interests and expectations before the
Group meets. I should note that we have been in close contact with MDA throughout this
formative stage, and we are assured that they consider we are doing everything in our power to
achieve universality through the accession to membership of all the National Societies of Geneva
Convention states.

It is also important to keep you informed of our work to stay in close touch with Jewish
communities around the world, including in the United States.

Our message to these groups is the same as that we hope we have delivered to the American Red
Cross. 'We share your objective of universality for the Movement, which means we share your
wish to see MDA adnitted without delay. Our starting point is not just the need to admit MDA., it
is that the Movement and the Federation cannot operate successfully as the world's humanitarian

C
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network without universality. We will not relax our determination to see MDA as a member until
the process is complete.

As part of the talks, we supplied them with copies of all relevant documents, including letters
exchanged with MDA on operational contacts and the Terms of Reference of the Standing
Commission Working Group. The discussions were practical and constructive, and we are
confident that they have a real willingness to understand why we are doing what we are, and to
work with us towards a common objectivc.

We have found, for example, that although the Jewish groups continue, naturally, to demand
immediate recognition for MDA. they accept that this cannot be done in a vacuum. They now
understand better that it is simply not possible for the Federation or the ICRC to chance the
Movemcnt Statutes unilaterally. They appreciate the value of the work we and the 1CRC are
doing to build a consensus among governments and National Societies which will allow these
rules to be changed.

We took tiune to describe to the Jewish Groups our contacts with MDA and the Tsraeli
Government on these issues. We made the point that both MDA and the Government want to see
the issue resolved in a way which enables the Society to function without challenge in the
Movement, both globally and regionally.

They took our main argument well. It is that unless the Movement and all its components work
together towards the common objective of universality, dth objective will not be achieved. This
brought them to ask us about our relationship with the American Red Cross.

We told our friends in the Jewish groups that the American Red Cross has made clear its wish to
ensure that its policies do not harm the Federation or the Movement. and this led to a little
discussion of our financial situation. We did not go into this in detail, hut we did find it necessary
to state that there was no truth in the statement which has unfortunately received some media
coverage, that the Federation was making plans for the suspension or expulsion of the American
Red Cross in February this year.

It is, in fact, our hope that the work we are now doing together will make it possible to measure
progress to your satisfaction. MDA has told us it has very much appreciated the-Federation's
efforts in the past year, and the next stages of operational cooperation were discussed at a meeting
in Geneva on 11 November 2001.

We have also discussed with MDA and other concerned Movement members the way we should
move forward after the adoption of an important resolution by the Movement's Council of
Delegates on-14 November 2001]

They agree that the resolution makes it possible, for the first time, to divide the path to the overall
objective of a new additional protocol to the Geneva Conventions into twin tracks.

One track should concentrate on the negotiation and adoption of the protocol, for without it there
can be no new protective emblem. This task should be primarily in the hands of governments, and
this was, as you know, explained to the State Department on 31 January when a joint call was
paid on it by the Federation, ICRC and the American Red Cross.
The other track is that which builds confidence in the operational capacity of the National Society,
and enables it to be appreciated for what it is and must be: a humanitarian organisation formed
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MAIN SUBJECTS COVERED IN-TALKS ON MDA MENBERSHIP IN ISRAEL, THE USA,

BRTAIN AND AUSTRALIA - WITH GOVERNMENTS, NATIONAL SOCIETIES AND JEWISH

COMMUNITY GROUOPS

* Groups spoken to included representatives of the World Jewish Congress, the American Jcwish

Com mittee, International Friends of MDA, the British Friends, the Australian Friends, and the

Executive Council of Australian Iewry. -We have also established personal contact with

Congressman Tom Lantos, an acknowledged lead of Jewish opinion on Capitol Hill, and with

State Senator Seymour Lachman in New York,. the President of the National Association of

Jewish Legistators.

* The Geneva Conventions create emblems for use by armed forces medical units, for use in

conflict situations. These fteaties, as pacts done by Governments, create international legal

obligations. This cannot be done any boter way.

* National Societies carry the same emblem as their armed forces medical units, but their use of it in

peacetime is known as indicative use. This is-the core issue in the current debate about MDA's

emblem.

* The drafting of a new protocol additional to the Geneva Conventions creates a sound legal basis

for the Israeli Defence Forces to use a protective emblem acceptable to thern. It provides a similar

foundation for MA with respect to its emblem.

* The protocol was ready for adoption in October 2000, but the outbreak of violence and

confrontation in the Middle East in September made it impossible for the Conference to be

convened. This is because all governments agree that a protective emblem should be established

in an atmosphere of consensus, to ensure that it obtains the necessary respect in times of conflict

a The work now under way uses the draft protocol's basic principles and pats onto separate tracks

the work towards the adoption of the protocol by governments and the building of acceptance of

MDA as a National Society within the International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement

* The place of Societies in the Movement is determined by the Movement's Statutes- The Statutes

are set by the International Conference of the Red Cross and the Red Crescent, which means they

are set by governments and National Societies meeting together as members on an equal basis.

* The Statutes require that for a Society to be recognised as a member of the Movement ten

requirements mast be motr The fifth requirement is the principal obstacle to MDA recognition,

for it requires that a Society must agree to use one emblem, either the Red Cross or the Red

Crescent

* The October 2000 proposal to adopt an additional emblem was accompanied by a proposal to the

International Conference that this fifth requirement in the Statutes be amended.

a The tracks now being followed by the Standing Commission, the ICRC and the Federation

envisage that governments will carry the main responsibility for consultation towards the protocol.

The building of operational contacts is a Movement responsibility. To emphasise and explain this

approach, the ICRC, the Federation and the American Red Cross paid a joint call on the State

Department in Washington on 31 January. This was the firstime that such a united front had

been displayed.

* Operational contacts with MDA so far have seen much achieved since the beginning of this phase

of work in June 2001.

a MDA is now invited to all relevant technical and similar meetings. MDA was seated with full

deliberation opportunities in the Federation's General Assembly and the Movement's Council of

Delegates in November 2001:

a The continued withholding of the American Red Cross assessed contribution to the Federation's

adiministrative budget has five important consequences:

> The withholding is wrong on grounds of principle. It rakes the American Red Cross away

from its own commitment, as a member of the Federation, to work ioside the Federation for
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International Federation
Of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies

17, chemin des CrAts, Petit-Saconnex / P.O. Box 372/ 1211 Geneva 19 / Switzerland
Telephone: (41 22) 730 4222 Fax: (41 22) 733 0395 Telex: 412 133 FRC CH

FACSIMILE COMMUNICATION

CONFIDENTIAL

To: American Red Cross

Attention: Jane Kinsman, assistant to Mr. McLaughlin

From: Isabelle Gallet, assistant to Mr. Cherpitel

cc:

Date: February 19, 2002

Re:

Fax number: 1-202 639 3264

Our file ref.:

N' of pages including this page: 6

If you do not receive all pages, please contact us immediately. Thank you.

MESSAGE:

Dear Jane,

First of all, I would like to again thank you very much for your kindcooperation.

As agreed, please find hereby a letter to Mr. McLaughlin, accompanied by one of the attachments
mentioned in this letter. The other attachments will come electronically to your e-mail address
(kinsman@usa-redcross.org), for easier handling.

Thanks again for your help, and with best regards.

- SJ
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International Federation
LT t I of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies

Mr. David McLaughlin
Chairman
American Red Cross
431 18th Street N.W. 2nd Floor
Washington, DC 20006 - U.S.A.
Fax: + 1 202 639 35 95

Geneva, 19 February 2002

Dear David,

I have delayed my letter of thanks to you for the discussion we had in New York on 30 January
because I wanted to be able to update you on the work done on the Emblem and MDA issues by
the Standing Commission and the Federation Governing Board the following week. But allow me
to start by thanking you and Harold for your hospitality and for your readiness to engage us in a
searching discussion about the best way forward on these issues.

Writing now also presents a good opportunity to show you and your colleagues in the American
Red Cross Board of Governors just how much we have done, and how committed we are to the
common objective of universality for our Movement and our Federation.

It might also help if I let you know that Steve Davey and Chris Lamb have just had a strategic
planning meeting with their colleagues from the ICRC. They shared the view that the creation by
the Standing Commission of a Working Group will provide an excellent opportunity to build
operational cooperation with and Movement confidence in MDA and the Eritrean Society We in
the Federation and the ICRC are all delighted that the American Red Cross will be a member of
the Working Group.

At this state, it looks likely that the first meeting of the Working, Group will be in Geneva on 9
April - timing which takes account of the need for us to prepare full briefing for the Group and
also pay a short visit to Israel to assess directly MDA's interests and expectations before the
Group meets. I should note that we have been in close contact with MDA throughout this
formative stage, and we are assured that they consider we are doing everything in our power to
achieve universality through the accession to membership of all the National Societies of Geneva
Convention states.

It is also important to keep you informed of our work to stay in close touch with Jewish
communities around the world, including in the United States.

Our message to these groups is the same as that we hope we have delivered to the American Red
Cross. We share your objective of universality for the Movement, which means we share yourwish to see MDA admitted without delay. Our starting point is not just the need to admit MDA, it
is that the Movement and the Federation cannot operate successfully as the world's humanitarian
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network without universality. We will not relax our determination to see MDA as a member until
the process is complete.

As part of the talks, we supplied them with copies of all relevant documents, including letters
exchanged with MDA on operational contacts and the Terns of Reference of the Standing
Commission Working Group. The discussions were practical and constructive, and we are
confident that they have a real willingness to understand why we are doing what we are, and to
work with us towards a common objective.

We have found, for example, that although the Jewish groups continue, naturally, to demand
immediate recognition for MDA, they accept that this cannot be done in a vacuum. They now
understand better that it is simply not possible for the Federation or the ICRC to change the
Movement Statutes unilaterally. They appreciate the value of the work we and the ICRC are
doing to build a consensus among governments and National Societies which will allow these
rules to be changed.

We took time to describe to the Jewish Groups our contacts with MDA and the Tsraeli
Government on these issues. We made the point that both MDA and the Government want to see
the issue resolved in a way which enables the Society to function without challenge in the
Movement, both globally and regionally.

They took our main argument well. It is that unless the Movement and all its components work
together towards the common objective of universality, that objective will not be achieved. This
brought them to ask us about our relationship with the American Red Cross.

We told our friends in the Jewish groups that the American Red Cross has made clear its wish to
ensure that its policies do not harm the Federation or the Movement, and this led to a little
discussion of our financial situation. We did not go into this in detail, but we did find it necessary
to state that there was no truth in the statement which has unfortunately received some media
coverage, that the Federation was making plans for the suspension or expulsion of the American
Red Cross in February this year.

It is, in fact, our hope that the work we are now doing together will make it possible to measure
progress to your satisfaction. MDA has told us it has vcry much appreciated the Federation's
efforts in the past year, and the next stages of operational cooperation were discussed at a meeting
in Geneva on 11 November 2001.

We have also discussed with MDA and other concerned Movement members the way we should
move forward after the adoption of an important resolution by the Movement's Council of
Delegates on 14 November 2001.

They agree that the resolution makes it possible, for the first time, to divide the path to the overall
objective of a new additional protocol to the Geneva Conventions into twin tracks.

One track should concentrate on the negotiation and adoption of the protocol, for without it there
can be no new protective emblem. This task should be primarily in the hands of governments, and
this was, as you know, explained to the State Department on 31 January when a joint call was
paid on it by the Federation, ICRC and the American Red Cross.
The other track is that which builds confidence in the operational capacity of the National Society,
and enajles it to be appreciated for what it is and must be: a humanitarian organisation formed
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within the framework of the Geneva Conventions. This will be done by the Movement itself,
through a special Working Group, with the American Red Cross taking an active and constructive
part.

This is why we are so anxious that your Board Members will have a good opportunity to
understand the value of fitting American Red Cross policy to this objective and to note the
progress that has been made.

We hope they will also appreciate the five points we have already presented to you with respect to
the withholding of the American Red Cross statutory contribution to the Federation's
administrative budget. Essentially, as we have said, the achievements so far demonstrate that the
withholding is wrong on principle and unconstitutional, unjust, negative for vulnerable people
around the world, disabling in the current traumatic world environment and counterproductive to
our objective of universality. But we have consistently argued that the most important issue is for
the Federation to work for American participation in the only program with a realistic chance of
achieving our common objective at this difficult time.

I am attaching, so you can have the complete history of our Board's consideration of the financial
question, copies of its decisions on this subject. As you can see, at no stage did it seek to threaten
or punish.

We also know that there are still a number of questions to be addressed in our discussions with
MDA and the Government of Israel. and we will be in the closest of contact with them both as we
move forward. We take the view, which I am sure you will understand, that this is an issue of
primary concern to Israel, and it is the interests expressed by Israelis which will guide us as we
unfold the membership issue. We trust your Board will see it the same way, and will both work
with us and provide us with the resources we will need to ensure success.

Yours sincerely,

cc: Juan Manuel Suarez del Toro Rivero, President IFRC

Attachments
1. Paper with additional points.
2. Federation Board Decisions on Emblem and American Red Cross finances since May

2000.
3. Federation Operational Contacts letters of 5 June and 27 November 2001, and the MDA

response of 28 January 2002.
4. Photograph of MDA President Dr Melloul at the Federation General Assembly,

November 2001.
5. Council of Delegates Resolution 6 of 14 November 2001.
6. Standing Commission Working Group Terms of Reference, adopted 6 February 2002.
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MAIN SUBJECTS COVERED IN TALKS ON MDA MEMBERSTHIP IN ISRAEL, THE USA,
BRITAIN AND AUSTRALIA - WITH GOVERNMENTS, NATIONAL SOCIETIES AND JEWISH
COMMUNITY GROUPS

* Groups spoken to included representatives of the World Jewish Congress, the American Jewish
Committee, International Friends of MDA, the British Friends, the Australian Friends, and the
Executive Council of Australian Jewry. We have also established personal contact with
Congressman Tom Lantos, an acknowledged leader of Jewish opinion on Capitol Hill, and with
State Senator Seymour Lachman in New York, the President of the National Association of
Jewish Legislators.

* The Geneva Conventions create emblems for use by armed forces medical units, for use in
conflict situations. These treaties, as pacts done by Governments, create international legal
obligations. This cannot be done any other way.

* National Societies carry the same emblem as their armed forces medical units, but their use of it in
peacetime is known as indicative use. This is the core issue in the current debate about MDA's
emblem.

* The drafting of a new protocol additional to the Geneva Conventions creates a sound legal basis
for the Israeli Defence Forces to use a protective emblem acceptable to them. It provides a similar
foundation for MDA with respect to its emblem.

* The protocol was ready for adoption in October 2000, but the outbreak of violence and
confrontation in the Middle East in September made it impossible for the Conference to be
convened. This is because all governments agree that a protective emblem should be established
in an atmosphere of consensus, to ensure that it obtains the necessary respect in times of conflict.

* The work now under way uses the draft protocol's basic principles and puts onto separate tracks
the work towards the adoption of the protocol by governments and the building of acceptance of
MDA as a National Society within the International Red Cross and Red Crescent Movement.

* The place of Societies in the Movement is determined by the Movement's Statutes. Thc Statutes
are set by the International Conference of the Red Cross and the Red Crescent, which means they
are set by governments and National Societies meeting together as members on an equal basis.

* The Statutes require that for a Society to be recognised as a member of the Movement ten
requirements must be met. The fifth requirement is the principal obstacle to MDA recognition,
for it requires that a Society must agree to use one emblem, either the Red Cross or the Red
Crescent.

* The October 2000 proposal to adopt an additional emblem was accompanied by a proposal to the
International Conference that this fifth requirement in the Statutes be amended.

* The tracks now being followed by the Standing Commidssion, the ICRC and the Federation
envisage that governments will carry the main responsibility for consultation towards the protocol.
The building of operational contacts is a Movement responsibility. To einphasise and explain this
approach, the ICRC, the Federation and the American Red Cross paid a joint call on the State
Department in Washington on 31 January. This was the first time that such a united front. had
been displayed-

* Operational contacts with MDA so far have seen much achieved since the beginning of this phase
of work in June 2001.

• MDA is now invited to all relevant technical and similar meetings. MDA was seated with Full
deliberation opportunities in the Federation's General Assembly and the Movement's Council of
Delegates in November 2001:

* The continued withholding of the American Red Cross assessed contribution to the Federation's
administrative budget has five important consequences:
> The withholding is wrong on grounds of principle. It takes the American Red Cross away

from its own commitment, as a member of the Federdtion, to work inside the Federation for
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improvement and change. It also directly confronts the Federation's constitution, for it is
simply not possible for a member Society to decide not to pay its assesscd contribution.

> The withholding is UBjUSL While there is very wide sympathy for and understanding of the
depth of American feeling about the inability of MIDA to meet the conditions of membership,
the withholding makes no allowance for the energy and dedication with the ICRC and the
Federation have put into securing universality, in the most challenging of political
circumstances. In addition. withholding from the Federation makes no allowance for the fact,
not denied by anyone. that tie Federation itself has no control over the situation for which it is
held accountable by the withholding.

> The withholding has seriously negative consequences for the Federation's work to implement
its Strategy 2010 - a strategy adopted after consultation and negotiation in which the
American Red Cross took an active part and which aims to deliver assistance to the most
vulnerable of the vulnerable all around the world. It also means that the Secretariat is being
forced to cut jobs and curtail services at a time when all agree that the Secretariat needs to be
equipped with the ability better to respond to the needs of National Societies facing crises all
around the world.

• The withholding in early 2000 could not have anticipated the crisis that would confront the
world late in 2001. The shocking events in the United States on September 11 brought forth
an unequalled display of unity and humanitarian force among all members of the Federation.
This was acknowledged with gratitude in your statement to the Federation General Assembly
on 4 November 2001. The aftermath of that outrage has been a display of determination on
the part of all members of the Movement to join hands to build a new humanitarian force in
the world, and we have to say that it makes no sense for the American Red Cross not to wish
to be a part of this work.

> Finally, the withholding is counterproductive. It has brought forth charges of an abuse of
power by the American Red Cross and an interference in constitutional processes which, if
supported, could very well have completed this task without acrimony and division. The
unease that the withholding has generated among Societies is not restricted to one region - as
you would know from the way debate ran at the Council of Delegates, there is little or no
support for the American position on this point among other Societies, and those that
profoundly share the wish that MvDA should be admitted immediately believe that the pressure
applied so far as actually impeded progress.
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DATE: February 15, 2002

FROM: David McLaughlin

TO: Harold Decker 7
Bob Chlopak

RE: Attached Article

I am sure that you will enjoy this if you haven't seen it already.

David

Bcc: Frank Donaghue
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From: Hassmfller, Susan [SHASSMILLEROIf.org]

Sent Sunday, February 10, 2002 12:57 PM

To: 1Tm Duncan'; drlee lgOTdltlOnOptometr.OOm; kennedypabQmsf.com; alohh@soI.omf

bkassoc*aol0com; Forbeskaelaol.com; BuzzHeldthepenrodcormpany-wm;

calengftmilyad.oom; Hassmrler, Susan; richardnlemleo@bluecros0n5co3n;

deckerhsusa-rsdcross.or; krueagel~Us.redcros8.org;
search_.omrnlt6e@uss.redcMSs.oM; brooksh~usa.redorossorg;

k1ndeann@useadcross.or9; halgwOodJiW9Ircl.orct haeni@daMeorg;

rendersuse.rsdcrQ.org; .. hittygoo-drossdorg; VuncanadoWs0s maSuWtOorg

'orlonsafevatd5.nef

Subject: RE: Red Cr0S8 Whitepaper

Dear Mr. Duncan: Thank: to you and mark Osmun, your PR Director, for taking the time to

put this white paper together. You have raised legitimate concerns that all of us on the

Board, and especially the search committee, are currently grappling with. I have been a

volunteer with this organization for nearly 29 years and the occurrences 
of this year have

been very disheartening to me.-. 
although, I do not waiver from my belief that this is the

greatest voluntary organization 
in operation today. I, like you, want nothing more than

to put this behind us and come out of the gate with 
a wonderful leader that can inspire,

lead, and make the necessary changes 
that must be made. I am cognizant of the awesome

responsibility of the charge before 
us to choose someone of this caliber 

and know we will

take your recommendations into 
consideration. Finally, in terms of the importance 

of PR

directors...they are indeed important, 
My chapter in Central Jersey has 

one and it makes

all the difference. However, you and I both know that limited 
chapter resources prevent

such widespread hirings, when so many other priorities 
are at hand. My sincerest thanks

for taking the time to send this. 
It is important for ua to hear from our field leaders.

And, thanks for the job you are doing in Sonoma County. 
Sue Rassailler

--- original Message-
Fromq Tim Duncan [mailto:duncanredx6yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, February 05, 2002 3:36 PM

To: drleeflgoldsteinoptometry.com; 
kennedypabemsn.com; alohh(aol.con; 

bkassocSaol.cor;

Forbeska&aol.comr BuzzHeidt~thepenrodcompany.cor; 
callenffamilyroad.com; shassmi~rwjf.org;

richard niemiecdbluecrossan.com; deckerhusa. redcross.org; kruegerjQusa.redcross.org;

search coznwtteegusa.redcross.org;
brookslGusa.redcro5s.org; kindelannfusa.redcroas.org; haiqwoodjQarcla.org;

rotherham9sdarC.org; renderagusa.redross 5 org; gehittyeoc-redcross.org

Subjects Red Cross Whitepaper

The attached white paper was written by my Public

Affairs Director (for internal use only) based on

discussions we've had in the aftermath of Sept. 11th,

following information heard at the recent CA Red Cross

State Conference and in response to members of the

Board of Governors requests for input on "the search."

We shared it with our Board Executive Committee and it

reflects the thoughts of our Chapter Leadership. We

wanted to share it with you for what it's worth and

would welcome any return comments.

p.s. Due to email troubles today, I am using this

address to distribute this message. However, please

reply to my regular address:
tduncaneredcros5-sonomacounty.org Thank you.

-Tim Duncan, CEO, Sonoma County Chapter

Do You Yahool?
Send FREE Valentine eCards with Yahool Greetingsl http;//greetings.yahoo.com
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One form of insanity is doing the same thing repeatedly and expecting a different result.

By Mark Osmun, Public Affairs Director, Sonoma County Chapter

The avalanche of public relations disasters suffered by the American Red Cross since October

could have been prevented - not by changing the way the Red Cross fulfills its mission, but by changing

the way it communicates that mission and by changing the way it responds to negative press.

At this stage (we are now awaiting the 60 Minutes bomb) the damage has been done. What is

alarming is that there is no evidence that the organization understands the nature of its public relations

weaknesses: much less remedied them. We have no sane reason therefore to expect different results in

the future.

For the sake of discussion and with a view to moving the organization toward a new public

relations approach (with, we expect, different results), we wish to offer the following observations and

proposals.

Shortly after the media attacks that began in October, the national organization hired a large PR

firm with a reputation in crisis management to advise it. If an organization does not have a PR crisis

management plan and team in place, it already has a crisis. I have worked with many large PR agencies

and can say their skill lies primarily in making money. The fastest way to make that money is to spend

as little time as possible and bill for as much as possible. One way to save time is to scan the time-worn

PR manual rather than read it closely or be creative. The crisis management manual evidently was

written around Watergate and doesn't seem to have been updated. The lesson from Watergate was that if

Nixon had only admitted culpability and asked for forgiveness, he would have served out his term.

Correct. And evidently, the Red Cross was advised to do the same - the "we heard you America"

capitulation. The only problem was - the Red Cross hadn 't done anything wrong. The formula did not

apply to this case.

We abandoned a defensible position - the proposed uses of the Liberty Fund made perfect sense

-- and in the process of surrender we confirmed all the charges that had been made, and confirmed the

sanctimonious posturings of demagogue politicians and media strumpets. Further, the timid response by

us only encouraged more bullying, self-aggrandizing politicians and media to join in the bloodletting.
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After the January 31 t announcement stating that 90% of the Liberty Fund would be distributed

(mainly to surviving families) by the first anniversary of the attacks, there was some positive publicity -

the media and politicians temporarily rewarding the organization for letting itself be run by them. But

our retreat painted us into a corner and set a dangerous precedent - high-profile disasters with large

donations now would seem to pay more than others. We let the media create a policy akin to a disaster-

survivor popularity contest, while converting us in the public mind from an emergency aid organization

into an after-the-fact insurance company. Of course, the next time a big - but not mediagenic - disaster

hits, we will have to explain why we can't make those survivors millionaires also. Bad policy will come

back to haunt us and the media won't remember that it authored the policy, much less take the blame.

Some may take the position that the Liberty Fund crises would have been avoided if only.... the

donations had simply gone into the Disaster Relief Fund, or if only the Liberty Fund had not been

distinguished from the general disaster fund, or if its proposed uses had not been detailed so early, or if

National had announced it needed X-dollars and no more (before it had already collected X-plus), or if

Healy had only been fired sooner, or later. But there is no guarantee that any new, better scenario would

have had a better reception from opportunistic politicians and media.

The bedrock problem remains: what do we do when our image is unjustly attacked? What could,

should we have done and what should we do next time? Mind you, there will be a next time.

[Note: though these suggestions appear to come in hindsight, they were, in fact, what we hoped

for during the crisis].

We suggest that the American Red Cross should not abandon a defensible position when it is in

the right. The results of doing so, as enumerated earlier, are evident for all to see.

So how could we have successfully defended ourselves? The same way one effectively deals

with a playground bully - punch him hard; you might be bloodied too, but the bully won't come back.

Those who attacked the Red Cross had no solid ground on which to stand. Elliott Spitzer was

merely seeking to promote his political career, Bill O'Reilly to promote his ratings and book sales, etc.

They distorted the truth and wantonly attacked the Red Cross - without care that America's prime

defense following a terrorist attack -- the Red Cross - might be eviscerated on the altar of their personal

agendas. They claimed that the American public was outraged by the Red Cross' plan for spending the

Liberty Fund. This claim was made without a poll or any objective measurement. Yet it went completely

unchallenged - even by us. The rest of the media and politicos just followed like circus elephants.

What should we do when under such an attack?
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Counterattack. Fast. Aggressively. And don't play nice or fair.

It would have been possible to effectively vilify the politicians and the media members at the

very start of their attacks. We could have - while we still had the well-deserved respect of the public -

positioned Spitzer, O'Reilly and the like as the self-serving cutthroats they are, pointing out their

personal agendas. Yes, it would have been a mudslinging battle, but that should be second-nature to

Washingtonians.

This aggressive strategy could have been applied in each of our PR challenges (Liberty Fund,

MDA, blood, Alpine). Of course, had it been applied at the start there might not have been other

challenges. The feeding frenzy might have ended when it started.

But here lies the rub: to wage that kind of battle successfully, the Red Cross needed a leader who

was charismatic, celebrated and well-known for both integrity and plain talk. We needed a person who

could face down the media and politicians with withering, righteous indignation. Someone who could

defend us. A champion. We didn't - and don't -- have such a person. But we'd better get one soon.

To do this, we need to think in a very different way. We must redefine the position of President and

CEO.

Actually, we need two different types of people - for two different leadership positions. One, a

charismatic spokesperson who carries our message and defends us in public; someone who is already a

celebrity. The other would be an administrator, less visible to the public, who administers and executes

the will of the board.

The charismatic spokesperson - who would hold a top authoritative title, whether that be

President or CEO - should come from the ranks of American celebrities (perhaps from the soon-to-be

announced National Celebrity Cabinet) or highly visible leaders - a group of people to whom the media,

for whatever reasons, accords great credibility and frequently defers to (witness the retreat of Katy

Couric following Sting's rebuke of her for implying that the Red Cross acted badly). There is a long list

of people who might do. Just for the sake of examples think of people like George Clooney, Jodi Foster,

Jane Pauley, Harrison Ford, Sidney Poitier, Colin Powell, Norman Schwartzkoff Make your own list;

never mind whether they are available or not; that would come later.

We need a person who can look the camera in the eye and -- with unwavering, righteous

indignation - shame those who would unjustly crucify America's primary disaster-aid giver to further

their selfish interests. This person would praise fair-minded media by name and curry their favor.

Having captured the public's attention, this leader would present the real facts.
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We could at this point detail, step by step, exactly how such a different approach, executed by a

different kind of leader might have played out, but that can be the focus of another discussion. Yet, even

if all those elements were in place and the crises averted, peace would not have lasted long.

The American Red Cross has another major PR deficiency. Throughout the chapters and at

national itself, the real importance of public relations is, even now, unrecognized.

The national PR Director - if they are not already -- should be an integral part of all policy

making discussions taking place at highest levels of the American Red Cross. Policy should not be

adopted without careful consideration of the PR consequences, contingencies and possible remedies.

Surely the lessons of the last few months illustrate the need for this.

But even this is not enough. We must also have a new vision for the Board of Governors. On one

hand the American Red Cross never wants to repeat the experience of having a maverick, loose cannon

CEO making policy unilaterally or off-the-cuff On the other hand, media crises and policy decisions

often occur rapidly, at any time, and need to be addressed immediately. The Board of Governors -

dedicated volunteers who live all over the country - must be accessible and willing to convene

immediately at any time to consider, approve or reject plans and other decisions which must be quickly

implemented. Teleconferencing and other technology makes this possible and practical.

Still, we'd be vulnerable at the chapter leveL Across the country, few chapters have, or are

willing to devote, the resources needed to hire a qualified public relations professional at the Director

level and to make public relations a dedicated position. The practice of saddling a single individual with

dual titles (e.g. Public Affairs/Development Director) degrades the value and the effectiveness of one or

both of those functions. The separate skills of PR and fundraising are not necessarily found in the same

person - and even if they were, that person would be overburdened and hard-pressed to do both jobs

well.

Even larger, well-funded chapters have neglected this obvious need -- and we all have paid for it.

Only a bright, experienced, honest, creative, bold professional who enjoys the support of the

chapter CEO and Board of Directors can provide the immediate, effective action that can head off

communications problems before they reach the catastrophic leveL

PR fiascoes - unjust though they might be - will happen repeatedly if top-notch PR people are

not vigorously recruited and compensated. Surely chapters in the top 50 metropolitan markets should be

able to afford this: they really can't afford not to.
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Next, we must have a real and ongoing dialogue between chapter public relations directors, each

other, and the national public relations director. Often, lessons learned long ago at the chapter level have

fallen on deaf ears at the national organization. The result has been that national has precipitated the

same sort of crises - but at a much more visible level. Worse, is the knowledge that we could have

avoided the problems if only we took each other's input seriously.

One form of insanity is doing the same thing repeatedly and expecting a different result. Let's

open the doors and consider -- what might seem to some -- radically different approaches.

To paraphrase Goethe: 'Be bold and powerful forces will come to your aid."

-- January 31, 2002

Mark Osmun is Public Affairs Director for the Sonoma County Chapter of the American Red Cross. A
veteran of over 30 years in journalism aidpublic relations, he was vice president/creative director of
San Francisco-based, Fineman Associates Public Relations where he helped guide Odwalla Juices
through the crucialfirst 48 hours of its e-coli crisis. As a journalist, he has written for USA Today, The
San Francisco Examiner, Orange County Register, Dallas Morning News and others.

From September 2001 through January2002, the Sonoma County Chapter received over 30 positive
newspaper articles, over a dozen positive teleVision news pieces, dozens ofpositive radio interviews and
only one negative talk-show attack After the Chapter applied an aggressive PR approach, that talk-
show host retracted her ear&lerposition andtaped a spot supporting the Chapter that ran every hour for
24 hours.
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American National Headquarters
430 17th Street, N.W..4 .iRed Cross Washington, DC 20006

David T. McLaughlin
Chairman

February 14, 2002

Mr. Juan M. Suarez del Toro R.
President
International Federation of Red Cross and Red Crescent Societies

17, chemin des Crets,
Petit-Sacconex., P.O. 372
CH - 1211
Geneva, 19
SWITZERLAND

Dear Juan,

When Harold Decker and I met with Didier and Chris Lamb in New York in January,

they suggested that it may be more convenient for you to come to the United States

during the time of our Annual Convention in Phoenix, Arizona, on 30 May 2002 through

2 June 2002. We would be delighted to have you with us for whatever length of time

would be convenient for you, and I would like you to participate in one of the programs

dealing with the Federation, ICRC, and the American Red Cross if you are agreeable to

doing so.

Additionally, we were impressed by the two track initiative that Didier and Chris

outlined, designed to have MDA admitted to the Federation at the earliest possible date.

If you and your organization believe that it would be helpful for the head of MDA,

Harold Decker, and me to come to Geneva to meet with you to discuss this further, please

let me know and the timing that would be best from your standpoint.

I hope this finds you well and enjoying your new responsibilities.

ShyIn y,

David T. McLaughlin

DTM-jk

Cc: Harold Decker
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Madrid. 3 00eJanuary 2002

Mr. David Mcfaughlin
Chairman
Ametcadn Red Cross
431 18th Street N.W. 2nd Floor
Washington, DC 2a006 ".
U.SA. (~

CDear Mr. McLaughlin, C -_ -(
Many thanks fci your letter of January 17th.

I was very pleased to learn that you wil be able to meet with Dldier Cherpid during
his folthtming vist to the United States. I ve"y much hope that your discussions. togeher
with Mr. HaroId Decker. wil be conswrudive and thal we wil make real potgness in
developing our coperation.

I apprciated your invitton to me to visit you in Washigton and would hope to be
able to do so at an appropriwe time.

Wdh best fegards,

Your sincerely.

SFC-ARC-AO01 831
IX6Gv 's. "e kX -h 19:'41=C:X7M-f4'ZL xkI'4213"rK %0 #A P 4=0

** TOTAL PRGE.02 **

9 .5;AWI



National Headquarters

American
Red Cross

Togeter, we can save a efJt

To: Harold Decker

From: David T. Mclaughlin

Date:

Subject:

February 7, 2002

Conference Board Meeting

Harold,

I met on 5 February with the Contributions Council of the Conference Board with Josh Gotbaum.

Enclosed is a list of attendees and their companies.

The issues that they raised were:

- How will the data bank be developed and what will be its use beyond NYC and 9/11

- How will RC use the interest accrued on the undisbursed principal

- What is being done for non profits less fortunate that ARC, 9/11 Fund, etc and for small

business.
- What are lessons learned from 9/11 and can the RC take the lead in assessing the

vulnerability of each major urban area and lead an effort to provide a disaster response

program for those cities

- Are undocumented aliens being given consideration

- Why was the RC so late in responding to the criticisms from the media - although most

felt that the concept of using some of the funds from corporations for national disaster

relief preparation was justified. We just did not implement or execute it properly. They

wanted to know how we will now pay for a restructuring of our disaster relief system.

- A number of them said that if ARC comes up with a national plan coordinated with other

agencies, they would fund it.

We should decide how we want to follow up.

Thanks

Dave

Attachment

Cc: Mike Farley
Skip Seitz

Pat Kennedy 
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Contributions Council
Winter Meeting
February 3-5, 2002

Scottsdale, AZ
ATrENDANCE LIST

COMPANY

Ed Ahnert
Toni & George Bailey
Paula Baker
Paula Banks
Eddy Bayardelle
Stephanie Bell-Rose
Kathy Buechel
Robin Caldwell
Essie Calhoun & Glenn Brooks
Evern Cooper*
Mariano Diaz*
Anne Dowling
Theresa Fay-Bustillos*
Michael Feller
David Ford
Jo Ann Harmon
Fred Harris*
Joyce Hergenhan
Penny Hunt
Jackie Millan
Jeff Morgan*
Gabriella Morris
Maryann Morrison
Al & Angela Myres
Chris Park
Deborah Patterson
Mary Pickard
Maideh Radpour*
Carol Ramsey
Skip Rhodes
Ralph Rogers
Beth Salerno
Laura Sanford
Al & Joyce Senger
Esther Silver-Parker
Bess Stephens
Jacqueline Strayer
Kristin & Charles Swain
John & Linda Taylor
Dave Thomas
Robin Tryloff
Sandy Ulsh
Lorna Utley
Mike & Cindy Watson*
Woodie Wright

ExxonMobil
Boeing
IBM
BP
Merrill Lynch
Goldman Sachs
Alcoa
J.C. Penney
Eastman Kodak
United Parcel Service
Nike
ChevronTexaco
Levi Strauss
J.P. Morgan Chase
Lucent Technologies
Emerson
3M
General Electric
Medtronic
PepsiCo
Bank of America
Prudential Financial
Caterpillar
Shell
Washington Mutual
Monsanto
St Paul Companies
Cisco Systems
Raytheon
ChevronTexaco
Philip Morris
American Express
SBC
TRW
AT&T
Hewlett-Packard
United Technologies
Corning
Merck
Sprint
Sara Lee
Ford
General Motors
BellSouth
CIGNA

* Attending Contributions Council meeting for the first time.
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ORGANIZATION

Joshua Gotbaum
David McLaughlin
Karen Narasaki
Sasida Sassen
Eddie Williams
Raul Yzaguirre

The September 1I1P Fund
The American Red Cross
National Asian Pacific American Legal Consortium
University of Chicago
Joint Center for Political & Economic Studies
National Council of La Raza

FROM THE CONFERENCE BOARD

Lisa Foster
David Vidal
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